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THEUBREZBERE

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BRHFRYEEBHS) - LA B BB T /3 )

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

HERE

el

FEH=E

s M (B8R (ME3k4)

E R R (A 73 K%4)
EBITDA(Hfi#3Kk4)

EBITDAR FI & (M3 4)

RNAEIRR R FEML =7 (E518) (BT a3k 4)
SHERIIRE (K723 %4)

T EERERRE (1 F3K4)
AR TR R PE (G e aw (Bl 3R R (AT 523 2 4)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (loss) (Note 3 and 4)
Operating margin (Note 3 and 4)
EBITDA (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA margin (Note 3 and 4)

Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 3 and 4)

Return on sales (Note 3 and 4)
Return on average total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of

the Company (Note 3 and 4)

e RIRTTEFRIRTTER
LEE®(HaE3k4)
BEMB(NE3L4)
BERE(FE3L4)
FEHKAREEH(RA)(HatE1)
BN E (5 8) (FiE35%4)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 3 and 4)

Total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Total liabilities (Note 3 and 4)

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 3 and 4)

SRAEMN(BR) — EXRCEM)
SRS CEML)

Earnings (loss) per share — Basic (HK cents)
Dividend per share (HK cents)

PNz Dividend payout ratio
M mERnE s (FiR) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
MEERE Market capitalization
FRMAMEE Stores as at year end
BHEE Direct-operated stores
ERJE (KYzE2) Franchised stores (Note 2)
BIRPITAREL Total stores worldwide
izt - Notes:
1. FHEAZFEREFHERATRUFABH 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number of days in
the year
2. H—HEEEE AR MiPBeEREEDENAAE 2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, United Arab Emirates

(2011 4F R PARTAF ) BHBURF ) RIE 8 (20154F R A B 4F
E) - M 07TERARFE) REZENEEMEEL
Bk ik

and Saudi Arabia (prior to year 2011), Kuwait and Qatar (prior to year 2015), Vietham
(prior to year 2017), and third-party franchisees

3. 2013 F RUARIFE 2 BT W ARERMNE BT EN19EE 3. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 19 Employee benefits are
B F Ve F not reflected in the years in and prior to 2013

4, 2018F RARIFE 2 BT AR RKNBBMEHREERE 4. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16 Leases are not
165 & MmIEH A% reflected in the years in and prior to 2018
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THEFHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
3,122 4,852 5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381 5,545 5,848 5,673 5,614
1,736 2,846 3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331 3,283
55.6% 58.7% 59.0% 59.5% 59.4% 57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7% 58.5%
(105) 397 625 689 568 556 542 828 1,005 909
-3.4% 8.2% 11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7% 16.2%
555 1,183 821 874 748 743 760 1,066 1,247 1,123
17.8% 24.4% 14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7% 18.2% 22.0% 20.0%
(112) 230 480 500 434 426 408 663 826 728
-3.6% 4.7% 8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6% 13.0%
-2.3% 6.2% 12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1% 21.8%
-4.4% 8.5% 16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8% 28.3%
1,104 994 1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076 915 1,105 1,173 1,209
916 714 1,465 1,526 1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616 1,555 1,658
4,383 5,196 4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605 3,822
1,752 2,349 1,115 1,181 1,147 881 773 1,220 1,452 1,001
115 100 89 87 78 78 80 82 74 95
1.8 1.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.8
(7.10) 14.60 30.50 31.80 27.70 27.10 26.00 42.60 53.80 48.20
10.00 14.60 33.50 35.00 27.50 27.00 25.00 40.00 40.00 38.00
FEANA  100.0%  109.8%  110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2% 93.9% 74.3% 78.8%
1,577,631 1,578,501 1,578,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837 1,543,709 1,521,291
1,798 3,709 5,840 6,534 6,582 5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501 8,565
1,209 1,274 1,323 1,349 1,364 1,385 1,451 1,499 1,449 1,232
976 1,101 1,103 1,065 1,033 986 1,001 1,143 1,199 1,439
2,185 2,375 2,426 2,414 2,397 2,371 2,452 2,642 2,648 2,671
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A WE B AER LA

Dear shareholders,

2020 was a challenging year for both the Group and the fashion apparel
industry as a whole. Both the Group’s sales and net profit suffered
significantly as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, which broke out at
the beginning of the year. Sales in 2020 plunged by 35.7% to HK$3,122
million, although the brunt of the impact took place in the first half.
Signs of improvement were exhibited in the second half on the back
of the gradual relaxation in travel restrictions and social distancing
measures. Overhead control and rental concessions from landlords
helped reduce operating expenses in the second half.

Thus, the second half registered a net profit of HK$63 million, against
a net loss of HK$175 million reported for the first half. For the full year,
we recorded a net loss of HK$112 million. The Group prudently reduced
inventory and stringently controlled accounts receivable, resulting in a
higher net cash balance of HK$1,104 million to close the year.

After considering the Group’s net cash position, sales recovery, as
well as the effect of operating expense control measures instigated
during 2020 and planned cash outlays in 2021, the Board of directors
recommends a final dividend of 6.9 HK cents per share. With the interim
dividend of 3.1 HK cents per share declared and paid, the year’s total
dividend would be 10.0 HK cents per share.

The Covid-19 pandemic has forced us to expedite the pace of
digitization. Webinars, inter-disciplinary and inter-regional meetings, as
well as visual communication with suppliers and shops are now a daily
occurrence. Managers, using digital tools, now make faster and better
decisions. The initiative will become more pervasive, further saving time
and expenses throughout the Group.

The Groups’ online sales surged from 5.5% to 10.5% of Group sales.
The advances outside Mainland China were significant. The momentum
will accelerate in 2021 as all markets quickly relocate their re-trained
offline human resources to support digital commerce. The strategic
focus is on third-party platforms which do not require substantial capital
investments.
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TEHRESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Covid-19 pandemic decimated the Group’s sales and net profit.
Consequently, our suppliers suffered from fewer purchase orders and
our staff lower income. Our franchise partners endured protracted low
sales. | feel their predicament and am grateful for their steadfastness
during this testing time. | also acknowledge the support and
encouragement of our shareholders and the Board of directors.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 11, 2021

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

The following commentaries refer to the year-on-year comparison for the
years ended December 31, 2020, and 2019, unless otherwise stated.

OVERVIEW

u The Group is an international apparel retailer with a portfolio of
owned, franchised and licensed brands. We offer high-quality,
value-for-money and easy-to-wear apparel and accessories
through a network of approximately 2,185 stores, or 2,105,000
sq. ft. of retail floor space.

u Group sales and gross margin improved in the second half of the
year, during which the sales drop narrowed to -26.0% (2020 1H:
-44.4%) with a gross margin of 56.4% (2020 1H: 54.6%). For the
year, group sales declined by 35.7% to HK$3,122 million (2019:
HK$4,852 million) with a gross margin of 55.6% (2019: 58.7%).

u Online sales increased by 22.1% to contribute 10.5% (2019:
5.5%) to total sales. Outside of Mainland China, online sales
registered a 123.5% increase and constituted 23.3% of
consolidated online sales (2019: 12.7%).

u The 2H’s net profit helped reduce the full-year net loss to HK$112
million (1H net loss: HK$175 million), which included a net HK$70
million non-cash impairment provision charge to income made
during the 1H for the right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment. The basic loss per share was 7.1 HK cents (2019:
basic earnings per share of 14.6 HK cents).

u The Company’s Board of directors has recommended a final
dividend of 6.9 HK cents per share (2019: 4.4 HK cents per
share), or a total dividend of 10.0 HK cents per share for the year
(2019: 14.6 HK cents per share). The final dividend payable, if
approved, would amount to approximately HK$109 million.

u Group inventories shrunk by HK$114 million to HK$434 million.
The inventory turnover days based on cost was 115 (2019: 100).
Most of the merchandise was essential or in-season.

u Cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, increased to
HK$1,104 million as of December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2019:
HK$994 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Table 1: Group results of operations

LEHER hiHEE
B Antk 2E
(U B EE T AEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 % to sales 2019 % to sales Change
o K EH bR The rest of Asia Pacific 954 30.6% 1,584 32.7% (39.8%)
B RE Mainland China 701 22.4% 995 20.5% (29.5%)
a& Taiwan 534 17.1% 587 12.1% (9.0%)
R The Middle East 387 12.4% 662 13.6% (41.5%)
BB RRM HK and Macau 362 11.6% 772 15.9% (53.1%)
HEININEE R 2 #HE B Wholesales to overseas
HHE franchisees 184 5.9% 252 5.2% (27.0%)
EHHER Group sales’ 3,122 100.0% 4,852 100.0% (35.7%)
ES Gross profit 1,736 55.6% 2,846 58.7% (39.0%)
KEBR Operating expense (1,954) (62.6%) (2,495) (51.4%) (21.7%)
FEREEERYE - Impairment loss of right-of-use
e RS 2R E assets and property, plant
and equipment (87) (2.8%) (37) (0.8%) 135.1%
FEREEERDE Reversal of impairment loss on
2R AR R E right-of-use assets and
B gl property, plant and equipment 17 0.5% - - TEAN/A
T (BE) Operating profit (loss) (105) (3.4%) 397 8.2% (126.4%)
BMEER Finance expense (41) (1.3%) (55) (1.1%) (25.5%)
IR R PE(L R (E518) Profit (loss) attributable to
shareholders (112) (3.6%) 230 4.7% (148.7%)
PERM IR H ERE? Global brand sales? 4,164 6,163 (32.4%)
2 REER? Global brand gross profit? 2,456 3,746 (34.4%)
FRBF & RBTET Net cash and bank balances at
FEE year-end 1,104 994 11.1%
FREE Inventories at year-end 434 548 (20.8%)
FEHK A &S Inventory turnover on cost, days® 115 100 15
FRFITE Stores at year-end 2,185 2,375 (190)

! EEHEFECHHER CREEEELZTEFRL 7
BEI) A GIMBER M EHE -

“Group sales” refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from direct-
operated stores and wholesales to overseas/non-consolidated franchisees.

2 PHAMEHESREFIQECARRELE - MEEM 2 “Global brand sales/gross profit”, comprising all Giordano retail sales/gross profit
BERAIZPFIMZEEENESE EF - HETEX from direct-operated stores, franchised stores, and stores operated by a joint
iTE o venture, are at constant exchange rates.

s FETEARIEFR FEFERUEERATUZFE 3 “Inventory turnover on cost” is calculated by dividing inventories held at year-end by
V=4=F &) the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # # = m B B R A &



10

EEREB WL R 2

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bx1: RuEEHI2EBHEEM

2020 F SHEFB DL
2020 Sales %

¥/8IMNINEERY
ZRLEHE
Wholesales
to overseas

franchisees
5.9%

R
Middle East
12.4%

HEBERER

B9 EFIAK » 20198 TR E XRITERER
ETEREEMBEEEED - REEFRAMEEH
MR IR RSN T EREE - BEHME
BHE - THERMEAZERNFEERMNLLT
8o 25 SEEERENF5.7%  HELLFFE
BAMAMSX BT EMEBHERTF44.4%
MBRA B

BEFEEBRBERE  MRTESIZE TR -
AEERG FREWA B3 26ET(REK2) » ¥
£221% » {42 EEE10.5% (20194 : 5.5%) °
AR K BE A SME R R R 5123.5% @ I B #
Bo-hBAEREEEENHASEREHEES
76.7%(2019%F : 87.3%) - AEBMR LHER R
RSB ER TN A TENE=HFE -

BAOMBERERKNRITHAZE  SBLEFER
YERE - HFIE B HER)28.8% °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

th
Mainland China
22.4%

Chart 1: Group sales contribution by region

2019 SHERA DL
2019 Sales %

HEIMNEER
ZRLEIEE
Wholesales
to overseas
franchisees
5.2%

Taiwan
12.1%

IR
Middle East
13.6%

Sales and gross profit

The Covid-19 pandemic has severely hurt the global economy and
consumer sentiment since the beginning of the year. Mandatory
lockdowns and stringent social distancing measures shortened business
hours intermittently. As the lockdowns relaxed, our sales have begun to
improve in most regions during the second half of the year. For the full
year, group sales decreased by 35.7%, an improvement from the 44.4%
drop recorded for the first half of the year when most of the Group’s
markets suffered lockdowns.

Online platforms grew significantly while the offline business plummeted.
The Group’s online channels generated HK$326 million in revenue (see
Table 2), representing a 22.1% growth and contributing 10.5% (2019:
5.5%) to total sales. The expansion outside Mainland China was 123.5%
and is continuing. Mainland China online sales still made up 76.7% of
the Group’s online sales (2019: 87.3%). The Group’s online sales growth
strategy will continue to focus on locally dominant third-party platforms.

Our franchised stores also suffered from the pandemic. Our sales to
franchisees, to prevent inventory overload, ebbed by 28.8%.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #



EEEBzmL K2 M

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R2: RREBIZ2KEEHERE

Table 2: Group sales by channels

=1 1) 2E

(UBEZETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 Contribution 2019  Contribution Change
B Physical stores 2,389 76.5% 4,013 82.7% (40.5%)
8K Online business 326 10.5% 267 5.5% 22.1%
TEHER Retail sales 2,715 87.0% 4,280 88.2% (36.6%)
BB BB HE Wholesales to franchisees 407 13.0% 572 11.8% (28.8%)
SEHEESE Group sales 3,122 100.0% 4,852 100.0% (35.7%)

RN REMT HHEG ) E DA REE A E &I
WD IFEHE  HLEBENEXTEIAEGD
B BTFFUE  HABRENFTFTARNER
SEMNXEMNRE  UEMBFERZDTEFW
IR o RITEH le’iliﬁi@li(éﬁifmim B AL
RBDz2FENE

R RUEBEEAI 2KEENEH

The overall gross margin was down by 3.1 percentage points due
to channel and market mix changes and a mild price discount to
bring down inventory balance. Since the second half of the year, our
gross margin has improved through price control of our new season
merchandise and matched last year’s level towards the end of the
financial year. Table 3 provides an analysis of the change in Group gross
profit, by region (used interchangeably with “market”), for the full year.

Table 3: Group gross profit change by region

ExgE

20195 Fe 2020%

EH EREA EE Translational 7

2019 Product Selling #8  exchange Hito 2020

(W BEETAZ) (In HK$ million) gross profit costs price Volume impact Miscellaneous ~ gross profit

SAEMIBE The rest of Asia Pacific 938 6) (59) (326) (15) (6) 532

4 Taiwan 360 10 (17) (34) 12 (1) 330

N Mainland China 496 (12) (28) (130) (3 - 323

BARE HK and Macau 518 1 7 (281) - 2 247

mE The Middle East 428 2 (26) (158) (3) 1 244

i Markst mix - (29) 29 - 2 2 -

BERAH Retail and distribution 2,740 (34 (88) (929) 0 (6) 1,676
5sMnER,/ Wholesales to overseas franchisees/

WBRRZHBHE subsidiaries 106 60

r&EE Group 2,846 1,736

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HWAR s - FHE

Hi WA R EAMU s - BEFFERA - ZEK
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20196 ML - MEBRATIE21.7% - BEE T4
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Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains, representing revenues from royalty,
licensing, interest, government grants and rental income, increased by
HK$100 million to HK$183 million. Of this amount, HK$102 million was
Covid-19 related financial relief from governments.

Operating expense and operating profit (loss)

Operating expense decreased by 21.7% compared with 2019 and will
continue to decline in 2021 as our cost rationalization continues. Despite
the effort, the Group recorded an operating loss of HK$105 million
(2019: operating profit of HK$397 million) for the year due to the severe
drop in sales, exacerbated by the exceptional net impairment charges of
HK$70 million. In the second half, the reduction in operating expenses
and receipt of government relief, coupled with improved sales, helped
the Group register an operating profit of HK$77 million against a HK$182
million operating loss in the first half.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment

Based on the HKAS 36 requirements, the Group made a net HK$70
million provision (2019: HK$37 million) in the 1H for the impairment of
right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and property, plant and equipment. The
impairment provision, a non-cash charge to income, will reduce the net
carrying amount of the ROU assets and property, plant and equipment,
and the depreciation charge over the remaining lease terms.

Finance expense

Finance expense of HK$41 million (2019: HK$55 million) comprises
interest on lease liabilities of HK$39 million (2019: HK$49 million) and
bank interest expense.

Profit (loss) after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company

The year’s loss after income taxes attributable to shareholders (“LATS”)
was HK$112 million (1H LATS: HK$175 million) while the profit after
income taxes attributable to shareholders (“PATS”) was HK$230 million
in the same period last year, detailed by region, in Table 4 below.
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F4: BBEHHZREM RN (HRA)
2 5

Table 4: Group PATS (LATS) change by region

(X EGEETAEN) (In HK$ million)

B | E2019F RRE/EEF Reported 2019 PATS 230
=y Taiwan 11
[FapES South Korea (24)
A B K e Mainland China (38)
HGIMNERRE,MB AR 2 B EHE Wholesales to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries (51)
e The Middle East (120)
AR HK and Macau (124)
I K HAth i [& The rest of Asia Pacific (187)
TSR - JEfEHItE#EZ REERAK Income taxes, non-controlling interests,

BB finance expense and headquarter expense 189
2020 FE RETEM B EZHE 2 RRELER 2020 LATS without currency translation difference (114)
BB E =5 Currency translation difference 2
B E2020F R RELER Reported 2020 LATS (112)

s DA ANALYSIS BY MARKET

NTzEBTEREANENERAEN - HERN
BIAEA - RIRIEEEER - AR RGBS 5%
WARPMEL 2 M - BRABFE HARMRASEEE
BEODEMRAZTE -

Rep g
RE: AHEHEZRFAEBAERN (BE)

The following market-specific comments are in local currencies or,
if in HK$, are at constant exchange rates to remove distortions from
the translation of financial statements. These figures include foreign
currencies exchange rates impact on imported product costs contracted
at non-local currencies.

Greater China

Table 5: Profit (loss) before income taxes in Greater China

G hIHER

(A BEEBETAEN (In HK$ million, translated at Bt EXd -y

ZEFEEXRE constant exchange rates) 2020 % to sales 2019 % to sales Change
1S ERE Total sales 1,582 100.0% 2,354 100.0% (32.8%)
ES Gross profit 891 56.3% 1,374 58.4% (35.2%)
KEER Operating expense (1,041) (65.8%) (1,350) (57.3%) (22.9%)
FREEERADE - Impairment loss of right-of-use

HEE AR RE assets and property, plant

and equipment (63) (4.0%) 27) (1.1%) 133.3%

EREEERYE - Reversal of impairment loss on

HEE RS RE right-of-use assets and

ol property, plant and equipment 10 0.6% - - FEAN/A
EEET(EE) Operating profit (loss) (135) (8.5%) 16 0.7% (943.8%)
mMEER Finance expense (12) (0.8%) (16) (0.7%) (25.0%)
BETSRAEF (EE)  Profit (loss) before income taxes (147) (9.3%) - - FEAN/A
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84.2%  FERFA/E=FF4A -

HEJABER EE

THEFRBEAEEGEFHARER - RMOELEHEER
HR7.3%  MINEJEL EFFFEM31E o FE

REDARRMAEZOREN S - R LHEERNSA
BEIERAR+0RY -
BamRNmEEREFAMBEFRES - 8 EXHER T

FEARYRE - HE2021 FEBERFRIFRE -

HK and Macau

Hong Kong business has been disappointing due to the high cost of
operating. The 2019 social events and the 2020 Covid-19 pandemic
devastated the economy. Incoming tourism came to a halt. The
unemployment rate has risen rapidly, and a full recovery could be years
away. The Group has reduced the business scale by closing high rental
loss-making stores. On December 31, 2020, the total number of stores
was 62 (2019: 73). Macau, on the other hand, shows some positive signs
of recovery.

Our online business is increasingly important. Online sales were up by
84.2%, primarily through third-party platforms.

Mainland China & Taiwan

Business in Mainland China started to recover in the second half of the
year. Our online sales grew 7.3%, and franchised stores increased by a
net of 31 from the first half. Mainland China remains our critical strategic
market, where there is a strong growth prospect for online sales and
franchised networks.

Taiwan’s business rebounded strongly in the fourth quarter, where
we benefited from upgraded brand image and reduced competition.
Taiwan’s market will continue to perform well in 2021.

®"O6 . R EHE2HEZEANMA TS — Table 6: Sales and stores distribution in Greater China
EmiEE o by market
EXMAEHE FREEREHE ERMTYA
HER Franchised stores Direct-operated Total stores
Sales at year-end stores at year-end at year-end
(HBEATEEN (In HKS million, translated at 1)

REFEXEE) constant exchange rates) 2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
AR Mainland China 706 99  (29.0%) 559 641 225 261 784 902
=) Taiwan 514 587 (12.4%) - - 184 197 184 197
AR LR HK and Macau 362 772 (53.4%) - - 62 73 62 73
g Total 1,582 2,354 (32.8%) 559 641 41 531 1,030 1,172

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The rest of Asia Pacific

Table 7: Profit (loss) before income taxes in the rest of

(&1]) the Asia Pacific
hEHER hIHERE

(UABFE#TAEN (In HK$ million, translated at Bat ERlse BE

HETIEZHRE) constant exchange rates) 2020 % to sales 2019 % to sales Change
BIHET Total sales 982 100.0% 1,584 100.0% (38.0%)
EF| Gross profit 547 55.7% 938 59.2% (41.7%)
KEBH Operating expense (565) (57.5%) (730) (46.1%) (22.6%)
FREEERYE Impairment loss of right-of-use

MR RSERE assets and property, plant

and equipment (20) (2.0%) (10) (0.6%) 100.0%

CREEERYE - Reversal of impairment loss on

s R EE 2 RE right-of-use assets and

B E property, plant and equipment 7 0.7% - - THEAN/A
REHEN Operating profit 22 2.2% 209 13.2% (89.5%)
BMEER Finance expense (22) (2.2%) (23) (1.5%) (4.3%)
BEr SR SN (&) Profit (loss) before income taxes - - 186 11.7% (100.0%)

MERET - RERS R XEREEEER LFET
ZROBERIKE - BB SF THFUR - AR
EERREDER - RIOIKID RE kRIS

2FEMHE -

®8  MAHMUEZHEERMAD S

fi-ZmBED

In Southeast Asia, travel restrictions and social distancing measures
had practically shut down international tourism in the region. There has
been robust local tourism since the second half of the year. Most of our

Southeast Asia regions recorded profits for the full year.

Asia Pacific by market

Table 8: Sales and stores distribution in the rest of the

HERE FARMTHE

Sales Stores at year-end
(U BEETREN (In HK$ million, translated at BE

B TIEERBRE constant exchange rates) 2020 2019 Change 2020 2019

e Indonesia 396 630 (37.1%) 239 238
=H Thailand 224 361 (38.0%) 168 172
N Singapore 167 271 (38.4%) 40 42
Bk es Malaysia 101 177 (42.9%) 90 95
W Vietnam 66 89 (25.8%) 53 41
SEM Australia 19 45 (57.8%) 7 7
R Cambodia 9 1 (18.2%) 2 2
B Total 982 1,584 (38.0%) 599 597
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The Middle East

Table 9: Profit (loss) before income taxes in the Middle
East

HEHERE hIHEE

(U BEHTHEN (In HK$ million, translated at Bk EFaid b=y

B TIEXRRE) constant exchange rates) 2020 % to sales 2019 % to sales Change
e Total sales 391 100.0% 662 100.0% (40.9%)
E7 Gross profit 247 63.2% 428 64.7% (42.3%)
KEER Operating expense (241) (61.6%) (308) (46.5%) (21.8%)
FREEERYE Impairment loss of right-of-use

e RS 2R E assets and property,

plant and equipment (4) (1.0%) - - THEAN/A

R Operating profit 3 0.8% 123 18.7% (97.6%)
MEER Finance expense (7 (1.8%) (10) (1.5%) (30.0%)
MR SR R (E18) Profit (loss) before income taxes (4) (1.0%) 113 17.2% (103.5%)
B E Franchised stores 34 35
BEE Direct-operated stores 139 146
FEARITEH Total stores at year-end 173 181 (8)

FRZEBRARZE LEBINRA B RBERKE
THFHETRBMRE  E2ERERIURRIN
KA B RBIREEOEE o AEE K 7% E 18
RREAMED  B2019F B BRBEE T ERERELE
FLNBHEER  AKESERER -

FRE(—-HEBYEEEREECES
48.5% EFZMNEE A T)

®10: MEZEEFEFN

Business in the Middle East relies heavily on expatriates and international
tourism. Sales drop abated during the second half of the year, but a
complete recovery depends on expatriates and the return of international
tourists. The Group, confident in the region’s growth, will aggressively
expand when Covid-19 is no longer a negative factor to business
sentiment.

South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an
independent management team)

Table 10: Share of net profit, South Korea

HEHERE HIHEE

Batk Antt 25
(UBEEEESE ) (In Korean Won million) 2020 % to sales 2019 % to sales Change
ASHER Total sales 175,134 100.0% 205,138 100.0% (14.6%)
EAR Gross profit 96,782 55.3% 118,482 57.8% (18.3%)
SERE Net profit 12,146 6.9% 19,394 9.5% (37.4%)
JEAE 5 Share of net profit 5,891 9,406 (37.4%)
FRFITEA Stores at year-end 172 175 3)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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ARITHEENEEER T TAEE  BROER
PR AR EYE TERENERE - R EHEN
Tt (G HEEEN35% (20194 : 25%) o ANE B A
B E IR BB 2021 E B IR RIBEFE o

HEIMMEB 2 MBHER

The pandemic adversely impacted South Korea’s sales as stringent
social distancing measures seriously affected footfall to physical stores.
Online sales surged and contributed to 35% of total sales (2019: 25%).
The Group and the local management look ahead to a speedy recovery
in 2021.

Wholesales to overseas franchisees

11 BIMEBEBZMATEHE Table 11: Overseas franchised stores
Bhm5E S By market 2020 2019
HESn Southeast Asia 192 229
FFE South Korea 172 175
Hibms Other markets 19 21
P8 T 42 & Total stores 383 425

HENMBR ZHER L 27.0%E1.84EF T
(20194 :2.52(B/ 8 L) + RIRHFE201 951 AL Ak 5
ﬂﬁmﬁ$g%%T%’M&§ﬁ@ﬁ9ﬁ§§
FIADE -

e

FR- ﬁfFﬁEﬁF‘bﬁE B E B RATHFHR

RTMR EHE ° 15 LEMIFA S0 hN BE B T 5
%E%D%WL%TK 1E|EPEHHH‘% ERE® - BRP
REERASENEHMS -

Bt 3 R

RBETRYBER
BEFRNHESBI T - BRAREENAE - B

RITFERHER D AR ERSHE - AEE 28
AR ARG - R2020F12 A31H - 1K #R1T
ERE 2R MIRTTESB11.04EB (20194 -
9.948%7T) » IR A11.1% °

R2020F 12 H31H  AEEMNREBLELEAE1.8
(2019%F : 1.4) : RITEFHAE1.52BB L (20194 -
2.65(BB L) ° akﬁlsziﬁttﬂhz%ﬁ,uaﬁlﬂzi
e MIRTTHEHREEAR D RIIREE(R S 2 b R5T
H)A-0.4(2019%F : -0.4) °
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Wholesales to overseas franchisees decreased by 27.0% to HK$184
million (2019: HK$252 million), reflecting the retail sales decline under
the Covid-19 pandemic and Management’s prudent response to reduce
shipments.

During the year, we commenced both offline and online channels in
Kenya, Russia and Mauritius. Though initially modest, these newly
opened franchise markets will pay off in the medium to long run. The
developing economies are the Group’s focus markets.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

Although sales drastically declined during the year, the Group’s financial
position was robust due to the continuous reduction in operating costs,
trade receivables and inventory, and receipt of government grants. On
December 31, 2020, the cash and bank balance net of bank loans were
HK$1,104 million (2019: HK$994 million), representing an improvement
of 11.1%.

On December 31, 2020, the Group’s current ratio was 1.8 (2019: 1.4);
and bank borrowings were HK$152 million (2019: HK$265 million). The
Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total borrowings less cash
and bank balances to equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
-0.4 (2019: -0.4).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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Property, plant and equipment

During the year, capital expenditure was HK$30 million (2019: HK$76
million), significantly reduced owing to cautious store refurbishment
programs in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liability stems from the Middle East
operation’s acquisition in 2012 and 2015. We carry out annual
impairment tests and concluded that no impairment to goodwill was
necessary for the 2020 financial year.

Interests in joint ventures

Interest in joint ventures represents a 48.5% interest in the South Korea
joint venture. The change in HK$11 million during the year derived from
our profit share of HK$39 million and currency translation differences,
offset by dividends received.

Inventories

At the end of the year, Group inventories were HK$434 million (2019:
HK$548 million), representing a significant 20.8% decrease (1H: 7.6%).
Inventory turnover on cost increased by 15 days (1H: 46 days increase)
to 115 days, due primarily to lower sales.

Inventories at suppliers and franchisees are not our legal liabilities.
Nonetheless, the Group responsibly tracks their levels to ensure that

BIKF - LARBREKFETREBE - WRI12FR o they are not excessive as shown in Table 12.
®12 . ZBFE Table 12: System inventories
M12A31H
On December 31
(A BEETTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
rEBBEZTE Inventories owned by the Group 434 548
HEAS SN ERME AL N FAZEE Inventories held by 48.5% South Korea
joint venture 232 196
FREAENEEFEECFE Inventories held by franchisees in
Mainland China 50 73
HrER 2 2N E M Finished goods at suppliers 6 12
FAREEREZFE Inventories not owned by the Group 288 281
REEEHE Total system inventories 722 829

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Trade receivables and payables

The Group prudently manages its trade receivables, especially during
these uncertain times. Trade receivables turnover days for the year
were 51 days, up only by six days as compared to last year (2019: 45
days). Trade payables as at December 31, 2020 were HK$166 million
(2019: HK$139 million). Trade payables turnover days temporarily
increased by 19 days to 44 days during the year under arrangements
with our suppliers and are in line with industry practice (2019: 25 days).

Dividends

The Company adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018 (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy aims to return surplus cash
to its shareholders through dividends and share repurchase. In line
with the Dividend Policy, the Company has been paying a substantial
portion of its earnings as an ordinary dividend, the amount of which may
vary depending on cash on hand, future investment requirements and
working capital considerations.

Considering the economic outlook, the Group’s financial position,
its future expansion plans, and other factors, the Board has thus
recommended a final dividend of 6.9 HK cents per share (2019: 4.4 HK
cents per share) for the year ended December 31, 2020. With the interim
dividend of 3.1 HK cents per share (2019: 10.2 HK cents per share) paid
on September 18, 2020, the total 2020 dividend would amount to 10.0
HK cents per share (2019: 14.6 HK cents per share). Subject to our
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the final dividend will be payable on Friday, June 18, 2021,
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Thursday, June 3, 2021.

FURTHER ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On July 17, 2020, GI.PT Singapore Pte. Ltd (“GI.PT”), an indirect,
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Singapore, entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Acquisition
Agreement”) with P.T. Eses Entrindo (“PTEE”), pursuant to which GI.PT
has conditionally agreed to acquire, and PTEE has conditionally agreed
to sell, 375 shares (“Sale Shares”), representing 15% of the total issued
share capital of PT Giordano Indonesia, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Indonesia, at a consideration
of SG$4 million.

The above acquisition was completed on July 20, 2020. After the
acquisition of the Sales Shares, GI.PT holds 65.08% equity interest in PT
Giordano Indonesia.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, GI.PT also granted PTEE an
one-time exercise buy-back option to repurchase all (but not part) of
the Sale Shares from GI.PT for an agreed repurchased price of SG$4.6
million, representing a 15% buy-back premium, and such option will only
be exercisable until June 14, 2021 or such other date as PTEE and GI.PT
may agree in writing.

For details of the above acquisition, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated July 17, 2020.

OUTLOOK

2020 was the most challenging year in the Company’s history. Covid-19
has wreaked havoc on the global economy and severely hampered our
worldwide business, especially for physical stores. The Group has taken
a conservative approach to deal with the crisis by focusing on cash
management. As a result, our financial position remains robust despite a
year of turmoil. Management believes that such action is the foundation
for long term success.

In addition to the aggressive streamlining of the Group’s business,
reduction of costs and pursuance of concessions and subsidies,
Management is now proactively re-selecting competitive and resilient
suppliers with integrated platforms, multi-locations, and technology
investment to better mitigate risks, increase flexibility and respond more
quickly to fluctuations in the market.

2021 will continue to be challenging. While the mass roll-out of
vaccinations is expected to help power a global economic recovery, it
will take time to offset the damage caused by the pandemic. Although
Group sales have been improving, it is difficult to predict a sustained
sales rebound’s timing and strength.

Management believes that crisis also creates opportunities, which lie in
the digitization of operations, marketing, diversified and optimized sales
channels, as well as increased global footprint and reduced competition.

Hong Kong’s unabated high operating cost necessitates a hastened
online channel development pace to replace sales decline in offline sites.
Elsewhere, Taiwan will lead all markets in a quick recovery, followed by
a steady improvement in Mainland China, where online platforms and
franchise markets will be our development focus. The slump in our other
regions’ performance appears to have bottomed-out, and they are now
showing signs of a gradual recovery on a strengthened brand position for
pricing power and gross margin.
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We will see substantial sales growth in both proprietary and third-
party online channels in all regions, especially outside Mainland China.
A number of the Group’s longstanding business-to-consumer online
marketplace partners are now expanding their geographical reach
with increased localized investment and presence, of which the Group
intends to take full advantage. We will also continue to re-allocate
resources to our proprietary online services.

The Company forges ahead with its international business expansion,
especially in developing markets. We have experienced successes in
Kenya and Mauritius, where offline store openings have accelerated,
and we are gaining traction in the African continent. Having secured
a foothold in the South African and Zambian markets, the Group’s
dedicated business development team is currently in talks with
interested parties from various African countries. We hope to add a few
more markets both in and outside of the continent shortly.

The transformative organizational changes that we put into place more
than a year ago and the resilience that we have built into our business
and our people have enabled us to navigate the uncertainty with
tenacity. We are better prepared for any challenges that lie ahead, while
positioning ourselves to capitalize on the rebound.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

On December 31, 2020, the Group had approximately 6,400 employees
(December 31, 2019: 7,900). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages and generous, goal-oriented bonuses targeted to different
levels of staff. We provide senior managers with performance-based/
discretionary bonus schemes and share options to reward and retain
a high calibre leadership team. We also invest heavily in training in
sales and customer service, management, planning and leadership
development to maintain a skilled and motivated workforce. Currently,
the average age of our key people is 46, compared with 51 a year ago.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive), aged 68,
is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is also chairman of the
Management Committee and Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined the Group in
1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994, and was elected
Chairman of the Board of the Company on August 10 in the same year.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. LAU is currently an adjunct professor
of the College of Business at City University of Hong Kong (“CityU”) and
an external member of the School of Business Advisory Committee of
Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”). He was previously the chairman
of the Advisory Committee on Management and marketing at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”).

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
PolyU, a MBA degree from the University of Calgary in Canada and a
Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management and accounting experience in
both the private and public sectors in Canada before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 44, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on June 20, 2014 and April 1, 2015,
respectively. He is a member of the Management Committee of the
Company and also a director of various subsidiaries and a joint venture
of the Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for the Group’s operations to
meet budget and other financial goals, as well as establishing goals,
allocating resources and assessing policies to drive the Group’s
performance. Dr. CHAN has over 19 years of experience in the apparel
retailing and marketing business.

Dr. CHAN is a member of Certified Practicing Accountant Australia and
a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London. He holds a
Doctorate degree in Business Administration and Bachelor of Science in
Textile from PolyU and a Master of Arts in Global Business Management
and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and Dispute Resolution from CityU
and a Master of Accountancy from HKBU.
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 42, has been with
the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as an Executive
Director on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is currently the General
Counsel, Company Secretary and Group Human Resources Director
of the Company. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance, corporate
governance, human resources and talent development affairs of the
Group. Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Management Committee of the Company as well
as director and company secretary of various subsidiaries and a joint
venture of the Group. Currently, Mr. LOYND is also responsible for the
development of new overseas markets as well as brand and product
development.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the United Kingdom.
He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth University in the
United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in Arbitration and Alternative
Dispute Resolution (with distinction) and a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws, both from CityU. He possesses over 19 years of experience
in handling regulatory and compliance matters for listed companies,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and other commercial law
affairs, as well as labour and maritime law issues.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Jr (Non-executive Director), aged 41, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. Dr. CHENG
is the executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWD”). He is also an executive director
of New World Department Store China Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited and NWS Holdings Limited, and a non-executive director
of New Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Dr. CHENG was a non-executive director of
i-CABLE Communications Limited, a listed public company in Hong
Kong, up to his resignation on July 2, 2019. Dr. CHENG is a director
of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He is also
a director and executive chairman of New World China Land Limited.

Dr. CHENG is a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of The People’s
Republic of China, the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, the chairman of China Young Leaders Foundation and the
honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation. He was the vice-chairman of
the 11th and 12th committee of the All-China Youth Federation. He was
acknowledged by Fortune as one of “40 Under 40” global business stars
and a “Young Global Leader” by the World Economic Forum in 2012.
Dr. CHENG is a Justice of Peace appointed by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since 2016 and was made an
Officier in the Ordre des Arts et des Lettres by the French Government
in 2017. Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude)
from Harvard University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate
of Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. Dr.
CHENG worked in a major international bank prior to joining NWD in
September 2006 and has substantial experience in corporate finance.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 58, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. He is also as an
executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN has been in the jewellery
industry for 39 years.

Mr. CHAN currently a senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade
Association of China, a member of National Technical Committee 256
on Jewelry and National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry and Jade
of Standardization Administration of China, a member of the standing
council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-chairman of the
Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a vice
chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a general vice
chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong Province, a vice-chairman
of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade Industry’s Association and
a director of the Gemological Institute, China University of Geosciences
(Wuhan). He is also a member of the Liaoning Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (/Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 76, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Dr. BUTTIFANT was re-appointed as a
managing director of KLC Transactions Limited in January 2017, and
was also appointed as a managing director of KLC Corporate Advisory
and Recovery Limited from the same date.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the Hong Kong
Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
has been awarded an Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration
(Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in
February 2018.
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, Jr (Independent Non-executive Director), aged
69, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on April
26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-executive director of another
listed company, AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited. Mr. KWONG
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Physics and Mathematics and was awarded a Master of
Philosophy degree in Economics and Politics of Development by the
University of Cambridge, England. He has served in the Government of
Hong Kong for 27 years and held positions principally in the economic
and financial fields. He was the Secretary for the Treasury from 1995
to 1998, with responsibility for public finances, and Secretary for
Information Technology and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000,
with responsibility for information technology, telecommunications
and broadcasting. He left the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in March 2000 to join The Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive,
following the demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange, The
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and their associated clearing
houses and retired in April 2003. Since then, Mr. KWONG had served
as the managing director/executive director/non-executive director
of various companies, including Hsin Chong International Holdings
Ltd, Hongkong Sales (Int’l) Ltd, Macau Legend Development Ltd and
Chenavari Investment Managers (HK) Limited (now known as W2 Asset
Management (HK) Limited).

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and has
been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region.

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (/Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Professor HUANG
received his PhD from the University of Groningen (The Netherlands),
Master of Arts from Lancaster University (England), and Honours
Diploma from Lingnan University (Hong Kong). Currently, he is the
Professor and the Head of Department of Management, the Associate
Dean of the School of Business (Research & Postgraduate Studies), the
Programme Director of Master of Business Administration and Master of
Science in Business Management and the Associate Director of Centre
for Human Resources Strategy and Development of HKBU.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Since 2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre for
Work, Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has also been
appointed as a Visiting Chair Professor in Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics since 2012. He is Deputy Editor of the Management
and Organization Review, and a member of editorial board for Academy
of Management Journal and Human Relations. Professor HUANG’s
research interests include leadership, power, proactive and abnormal
work behaviors, employees’ well-being; cross-cultural psychology and
management issues in China. He has published more than 60 papers
in international journals including Academy of Management Journal,
Journal of Applied Psychology, Journal of International Business Studies,
Journal of Management, Leadership Quarterly, Journal of Organizational
Behavior, Human Relations and so forth.

Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD (/Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
March 7, 2019. She is also a member of both the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

She is the associate vice-president (Institutional Research and Strategic
Planning) of HKBU since May 13, 2020. As Associate Vice-President
(Institutional Research and Strategic Planning), Dr. LLOYD plays an
instrumental role in supporting the advancement of HKBU, particularly in
the implementation of the Institutional Strategic Plan (2018-2028). She
leads efforts to spearhead the use of analytics and business intelligence
to foster a culture of data-informed decision-making, and support a
number of planning-related initiatives.

She was a director of International Affairs of PolyU, Dr. LLOYD oversaw
the strategic development and coordination of international partnerships,
international recruitment, mobility opportunities, and institutional
relations. As Director of Institutional Research and Planning of PolyU,
she steered strategic planning, performance monitoring, university
rankings, business intelligence, and analytics.

Prior to joining academia, she worked in management consultancy in
Hong Kong. Her previously consulting engagements cover strategy,
business process review and improvement, performance management
frameworks and change management for both private and public sector
organizations in Hong Kong and Asia. Currently, Dr. LLOYD serves on
a number of advisory boards and steering committees pertaining to
international higher education.
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The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework. The Board
firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence are essential towards upholding the interests of all
stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board has adopted the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as the
Corporate Governance Code of the Company.

During the year of 2020, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code Provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.2, which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance and
reviews the corporate governance standards of the Company. It also
decides on matters relating to annual and interim results, notifiable
transactions, appointments or re-appointments of Directors, dividends
and accounting policies. The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. Save for the power reserved by the Board or other
Board committees, the strategies and plans as decided by the Board are
implemented by Management. Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the day-to-day operation of the Group.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees:

o Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updates;

o Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report; and

° Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of disclosure,
including assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of
price-sensitive information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major
decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their duties, the
Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors and procedures are in place to allow the Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition to maintain
a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and experience to
ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of the Company’s
businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 22
to 26 of this annual report.

In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition, a
Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are also in
place to support the Board and the Board Committees. During the year
of 2020 and up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board,
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are set out below. The Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee are discussed in the relevant sections of this
report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B WE B AER LA

29



30

TEERRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERZEES REZEE FHEES
Audit Nomination Remuneration
EEEgRE Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
HTES Executive Directors
2B fEtE =+ Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter — C M
(FRFTEABE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)

PR=EE T Dr. CHAN Ka Wai — — _
BEX A Mr. Mark Alan LOYND — — —
FHTES Non-executive Directors
EERIE L up Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Jp — — —
PRiEE L4 Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong — — -
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
iR IELT Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT C M M
BEELA 6Bs, up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, JP M — —
=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) M M C
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD 14  Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD M M —
et - Notes:
C FHEFZESHFE Cc Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M FHEEZSESHIKE M Member of the relevant Board Committees
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BEXHAM R - EBERE TR REER
HMBAREEETEINTESTREAKREIKE
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships with each other except that Dr. CHENG
Chi Kong serves on the board of directors of New World Group and
subsidiaries as executive director and serves on the board of directors
of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive director; and Mr.
CHAN Sai Cheong serves on the board of directors of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited as executive director.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of diversity perspectives when assessing
potential candidates for the Board.
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According to the Company’s Bye-Laws adopted on May 24, 2019 (the
“Bye-Laws”), any new Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) appointed by the Board is subject to retirement and re-election
by shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”) (in the case of an addition to their number)
following their appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the number
nearest to, but not exceeding one-third) of the Directors (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) will retire from office by rotation,
and every Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director)
including those appointed for a specific term is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of three
years and will continue in office thereafter subject to termination by not
less than one month’s prior notice in writing by either the Non-executive
Director or the Company. In addition, all Non-executive Directors are
required to retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the AGM at least once every three years pursuant to the
Bye-Laws and Code Provision A.4.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key factors to
the successful implementation of business plans. The Board believes
that it is beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the role of the
Chairman and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the Chairman
should be exempt from this arrangement at the present time.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one Independent
Non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Although two of our Independent Non-executive Directors; namely, Dr.
Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, have served as our
Board members for more than nine years and that may be relevant to the
determination of independence, it is well-recognized that an individual’s
independence cannot be determined solely on the basis of a set period
of time. In assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee consider the
character and judgement demonstrated by the Directors’ commitment
and contribution to the Board during their years of service and other
relevant factors.

We believe that the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
served more than nine years; namely, Dr. BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG,
provide invaluable expertise, experience, continuity and stability to
the Board, despite their length of service, and does not affect their
exercises of independent judgement. The Company has benefited from
their contribution and the valuable insights derived from their in-depth
knowledge of the Company and from their work and experience outside
of the Company. Dr. BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG have expressed
objective views and given independent guidance to the Company over
the past years.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Code Provision A.4.3 provides that if an independent non-executive
director serves more than nine years, his/her further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Dr. BUTTIFANT has served as an Independent Non-executive Director
for more than nine years since March 3, 1995. To comply with Code
Provision A.4.3, Dr. BUTTIFANT retired voluntarily and was re-elected as
Director at the AGM held on May 24, 2019.

Mr. KWONG has served as an Independent Non-executive Director
for more than nine years since April 26, 2004. To comply with Code
Provision A.4.3, Mr. KWONG retired voluntarily and was re-elected as
Director at the AGM held on May 22, 2020.

Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional meetings
are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of
the Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any business
that they wish to discuss or propose at such meetings. Notices of
regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at least 14 days
before meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. Furthermore, all Directors have access to the
Company Secretary who is also the Group’s General Council for advice
and services to ensure that board procedures and applicable law, rules
and regulations are adhered to. Agenda and accompanying Board
papers are circulated to all Directors and other attendees not less than
three days before the Board or committee meetings to ensure timely
access to relevant information. Minutes of the Board meetings and
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection by all Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-
Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of a
resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board meeting
is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory materials will be
provided to the Directors at the same time when a resolution in writing is
circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, five Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly operating updates and discuss the
Group’s strategies, policies and budgets going forward, as well as other
business. In addition, eight sets of resolutions in writing were passed.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and the
AGM during the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:

HER/ EERY

Attendance/Number of Meetings

2888 ENZEESE RAZE0EE FMZSeed BRRAEXE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
BEENZ Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
BIES Executive Directors
fEEET Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(TEFITHEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 5/5 TEA N/A 1/1 1/1 11
RR&RT Dr. GHAN Ka Wai 5/5 TR N/A TEA NA TR N/A 11
BEEE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 5/5 TR N/A T NA @A N/A 1
FHITES Non-executive Directors
BHEAEL P Dr. CHENG Chi Kong J» 5/5 TEE NA TER NA TEA N/A 1
Bt E L E Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 5/5 @A NA TEA NA AR N/A il
BUkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
2HAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 5/5 4/4 1/1 1/1 1
BEERE cas o Mr. KWONG Ki Chi Ggs, Jp 5/5 4/4 TER NA AEA NA 11
et Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 5/5 3/4 11 11 11
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD f&1  Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD 5/5 4/4 il AR N/A 11
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EEEI
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MEEZMBEREE - RABABRHREINES
RHUHEZEOMEERXXG  BEZFEFAODAL
HEREFMBENMERE -
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the Independent
Non-executive Directors may also meet without the presence of the
Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package to each newly
appointed Director to ensure that they are sufficiently aware of their
responsibilities and obligations as director.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the Company
Secretary reports from time-to-time the latest changes and development
of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory regime to the Directors with reading materials relating to the
latest development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.
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During the year of 2020, all Directors participated in the following
trainings:

HERBERER
BIEEEE N E ESRECHR
MR ER WHE aE

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
Reading conferences relevant

regulatory to the business or
EEHE Name of Directors updates directors’ duties
BITES Executive Directors
2 iEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter v X

(FRFITEARH) (Chairman and Chief Executive)

BREEIET Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v X
BB Mr. Mark Alan LOYND V4 X
FHITES Non-executive Directors
EERIE L o Dr. CHENG Chi Kong JP v X
PRt & S A Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong v X
BAFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
F2iENEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v X
BPE LA 6Bs, uP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi 68s, JP v X
=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v X
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD &+ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD v/ X
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Directors' and officers' liabilities insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance in line with the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code Provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and deep
understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provides the Group with strong leadership, allowing for more effective
planning and execution of long term business strategies and enhances
efficiency in decision-making.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances in
place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main elements
of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise six of nine of the Board;

° Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

o Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

° Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Internal Audit Department any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk Management
and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously
supervise the Group’s management and effectively control key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process and discussing with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit. It is also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
information, overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the interim and
final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. To this end, the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s internal and external auditors. Its terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchange
and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”).
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The
Director of Group Finance, the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee, who is also the Company Secretary, the Internal Audit
Department together with the Internal Audit Advisor, Deloitte Advisory
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Deloitte”) (collectively the “IA team”), and
representatives of the external auditor of the Company are expected to
attend the meetings. At the discretion of the Committee, other members
of management may also be invited to attend its meetings.

In 2020, the Audit Committee held four meetings. During the meetings,
the Audit Committee alongside the external auditor reviewed the audit
strategy summary, the final results for the year ended December 31,
2019, the interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and
other matters. The Audit Committee also reviewed the activities of the
IA team and its internal audit report, and discussed with Management
the report’s findings and recommendations on the Group’s business
operations. Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management,
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure its
effectiveness, with particular attention to the adequacy of resources, the
qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting staff, as well as their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place during
the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising of four
Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, the Chairman of
the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and to identify individuals
qualified to become Board members. It is also responsible for assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are
then put forward for consideration and where appropriate, adoption by
the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the HKEX.
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In 2020, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the
board diversity policy, to review the structure, size, composition and
skills matrix of the Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors
to the Board and to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

he Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company will also take into consideration
its own business model and specific needs from time-to-time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. In view of this,
a board diversity policy has been adopted by the Board in 2013, the
Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including, but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect from
January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination Committee has
adopted a nomination policy which sets out the selection criterias and
nomination procedures and process when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board composition in line with the Company’s strategic
objectives;

° Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee
shall consider suitability of a candidate pursuant to the Listing
Rules, the nomination policy and Board diversity policy, and the
independence of an individual for the position of independent non-
executive director; and

° Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members taking into
account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy from time-
to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu).

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two models
suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for reviewing and determining the remuneration, compensation and
benefits of Directors and senior management. When the remuneration
package of an individual Director is under review, the Director in question
is required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the HKEX.

In 2020, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to review and
approve the remuneration of the Chairman and Chief Executive and to
review and approve the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. It also passed one written resolution
approving the grant of share options to individual Executive Directors
(excluding the Chairman and Chief Executive) and senior management.
No member of Remuneration Committee should be involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company works to
ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with the Company’s
objectives and performance. The Company takes into consideration
a number of relevant factors in determining its remuneration
policy, including the salaries paid by comparable companies, job
responsibilities, duties and scope, employment conditions in the Group,
market practices and the financial and non-financial performance of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the fees paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and likely
workload of the relevant Directors and other employment conditions in
the Company to ensure that the Independent Non-executive Directors
and the Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, (including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors), is composed
of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable cash
incentives, long-term incentives and retirement schemes, as discussed
below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits are
regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local standards
and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Directors and senior management are reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee. In addition, the Company operates sales and
business-related incentive schemes to motivate certain staff such as
front-line sales associates to achieve specific sales or other business
targets of the Company.

The Company also operates share option schemes to provide long-term
incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team. The
details of the schemes, together with information on options exercised
and outstanding in respect of the Directors and employees as at
December 31, 2020 under the schemes, are set out in the Share Option
Information section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are set out in
Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 123 to 125 of this annual
report.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s businesses to the Management Committee. The
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and comprises
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors together
with one senior management representative.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective control of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, particularly
in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, and, as such, monitors the effectiveness on an
ongoing basis.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or disposition; control over capital
expenditure; maintain proper and accurate accounting records and
enhance the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and
effectiveness of operations and compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize rather than eliminate
the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

o An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

° Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management and
internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct biannual
risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

° Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

° Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;

° A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Internal Audit Department which will
refer the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for further
action; and

° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the review
of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee currently comprises four members, including
the General Counsel, the Director of Group Finance, the Internal Audit
manager and senior management representative. During the year,
the Company has engaged Deloitte, an external professional firm, as
our Internal Audit Advisor to assist the internal audit function of the
Company. The Committee reviews all material controls in accordance
with the Code Provisions on risk management and internal control
systems of the CG Code, and reports to the Board twice a year. The Risk
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board for providing
assurance on managing and monitoring the systems of risk management
and internal controls. The Committee has evaluated and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function as well as their
training programmes and budget for the year, and reported to the Board
that in all material respects the systems of risk management and internal
control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was sufficient,
appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the IA
team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and internal
controls of the Group.

The keys tasks of IA team include:

o Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

° Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

° Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #
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Adopting a risk-based approach, IA team implements the audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee and Management, which is based
on a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes independent and
objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an internal
audit report to Management. Both in-house IA team and Internal Audit
Advisor reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on major
findings, corrective actions and responses from Management. The Audit
Committee has free and direct access to IA team without reference from
the Chairman or Management.

During the year of 2020, both in-house IA team and Internal Audit
Advisor issued the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee and
Management, which covered significant business processes and
activities of the Group. It worked with Management to establish action
plans to address any identified control weaknesses. Post-audit reviews
were performed to ensure those agreed actions have been implemented
as intended.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time-to-time. Having
made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year
ended December 31, 2020.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs the securities
transactions of those employees who may possess or have access to
inside information. The said code covers areas such as prohibitions and
conduct in the dealing of the Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict
of interests and confidentiality of the Company’s information, etc. All
the specified employees are reminded of the compliance of the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions by Specified Employees every six
months.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial performance
and cash flows for that period. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently, and that where judgment has been
applied and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 62 to 70 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(U B # T 8lr) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
FEERY (BEEEHBER - Non-audit services (included tax-related
BTHEEEZRER REMEBRRS) matters, certain agreed-upon
procedures work and other reporting
services) 1 1
EEEZ Statutory audit 5 5
“E Total 6 6
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary since
September 2013. He is also an employee and the General Counsel of
the Group. Mr. LOYND is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and Chief Executive on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in 2020.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Bye-Laws during the year. If any
amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the relevant law
governing the Company, the Company will propose the amendment for
shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the major
emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The Group’s
senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with the
investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 12 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2020.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results
on the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
Annual and interim reports, Stock Exchange filings, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an especially important
forum. In order to encourage and facilitate shareholder attendance at its
AGM, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior notice.
To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate issue is
proposed under a separate resolution.
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Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on pages 171 and 172 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5, the Company has adopted a policy
with regard to the declaration of dividends on November 8, 2018. Such
policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the shareholders through
the payment of dividends, which is subject to the Company’s capacity
to pay from accumulated and future earnings, cash availability and future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from time-
to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends.

The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are dependent
upon, among other things, the dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend on such subsidiaries’
distributable profits, operating results, financial condition, capital
expenditure plans and other factors. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and the Bye-Laws.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends, subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the form,
frequency and amount will depend upon the operations and earnings,
capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions and other factors of and affecting the Group.

Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s view on the financial and cash
flow position of the Group prevailing at the time of its adoption. The
Board will review the policy from time-to-time and may adopt changes as
appropriate at the relevant time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary or at the registered office of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the Company’s registered office and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong as set out in the “Corporate Information” section
of this annual report for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at a
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20)
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On
Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

Hong Kong, March 11, 2021
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands.
Although targeting different market segments, the brands all strive to
deliver excellent quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by brand for
the year ended December 31, 2020 is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 21 of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 3 to
the financial statements. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review. The outlook
of the Group’s business is discussed in the Management Discussion
and Analysis section on pages 20 to 21 of this annual report. Certain
financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
our financial disclosures are set out on pages 71 to 162 as well as in
the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An account of the
Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders and discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages ESG.1 to ESG.
44 of this annual report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.

Compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
with the support and assistance of the legal and company secretarial
department.
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The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as well as their subsidiary legislation,
codes and guidelines are the principal sources of our compliance
obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong
Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the
assistance of external law firms and professional advisers to manage our
legal and compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in laws
and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also regularly
remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 162 of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 3.1 HK cents per share was paid to shareholders
of the Company on September 18, 2020.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 6.9 HK cents per share
for the year ended December 31, 2020. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend
will be payable on June 18, 2021 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on June 3, 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2020, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$551 million (2019: HK$157 million).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2020 are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #



TEMBER

AEEBRETRMBRFE XS  BEERABRE
HNAFRFE2ERFEIA -

N

ARBZBARAFERN 2 EHFBRRUBIHRE
FiEE25 o

ROBEEERE

REARRPY EEDELBERIAE  EaRE
SR DI AI IR R X SRR o

fR R 88 15 3R

BRANEIR [BAEER | — B AR R B
2O ARRBENFARFEERKITLHFE
EAR B SR 8 1o i S & Sk R BB AR DRI BT R AD
SR TE AN A B RT LA 6p % G & S R SRR A A B
1TRAD -

TEHREBREF

RAFER  AEEXRHERMENBERERD
DEIT

BEE
BEAMER 42%
AR EFREAS T 68%

RAFER  AEEERAREFPAEMNHERDE
7 10% °

MEBEEERETMETBEALRESTRNES

RARBEETRABRE% 2 EMRRERAEE
hAAREHRARER 2 I Bk -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

EEEHRES
DIRECTORS’' REPORT

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against having such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed under
Share Option Information in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 42%
Five largest suppliers combined 68%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$20,000 (2019: HK$244,366).

BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans for the year are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statement.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, JP
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(2) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. CHAN Ka Wai,
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) and Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 22 to 26 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the interim report of
the Company for the period ended June 30, 2020 are set out below:

A EREs
Name of Director Changes in information
PREEE L 720205  RIBLHARBEFFTRELZGE RS B RETU A MPEEFZHREFRBE LM -

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Dr. CHAN became a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London and obtained a

Master of Laws in Arbitration and Dispute Resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2020.

Bk EXPINEEE SN - AART]Z2020F Hi¥kE A H
VAZE - 1RIE R BIE13.61IBNIGETRECLES
[EEFISY B EH -

BEERBEL
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ARRE CREMERIN MR LLZIRBAL -
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of 2020 interim report of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their respective
close associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

BEx=ps

FEEEREA
Number of ordinary shares held
PTETE#ER
(B BABERB L
(HaE1k2) (K13%3)
BARER Derivative Approximate
(Hiz1) interests &5t percentage of

Name of Directors Personal interests (share options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)

2)|[50 f 27,518,000 - 27,518,000 1.74%

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

BRE AR 600,000 10,700,000 11,300,000 0.72%

CHAN Ka Wai

TEEN 236,000 9,064,000 9,300,000 0.59%

Mark Alan LOYND

ez - Notes:

(1) BERD IS EFERE AN BN #ER - (1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owners.

2) PTET AEm 2 R G TIIEAR R I RPN R EIm (2) Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to the share

RTEFZBRE BHENBINEFHEIBREZE
1705 -

(38)  1ER2020% 1231 H KA A2 #7178 71,677,630,5184%

HE -
B R EESN - 2020912 8381H AR AEE
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option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out on pages 163 to 170
of this annual report.

(3) Based on 1,677,630,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their close respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and material related
party transactions are respectively disclosed under section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 57 to 59 and in Note 36
to the financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on pages
163 to 170 to this annual report, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any business, apart
from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, as
at December 31, 2020, the following persons (other than Directors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

SORBEIT - required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
REQXR RGO RAEBERG ZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
BREREIL
RS EREE (HizF2)
Number of Approximate
TERRERE 5% ordinary percentage of
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held shareholding
(Note 2)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) ZEHER 2 R 384,830,000 24.39%
Limited (#/z# Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) ZPEHEE 2 R 384,830,000 24.39%
Limited (4/z# Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited REEE R 384,830,000 24.39%
(Ktz Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
BERBEEBR)ARAG([EAREZER]) ZEEER#ER 384,830,000 24.39%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
("CTF") (K#7# Note 1)
AREBREABRAR([ARBRIEBAL XEGNEAEZ #R 384,830,000 24.39%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
("CTFN") (KtzF Note 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited EnEEA 384,830,000 24.39%

(“Sino Wealth™)

ikt -

(1)

@

R20204 12431 H + Sino Wealth## £ 384,830,000/ 7
REIR Y - AABAEREAZEHE © MEAXELEA
Rl B A B 12#) - Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited % Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited5 5ll#F 5 #749.0% K& 46.7 %
##25 » fIChow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8l 5 B A 15 AL #
F#181.0% 325 » [tk Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited * Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings ll) Limited -
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited « B A &AL K B A 15 (22
A #1823 5Sino Wealth AT #5282 Al (7 FE B #E s

1ZR2020%F 1231 H A X A2 #7717 1,677,630,56184%

EL

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

Beneficial owner

Notes:

(1) As at December 31, 2020, 384,830,000 shares of the Company were held by
Sino Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn controlled by CTF.
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1I)
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited respectively, which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in CTF and
accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 1l) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTF and CTFN is deemed to
have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

2) Based on 1,677,630,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2020, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year, which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following continuing
connected transactions, which are subject to the announcement
and reporting requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the following continuing
connected transactions. When conducting the continuing connected
transactions during the year, the Company has followed the relevant
internal leasing evaluation policy.

(1) Pre-existing Agreements

Members of the Group and members of New World Department
Store China Limited (“NWDS”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“NWDS Group”) have in the past entered into leasing agreements
which include those that completed during the calendar year and
those that remain in force as immediately prior to the execution
of the master leasing agreement (“Master Leasing Agreement”)
on December 29, 2017 regarding the leasing of premises and/or
concessionaire counters in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) by members of the Group from members of the NWDS
Group (the “Pre-existing Leasing Agreements”). Most of the Pre-
existing Leasing Agreements comprise of short-term leases of one
year or less, and as all of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements are
subject to ordinary and market rental terms based on calculation
of turnover rent, (which in turn is based on a percentage of the
respective monthly turnover), the monthly payable amount to be
made by the Group to NWDS Group will vary month by month.
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Renewed Master Leasing Agreement

On December 31, 2019, the Company and NWDS entered into a
renewed master leasing agreement (the “Renewed Master Leasing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded their mutual
understanding to enter into future lease agreements with respect
to the lease of premises and concessionaire counters in the PRC
from members of the NWDS Group; and (i) set out the underlying
principles of such future leases for a term commencing from
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2022.

The Renewed Master Leasing Agreement will expire on December
31, 2022 and will be automatically renewed for successive periods
of 3 years thereafter, subject to, among others, the Listing Rules,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Renewed Master
Leasing Agreement.

As Sino Wealth, a substantial shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 24.39% interest in the Company. Sino Wealth is
wholly-owned by CTFN, which is in turn controlled by CTF. Also,
NWDS is a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (“NWD”) and Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is
a controlling shareholder of NWD as well as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CTF; and and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited is a subsidiary of CTF; accordingly, the NWDS Group is
a connected person of the Company and the transactions under
the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements, all future and renewals of
the existing leasing agreements contemplated under the Renewal
of Master Leasing Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

For details of the Pre-existing Agreement and Master Leasing
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
December 29, 2017.

For details of the Renewed Master Leasing Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated December 31, 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2020
are HK$15 million and HK$5 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the turnover rent paid or

payable to NWDS Group by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1.28 million, which is within the annual cap of HK$5 million.
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Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s independent auditor
was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions stated in the above paragraphs in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

BREEHR SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
RS2 BERARNARBRERKREEARNZE A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details of the
FFFIBENAFRF163HEE170A ° movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out

on pages 163 to 170 of this annual report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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AR D  WARNARBRRAEEE - ARALR
BRI 2 F BN

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the the year ended December 31, 2020, a total of 870,000
ordinary shares were repurchased by the Company on the Stock
Exchange. As at the date of this annual report, all the repurchased
shares were cancelled by the Company. The Directors believe that the
repurchases were made to reflect the Company’s confidence in its long-
term business prospects and would ultimately benefit the Company
and create value for the shareholders of the Company. Details of the
repurchases of shares of the Company were as follows:

BEaE

(HMNBrBARAT)

BEROEE BREEER BREEER Aggregate

BE A% Number of Shares Highest price Lowest price purchase price

Month of repurchase repurchased paid per Share paid per Share (before expenses)

20206 A 870,000 HK$1.15 HK$1.13 HK$995,100

June 2020

PBRERE PUBLIC FLOAT

RABER » REBEARAANBEZ AREHME
FHEZBERT  ARFRERETRNZER - #

FREADRIHIRE -

TEER

ARRBAHERFBRFZEEER  UWHERES:
AEREBRIRERRER - BRARTEEE
AERHNER MR AFRFETAEF48H X

ERBEE] -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance so as to ensure better transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interests. Information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 27 to 48 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Please refer
to Note 2 to the financial statements for details of the retirement benefits
provided to employees of the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market standards.
Particulars of the emoluments of Directors on a named basis for the year
are set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the Company and
to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed for
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 11, 2021
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to
162, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2020;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability
° Valuation of inventory

° Impairment of retail store assets

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BREITSE
Key Audit Matter

BMNESTNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEREREHAHEEENGE
Goodwill impairment and valuation of put
option liability

BREEHUBHREN F24 2] - H:3371[H L
ROAHIER B 0 BAtHEFRIME2)) - 2(s) RE
EEaT A KA B 89T 4(0) K 4(v) -

Refer to note 24 “Gooawill”, note 31 “Put Option
Liability”, Accounting Policies notes 2(j), 2(s) and
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in
notes 4(ii) and 4(v) to the consolidated financial
statements.

SITREHEEABRNEEBHAGS41EET XK
BRI RES (AT [ RER]) -
HBABBE RO BERSELBT(ATEME R
SEAET])  ETEEREAR - B0 K
RO E N R R EBE ISR R RA N
FlertEm - RLHEEENSEEEBERAN
N BETITR - R2020F12 A1 B E S EH ARG
HEBaERBIERT -

Goodwill of HK$541 million on the consolidated
balance sheet arose from the acquisitions of the
Giordano Middle East businesses (the “Middle East
Business”), which has been allocated to a group
of cash generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose
of goodwill impairment testing. In addition, put
options exist over the remaining interests held by
the non-controlling shareholders of the Middle
East Business. The put option liability is stated at
fair value at each balance sheet date, and as at
December 31, 2020, amounted to HK$81 million.

W B R BR S TS TS 7 B ) A U [ < BB AT M B R0 B
EEENHEYUNEREREMNBESRENSE
B WRARBEREHENANRGTE -

The assessments of the recoverable amount of the
goodwill and the put option liability valuation for
the Middle East Business were based on the same
cash flow projections prepared by management,
using fair value less costs to sell calculations.

BB TZEREeARGERL S REREMRF
REBHARREEMENEE G -

We focused on these balances because the
valuation models involve significant judgements
made by management about the future results of
the Middle East Business.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BB EEREREMERERARABNMGEERE - MERREMG
EEGHEE MR GEGEER - B ARESGHIENEN
TEEETHER - AR BMESELEREREE ZAINEEETL
B AR EREENTEEE -

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology, the process and controls
by which the models were drawn up and compared the underlying
inputs to the latest Board approved budget. We also compared historic
actual results to those budgeted to assess the quality of management’s
forecasting.

BMEERIFTERHANBRERERA - FilZ
We have focused on the key assumptions and inputs used in the
calculations, particularly:

. KANRBABRFEE  WRBEEARMITERBERKEENFI L
BERNE AR AEZEHREEITIME
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

. AR FEHENREXEBASEAS INGRIERE  ARAELERE
WR AR REBEENZOID - KM ERTEGEREIEN
BRI T ETEA SRS MBI R RSB RIEAEITT
LE#R o
the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to be the key
drivers of the valuation of the Middle East Business. We compared
management’s assumptions of these against external retail
industry outlook reports and country specific economic growth
forecasts from different sources.
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BMNESTNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEME

Valuation of inventory

FRHE U BHREMNF17[FE] - S5FHETH
Wiit2(m) R EZ it idat KA+ IR iE4(v)
Refer to note 17 “Inventories” and Accounting
Policies note 2(m) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in note 4(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.

R2020F 12 A1 R ERER FIF EHRFER4.3418
BT o FEERKAE]ZRFENREENNTRE
HPBHREK - RETEFEENAEHR FEHUM
it BRTRER & & B & PR O A AR R B2 LA
Ko 22 P mm R AN 5 5 3 5 P T B T 55 R 1 B AT ER
REOTTEMBLFTE -

The net inventory balance at December 31, 2020
was HK$434 million. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value of inventory in the apparel industry is difficult
to estimate and could be impacted by changes in
economic conditions in places where the Group
operates, as well as changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in
market conditions.

BMETFZES A RMGHITEFE
TEEA BRI B 7R E 7 HE -
We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgement in estimating the
amount of inventory provisions required.

EHCEET
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We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and performed our own
sensitivities, where we flexed the key assumptions within a reasonable
range, to determine at what level the headroom in the model would be
eliminated.

ERBAFE
e
We were satisfied that management’s judgements and assumptions
used in the valuation were supportable, based on the available evidence
obtained.

B HPRAEEENHERRANHGNRREREEE

HMERTHREREBEEAFTFEAE
IR BSAR T -

We obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in estimating the net realisable value of inventories and
periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence.

SRR ERENREENEFRME

BPARATZEELZRTIAZH»ENFERSE  UERGFEHHMER
BRHEEN - WARBERANENE T AL EELL A E#MT o
We tested a sample of inventory items categorised into different
seasons of the year to gain comfort over the categorisation and ageing
of inventory and recalculated, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of the provision percentage applied.

RB2ERLHELR BHAHEEEUENBZEIAKTERTKNE
AREER - U D FEERENAEN - RMEKFFEEEEAR
HEREERIHEHETLR - U EFEEEN GBI -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for the
remaining inventories, with reference to historic sales experience.
We also assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provisions by
comparing a sample of inventory items to actual post year end sales.

ERRAFE  BMRAREEEBNHERKANRRERGERIF -
We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
inventory provisions were supportable based on the available evidence.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BREITSE
Key Audit Matter

BMNESTNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

SEEREERE

Impairment of retail store assets

FRHE VI BRENF22[ % - #EEREE] -
Wade3[EFA#EERBERRE] 25 BEF I
iF2h) REZ S E KA a9Ffata(y) -

Refer to note 22 “Property, plant and equipment”,
Note 23 “Right-of-use assets” and Accounting
Policies note 2(h) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in note 4(v) to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEEBENERCEERE(BEME - HBERER
WA REEENREREBESRIR1.35EET
K887REL)  EMBRBENESR  HEES
BRI ERTE °

The Group has material operational assets
(including property, plant and equipment of
HK$135 million and right-of-use assets of
HK$887 million before impairment) which are
subject to impairment tests in the event of trading
performance is below expectation.

EEEHHRBAETR  ZEEMHEAMRRESR
BEAAEACRER  WLEETZEEREEN
AREEHE - hFAE SR BEBRARENEKRA
& BEBAER  EMERERE - HE20204F
12A31 B ILFEDHERYE - MeSRREBALER
REEZFREBEED I A/SBEEITR0.65EE
IT o

Management prepared discounted cash flow
analysis on the retail stores with impairment
indicators. The recoverable amounts were
determined based on the value-in-use calculations
of these retail stores. These calculations involved
significant management judgement with respect
to the assumptions used including the long-term
revenue growth rate, gross margin and discount
rate. Based on the impairment tests performed, net
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets amounted to HK$5 million and
HK$65 million, respectively, and were recognized
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

BKMBEIZEHER A TEEMEERBERY
NEZ AT R -

We focused on this area because of the significant
judgement and estimates used in determining the
impairment of the retail store assets.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BHEETHREREEHANLBERETR ZEASTESH R EHLIRER
EREBEARFIEHEABRIES -

We obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in identifying of relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and the preparation of value-in-use calculations

BAEE TERERAZEETEZNBEE M -
We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used by
management.

BEBMEREBRITEND  HReRERAEEHNBEERE
MEGEETHER NATSHARAENERRERBITHSERLNT
- AR EEERACAREENSEN - M hEREEFER
BRANBERRE -

We evaluated the key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
by applying our knowledge of the business and industry, comparing the
cash flow forecasts with the historical actual performance results of the
stores, performing market research and based on our understanding
of latest market information and conditions and assessing the
reasonableness of discount rate adopted by management.

ERREFE  BARREEEBNGESKANRRERGIEERXF -
We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
impairment assessments to be reasonable based on the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Tse Ming Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 11, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

& OF R B &

HZE2020%12A31HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

(&R (E1E) ~BFIS - (In HK$ million, g3

UEBEE TAEN) except (loss)/earnings per share) Note 2020 2019
HER Sales 5 3,122 4,852
HEXA Cost of sales 7 (1,386) (2,008)
EF Gross profit 1,736 2,846
HEA R EMWE - EEE Other income and other gains, net 6 183 83
DHE R Distribution expense 7 (1,800) (2,300)
THEA Administrative expense 7 (224) (232)
e (BR),EF Operating (loss)/profit 7 (105) 397
MEER Finance expense 8 (41) (55)
JE(EE ERB) & T Share of profit of joint ventures 20 39 63
TS RLAT(EE), a5 (Loss)/profit before income taxes 5 (107) 405
PRAS TR Income taxes 11 (1) (116)
KEERFAEHZ(EE) %% (Loss)/profit after income taxes for the year (108) 289
JEML - Attributable to:

RATRRR Shareholders of the Company (112) 230

FEFE S MR A Non-controlling interests 4 59

(108) 289

KRR IEN 2 B (Loss)/earnings per share attributable to

(E518),/ &7 shareholders of the Company 12

EARCGENM) Basic (HK cents) (7.1) 14.6

BEOBM) Diluted (HK cents) (7.1) 14.6
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BHHES WRE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2020F 12 A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Htet
(A B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2020 2019
KEERFAEBHZ(EE) %% (Loss)/profit after income taxes for the year (108) 289
Hiima W - Other comprehensive income:
KO EFHIEEIEEE AR Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
REMGERFZ AR BERE Fair value change on financial asset at fair value
JEREEAAER through other comprehensive income 19 2 (1)
BINHB AR AERR R Exchange adjustments on translation of overseas
DARNIGRE 7 EH AR subsidiaries, joint ventures and branches 26 6)
TEEHRS (BE) WH Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (84) 282
FEqh - Attributable to:
ZA/NGT| S Shareholders of the Company (83) 217
FEPES R = Non-controlling interests (1) 65

(84) 282

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

B Z12A31H
M et As at 31 December

(X BEETREL) (In HK$ million) Note 2020 2019
BE ASSETS
REEE Current assets
Be MIRTERE Cash and bank balances 14 1,256 1,259
RERERE AN ERE REE Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss 15 - 200
JFEE U2 B R % L b SR Trade and other receivables 16 395 353
FE Inventories 17 434 548
et RASBENTE Leasehold land and rental

prepayments 18 2 6
AU ] TSR X Income tax recoverable 7 -
B EEMALE Total current assets 2,094 2,366
EREEE Non-current assets
REMEAERSRANEREEZSREE Financial asset at fair value through

other comprehensive income 19 3 5
RERREANERE SREE Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss 15 28 28
et RASBENTE Leasehold land and rental

prepayments 18 - 5
HEZS Rental deposits 97 181
BENAER Interest in joint ventures 20 549 538
REYHE Investment properties 21 23 23
VI - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 22 130 171
FREEE Right-of-use assets 23 822 1,279
[EES Goodwill 24 541 546
EETIBEE Deferred tax assets 32 96 54
EREEELE Total non-current assets 2,289 2,830
EEHSTE Total assets 4,383 5,196
EERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
REBE Current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 29 52 265
JE <t BR 0 N E At FE - 3k Trade and other payables 30 518 692
HERE Lease liabilities 23 427 536
RERLEEEE Put option liabilities 31 81 59
FERTERIZHR Income tax payables 100 100
RENEEAE Total current liabilities 1,178 1,652
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EHEEREXR(A)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

HZ=12A31H
k23 As at 31 December

(X BEETHEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2020 2019
FkRBERE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 29 100 -
HERE Lease liabilities 23 340 572
BELEHIBAR Deferred tax liabilities 32 134 125
ERBEEHEEE Total non-current liabilities 574 697
EEHE Total liabilities 1,752 2,349
WA HE Capital and reserves
& A Share capital 25 79 79
1 Reserves 28 2,282 2,492
F R AR B, Proposed dividends 13 109 69
RN B IR R 2 Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company 2,470 2,640
FEIEHI MR Non-controlling interests 26 161 207
ERBE Total equity 2,631 2,847
ExkEEAE Total equity and liabilities 4,383 5,196
FRBEE Net current assets 916 714
EEAERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 3,205 3,544
2R =&
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
o EF
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

B Z=2020F 12 A31HIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Htat

(X BEEBTRER) (In HK$ million) Note 2020 2019
R Operating activities:
BRETERL AT (B8R ), %A (Loss)/profit before income taxes (107) 405
T Adjustments for:
JE(EE &R almFl Share of profit of joint ventures 20 (39) (63)
RIEREREARBEREZ Fair value (gain)/loss on financial asset

SRMEBEZ AAEWR(EE) atfair value through profit or loss 6 (1) 1
HELH & Amortization of leasehold land and

TS TEN FRIEE Y rental prepayments 18 4 9
FEWA Interest income 6 (12) (21)
Y - R RFER Depreciation of property, plant and

WEMENE equipment and investment properties 7,21, 22 67 97
FHEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7, 23 542 605
HEME - WRK Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

B2 FEE equipment 6 1 1
M - e NERE 2 RIEEE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 7, 22 8 11
ME - WERREZRERD Reversal of impairment of property, plant and

equipment 7,22 (3) -

FREEEZRERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 79 26
CREEE RERE Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 (14) -
ez BERE Impairment of goodwill 24 5 -
FRE 7 EBE NI S s Provision for obsolete stock and stock written off 7 9 6
BHEREE Provision for doubtful debts 16 33 17
R A Uk [ e Uk BR FR SR 1 Receivables written off during the year as

Z uncollectible 16 - (4)
BREER Share option expense 9 5 1
BMEER Finance expense 8 41 55
M 5 B Exchange difference 4 3
giEES  FIBR Operating cash inflow before changes in

FiSHE R KEHRE M working capital, interest and income taxes 622 1,149
FEZmD,/(38h) Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 105 )
FEWEBRE R R E A FEU F 2 (Increase)/decrease in trade and

($#hn) R other receivables (38) 93
FER R R E M TR 2 Increase/(decrease) in trade and

#n/ CRd) other payables 22 )
KEEBFIEA IR ® Cash generated from operations 711 1,238
=ERpISH Interest paid (41) (59)
B ESFIEFR Hong Kong profits tax paid () (1)
OSSN EIA Overseas tax paid (45) (114)
REERCBESRNFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 616 1,068
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EHRERER(E)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

HE2020F 12 A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Htat
(U B EBTREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2020 2019
REEK Investing activities:
BEYHE  HBINEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 22 (30) (76)
HEWE - WEREHE L Proceeds from disposal of property,
FiSsk18 plant and equipment = 1
fﬂfj:iﬁ&%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ,%’(lﬁzi BN Increase in leasehold land and rental prepayments 18 (1) (4)
RITEHFER 2R (3EH0) Decrease/(increase) in bank time deposits 14 227 (116)
Eﬂﬁlﬂ Interest received 12 29
BlUlEERRIRE Dividends received from joint ventures 20 54 54
RELBEZRERA(Fd) Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
HBEE investing activities 262 (120)
mMEEK Financing activities:
HEZezRmL /() Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits 84 (59)
EREEEZHENK Leases payment for right-of-use assets ()] (11)
HELZHZ ARSI 2R Payment for principal elements of lease payments (489) (507)
BA—EWBARE N Payment for acquisition of partial interest of
W% 2 I8 a subsidiary/subsidiaries (23) (37)
& 17 [B] 88 Share repurchase (1) _
BRI SRR AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (5) (52)
BT R Dividends paid (118) (421)
HILIRITE X Addition of bank loans 153 299
EEEITER Repayment of bank loans (266) (332)
MEEB2REeERNEFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (667) (1,120)
RERMEZE LM, (H) Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 211 (172)
FURESRRESEHEER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 970 1,142
RERFESEEIMNEER Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
gEogE on cash and cash equivalents 13 -
FHREER Cash and cash equivalents at the end
HEZEER of the year 1,194 970
HeRBEEELTF2ZIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
fﬁ/f&fﬁﬁ i7(_ Cash and bank balances 14 1,256 1,259
Ve ARRES 7N =@AMNE Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
3 ﬁi\ﬂZﬁETﬂng three months, from date of deposit (62) (289)

1,194 970

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEREED R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2020F 12 A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

ARARRELRS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMGEHE
BOEREZ
SREERE
Financial asset FEHIE
EXBEGRE BRERE at fair value %
i AABH Capital RipEE Share EifE HititfE  through other ey Non- EREE
(WBE#TAEN) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options  Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained 4%t controlling Total
(In HKS milion) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves  income reserve profits Total interests equity

#2020£1R 1A
At January 1, 2020 79 383 3 978 2 ) 114 ) 1,089 2,640 207 2,847

KRERRAEREER
Loss after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - (112) (112) 4 (108)
Hivgraks -
Other comprehensive income:
-RERGARERM BREZEREE
BhENE
Fair valug change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - @ - 2 - @2
-EIMBAA  AERARADAAEL
ER A%
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and branches - - - - - 3 - - - 3 (5) 26

f5aha
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 3 - @ (112) (83 (1) (84)

HRERERS
Transactions with shareholders:
FEEEE
Transfer among reserves - - - - 1) - - - 1 - - -
Bzl
Share option scheme

-EREER

Share option expense - - - - 5 - - - - 5 - 5

FEHIERRS
Dividends to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - (8] ()
RE-SUBHEARSRRATELL

i
Recognition of call option arisen from acquisiton

of partial interest of a subsidliary - - - - - - 21 - - 21 - 21
RE-SUBHEADSRRRTEL 2D
Recognition arising from futher acquisition of

partial interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - 22 - - 22 (40) (18)
BifitE
Remeasurement - - - - - - (22) - - (22 - (22)
WERERE (Wit 150)
2019 final dividend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - - - - (69) (69) - (69)
005 R EREH:2138)
2020 interim dividend (Note 138)) - - - - - - - - (49) (49) - (49)
BRI (Hizt2000)
Shares repurchased (Note 25(c)) - - - - - - - - 1) 1) - 1)

FRARRLERAFAAREAREE
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company - - - - 4 - 27 - (118) 87 (45) (132)

ERRERS
Total transactions with shareholders - - - - 4 - 27 - (118) 87 (45) (132)

#20205128318
At December 31, 2020 79 383 3 978 % 9 14 (6) 859 2470 161 2,631

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEZEBR(E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HE2020F 12 A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

ALTRRELEE
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMEANE
RALEREL
Financial asset JEiEIIE
BAEOHA B atfair value 33
i H)\Bf Capital RAEE Share 38 EhfE through other FhER Non- Exen
(W EEETAEN) Shere  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained A controling Total
(In HK$ millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves income reserve profits Total interests equity

R2018E128318
At December 31, 2018 79 383 3 978 2 (10) 7 B 1,267 2,789 220 3009

#iHHReE

Change in accounting policy

RAEARBEREERS 65 0E

Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16 - - - - - - - - 7 7 - 7

R01951R 1R
At January 1, 2019 79 33 3 a78 2 (10 7 &) 1,274 279 20 3016

RERRAER LR
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - 230 230 5 289
Afpala
Other comprehensive income:
-REtGANRRAA ERE SREE
RAERE
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - (1) - 1) - (1)
-BHERA - REAARADAREL
ERBE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and
branches - - - - - (12) - - - (12) 6 6)

f5ala
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (12) - (1) 230 217 65 282

BHRRS
Transactions with shareholders:
REmRg
Transfer among reserves - - - - 1) - %) - 4 - - -
Bl
Share option scheme

-EREER

Share option expense - - - - 1 - - - - 1 - 1

FEHIERRS
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 2 2 (54) (52)
EE-SUBHEARSRRRT AL

REZABRERE
Put option liabilities lapse from further acquisiton

of partial interest of subsidlaries - - - - - - 62 - - 62 - 62
RE-SUBHELRSRRRTEL 2D
Recognition arising from futher acquisition of

partial interest of subsidiaries - - - - - - (17) - - (17 (24) (@)
1BERFRE (Wit 13p)
2018 final dividend (Note 13b)) - - - - - - - - (260) (260) - (260)
0195 R R 8 (H:2130)
2019 interim dividend (Note 133)) - - - - - - - - (161) (161) - (161)

ARARELERAAA AR ARES
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company - - - - - - 4 - (415) (373) (78) (451)

HFERERS
Total transactions with shareholders - - - - - - Y] - (415) (873) (78) (451)

R2019%12A31R
At December 31, 2019 7 383 3 978 20 (22) 114 4) 1,089 2,640 207 2,847

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ) AR 2 F ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %F #



— & #
ERREBERAR(TARR D RENBEA
Bl (FE [ AKE])FER— BB 42,200
EEWEMOZERREME TE MG
7 $8 X $8 & Giordano X Giordano Junior
Giordano Ladies ~ BSXKk H b B B M IR
B2 mhg o

RARRI1995F 3 ASHIRIE B RIE1981F
NAEEBREGMK I 2 ERRERET
NE] o EEf = E AL Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda. - EFBEFBLEMIMUNEEN
BERDBETITETIONR AL IEKNESE -
RRABIZBNEERBEEBRERGMERA
A (B2 Fr ) ER L (ARG RS - 709) o

BAFRIFERRIN - RAGHIEHRERABER T
BEN o A FIMEREXEH2021F3 A 11
AEZE=e([E5g e -

FEEHBE
REAGHYBRREANEEGTERH
RTX - BRE BB - WFEBREM R
M FERNERER -

(a) MREXE

AWM BHRRIDIZRELESAMAE
(TEBGEIRE])BH 2 BBHHR
SR EBMBHREER DRR - 1t
S BB HRRBREBRAES LT
MR EmARR D) RBEBRREGIRE
HERREEN - REGHMBHRRIZR
BELRALRE - EETEREERE
BRBETETR)EAAENE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

Bt %5 #R = MY R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion apparel under the
brand names of Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies,
BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands through an
extensive network with approximately 2,200 shops spanning over
30 countries and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3, 1995 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is 5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha
Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on
March 11, 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) measured at fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

2.

TESTHE(E)
(a) WMREE(E)

(b)

(c)

HEEREBYHRELENREGBREK
BHEEMA - ULEEG et  BEE
Nk BERAARE 2 5 BRFFD
H o — BB FE HE P05 RAEME
S ABAHVBERRBEATZEZR
RAMAEEH M 4R -

RERZEANTE

AEEEAUTESSHMIASERZ
Llst 2 281 - W 2020%1 A1 H X
ZEREZ AEEMBFEEERR

- ESEHEASINREEEHL
BIEBH 2 54T~ BB B

- BAMBHREEEIR BRI —
EL A

- EHBEERTERIEI BEMB
BERNETRRBBU B REE
AR 2 MERT —FIREEKF

- 2018 F B ISR e 2 A iESE — B
TERE 2 USRI BESHESE -

HEM ECEAMEBER TS ERAEH
ST BRIV HEELIRERNES -

B 8 4 {8 14 5 4 R 80 97 3T B 4G
13T 2 8

AREE Y EITATEAZ S ER/MEE AR
ERREFN AT MAGIER] 2 B R » ZRM%
ERFEH TS U ARENM R EBK
BERTE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Impact of amended standard

The Group has applied the following amended standards
issued by HKICPA which were effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on or after January 1, 2020:

- Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition of
Material;

- Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a Business;

- Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 -
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform;

- Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 - Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting.

The adoption of the above amendments to standards did
not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies or financial results.

New and amended standards issued, but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amended
standards that have been issued but not yet effective. The
adoption of these are not expected to have a material impact
on the financial results of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)

(d) MIEBLR

(i)
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202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS.
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(i)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interests in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired are recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interests recognized and previously held
interests measured are less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly
in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions - that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

()

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor have. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the senior decision-
makers. The senior decision-makers, who are responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified as the directors
and senior management that make strategic decisions.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s companies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the company operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates or valuation where items are
re- measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income, are included in other
comprehensive income.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

85



86

B m R M (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

2. FEETEHRE)

(9) SMNE]E (&)

(iii) FE A A
PIBEARBEZ ARIEEDRENLE
KEZIEETR (AT ER
SBREEZEY)  EEERE
BARRIGIRA T EBRERED

s

- BHZ2INEEBERZ
BERBEHYNUNZEESR
BRAEE R 2 W IE Xk

- BHMBRZBARXH
BARTFHEERRE (B
FZTHEXHZT S HEE
TEXR Rt B8WE—
fAaREmEnER; £t
BARAT WARIHE IR
RPEEMERRE) : &

- FARBERDRHMS
AW PR -

BEBIITRELNBERAA
EFBE /LRI EROEEM
BE - WIRHIREXBE - E4
W FE 5 E B AR A W A
BE o

(iv) RINKENEE

HREINEENRE (MEEARE
BAESIME LT 2 A D - 3
EFRESRBRRHBEERINEE
HPH A R G4 - SOP R
REFEFRIMEENRERAN
BEE IS REBREERRI
REMB 2R EMNITHIRE) - X
RRERFFIARENREBR A
AESRHAENMBELZEY
EHEREHR -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case, income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rate on transaction
dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entities and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives or lease term, as follows:

Freehold land is not amortized.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or lease term.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

- Plant and equipment 5 years

- Other property and equipment 3 - 5 years
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or both.
Investment property comprises buildings held under finance
leases. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using
straight-line method to write off its cost over the unexpired
period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from derecognized of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognized.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(k)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling
interests in the acquire and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) or through profit or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. XESHEEE) 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(n &W/EEE) () Financial assets (continued)
(iii) sFE (&) (iii) Measurement (continued)
EFTA(HE) Debt instruments (continued)
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=

of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognized in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced prices plus
procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank loans in
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #



BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)

(r)

(s)

(t)

RITER

RITERBRAABLHGREENRZE
BTG HER - R RIZEHKAT K
PRI (IR ZARA) SR EE/MT
Al Z B A BB A AR E KR AT
BHABRER

BRIEAKE ARG SRENGEET
ERFEERRKRD12EA - BRIERD R

R/RRBEE -

RHEREER

N S o) EE NI ok i SRz 0k s
MR - BREHELAAUEE
RERBRRRREERR I RATS
BEERGEER  HERWNETCREN
IR RAE - RIFZPENE(
R AR - PSR B SRR A TERR - AR
BB E R ARSI -

N6 B e SR AL S AR H AR R Y B LH K
K- BESHROA A EBBEMIEE
HEMNEBEESBERAE - BENEHE
BB FESNEESHEINE  FHER
HRERERBERENTEEAARE
FREE AR IR BN P RER - 10
HIREITEMRE - BEZIRER
HESBERSTAR

B &R A
PRBEEBERARELEHEAR A HNE
KX RIFLFERAERBEBR K
BREREEEE MREERE
HRZELERMBEXIBELE T 7]
EEARL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(s)

(t)

Bank loans

Bank loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
bank loans using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or at the fair market value of the equity interest of the
investees. The amount that may become payable under the
option on exercise is initially recognized at amortized costs
with a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option
over any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such
options are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a
result of the change in the expected settlement amount
at each balance sheet date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity. In the event that the option
expires unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax

(i)

(i)

Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries and regions
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

(v) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in
Taiwan, the Group operates defined contributions
schemes and, if applicable, participates in central
defined contribution provident fund schemes for all
qualified employees. The assets of the said schemes
are held by independently administered funds
separated from those of the Group. Contributions to
these schemes are made by both the employers and
employees at rates up to 20% on the employees’
salaries.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branch of wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
Taiwan has a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of
all employees before the New Scheme was effective
and the subsequent service years of employees who
chose to continue to participate in the Old Scheme.
The branch currently contributes at 2% of the total
salaries of participating employees as determined and
approved by the relevant government authorities. The
assets of the Old Scheme are invested by the Bank of
Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branch contributes each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap
of NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New
Scheme into individual pension accounts at the Bureau
of Labor Insurance.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity
over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

(w) Provisions

(x)

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns
and value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount
of sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for
the transactions. Such fees are included in distribution
costs. Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

Sales of goods - customer loyalty
programme (deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases made
which entitle them to discounts on future purchases.
A contract liability for the award points is recognized
at the time of sale. Revenue is recognized when the
points are redeemed or when they expire 24 months
after the initial sale.

A contract liabilities is recognized until the points are
redeemed or expired.

Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method, taking into
account the principal amount outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(vii) Rental and sub-lease rental income

Rental and sub-lease rental income is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee
were classified as operating leases (Note 33). Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(2)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

U any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 6). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(aa) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks: (a)
(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)(iii) liquidity risk, (a)
(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b) capital risk management and
(c) fair value estimation. The Group’s overall risk management
program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the Group
mainly arises from purchases from a Renminbi-based
supply chain and sales proceeds in local currencies
of the relevant group entities. Foreign exchange
risk arising from recognized assets and liabilities
is considered to be insignificant. This is due to the
balances denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity are
generally settled promptly leaving minimal outstanding
foreign currency position as at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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December 31, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE (continued)
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(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in
the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable
to balances with bank, trade and other receivables
and rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit risk
on deposits with banks is limited as the Group mainly
places the deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank transfer,
through credit cards or through reputable and
dispersed department stores. The Group’s credit sales
are only made to wholesale and franchise customers,
with an appropriate credit history and on credit terms
of 30 to 90 days. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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(a) BERABEZE(E)
(ii) EERK(E)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of debtors of
the Group as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(KEEETAREMN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
HESPR Counterpart:
BERQFA Department stores 134 141
DnEERS Franchisees 67 69
FEUZ FHRERX Credit card receivables 9 9
Hi Others 18 20
JEWER R (It 16) Trade receivables

(Note 16) 208 239
¥=x Landlords 188 213

416 452

JE I BR 54 Trade receivables
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B E 5 RURSRE B IAR B F
HIBEERE - RERYEES
B BRERERAREERR
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The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on share credit risk characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties primarily
are large corporation and have strong financial position
and management considers the credit risk is not
high. The Group maintains frequent communications
with these counterparties. Management has closely
monitored the credit qualities and the collectability
of these receivables and consider that the expected
credit risks of them are minimal in view of the history
of cooperation with them and forward looking
information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
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The directors of the Group consider the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis during the year. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the assets as
at year end date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated.

° Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
company’s ability to meet its obligations;

° Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the company;

° Significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the company, including changes
in the payment status of the third party.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than
30 days past due in making a contractual payment/
repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 365 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.
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2020F12H31H

December 31, 2020

3. MREAMEERAABEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
(a) HHERABEE(E) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(ii) EERK(E) (ii) Credit risk (continued)
HEWRR (&) Other receivables (continued)
R 2019F & 2020F 12 A31H - As at December 31, 2019 and 2020, management
FEERAEMEBUGENEE consider other receivables as low credit risk as
FElBrERRE  BRXZHEF counterparties have a strong capacity to meet its
FHRAREENEMEHRNE contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The
HBELREME - AEBEFHE Group has assessed that the expected credit losses
WM FIBNEREEBE - for other receivables and the loss allowance provision
FERZEEBEANEERE recognized during the year for these balances is not
WAREK e material.
(iii) RBEELRAR (iii) Liquidity risk
RNEEFBEFABERTRE N The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
krrpeERens hmERE maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash
nENReRBSEFEY - KIE and cash equivalents, which is generated from the
HRENE SR o operating cash flow and financing cash flow.
REE R AR EFH20205F12 A 31 As at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, all
HX2019%F12 A31H 2 2275 of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities are
BEHAN—FARIEH  EFIFE due within one year, except to note followings:
TCFR%IE
15#%
5%/
After BaRE
one year ReHE

1R but 5EME Total REE

Within within Over contractual  Carrying
(WEEETAEN) (In HKS million) oneyear fiveyears fiveyears cashflows  amount
R2020%12A31A As at December 31, 2020
RITER Bank loans 1 101 - 102 100
RERE Lease liabilities 452 348 8 808 767

453 449 8 910 867

20196124318 As at December 31, 2019
RERE Lease liabilities 570 585 10 1,165 1,108
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3. BXEREBERAABE(E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) MHEEREE(E)

(iv) RERERRER

%8R 1T1F 2 12.56 18 7% 7T (2019
F 128598 B L) RIETTEX
1.5218# 7L (20194 : 2.65(E
L) AEBEYEEMEREE
ENEE UWEBHERFBZIR
TEREBITEESAEEERS
RenEMNERRK  HZERR
HAEEZHETFEKN - &
EzBARKCERESRERNT E
IEMBGHNEEHTE - TEE
EHREFMESEEHNFETTE
j( o

(b) ESEERR

AEENESERBR  ERELAEH
REFEEEZRS  URREREHRS
REH RS EAMTD AR -

BAMMBHIRAKRMBER - AEENHE
ARBEEBRA  Be RBTEFAR
RITER

REBICERGERE  AEERESENE
HEE  #HBRNTERROKESE
FRREEE AR RBITHK

AEBEFAEBRTFRSMAEER
BAR - FHEEMRETINR S RIBITE
TR EWMITERFTES L - 12020
F12A31H » REBRIF11.045 T
(2019%F : 9.94188 7T ) K F IR S ARRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,256 million
(2019: HK$1,259 million) and bank loan of HK$152
million (2019: HK$265 million); the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
bank balance and bank borrowings at floating rate
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is insignificant to the Group. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash and
bank balances and bank loans as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the year. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest
bearing bank loans. As at December 31, 2020, the Group
maintained a net cash position of HK$1,104 million (2019:
HK$994million).
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2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value are

disclosed by the level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:
Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of
the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1. The Group’s financial asset at FVPL and
FVOCI measured at fair value are included in Level 1 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 15 and 19).

As at December 31, 2020, if there had been a 5% change in
the fair value of financial asset at FVOCI and financial asset
at FVPL with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
equity would have increased/decreased by HK$0.2 million
(2019: HK$0.3 million) and net profit would have increased/
decreased by HK$1.4 million (2019: HK$11.4 million).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in Level 2. No financial instrument
is included in Level 2 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3. The Group’s financial asset at FVPL are included in Level
3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 15).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Assessment of impairment of non-current
financial assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its fair value less costs of
disposal (by reference to market prices), depending upon the
anticipated future plans for the assets. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant agreements
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions (such as growth
rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation of
post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Changes to key assumptions can significantly affect the
amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities shall be re-
measured at their fair value resulting from events or factors
emerge after the acquisition date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if
there are material changes from previous estimates.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. EEGFHEE R A E ()

(v)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(v)

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or,
except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may have decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;
- Right-of-use assets;

- Interests in joint ventures; and
- Goodwill.

The sources utilized to identify indications of impairment are
often subjective in nature and the Group is required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. The
Group’s interpretation of this information has a direct impact
on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at the
end of any given reporting period.

If an indication of impairment is identified, such information
is further subject to an exercise that requires the Group to
estimate the recoverable amount, representing the greater
of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in
use. Depending on the Group’s assessment of the overall
materiality of the asset under review and complexity of
deriving a reasonable estimate of the recoverable amount,
the Group may perform such assessments utilizing internal
resources or the Group may engage external advisors to
counsel the Group. Regardless of the resources utilized,
the Group is required to make many assumptions to make
these assessments, including the utilization of such asset,
the cash flows to be generated, appropriate market discount
rates and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a
material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of any asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

4.

ERERT AT RAE (&)

(vi) FREH
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Determination of lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the Group has
enforceable right to extend the lease term and the lease
is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).
Potential future cash outflows have not been included in the
lease liability because it is not reasonably certain that the
leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.

In determining the discount rate, the Group is required to
exercise considerable judgement in relation to determine
the discount rates by taking into account the nature of
the underlying assets and the terms and conditions of the
leases, at both the commencement date and the effective
date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(viii) Recoverability of Trade Receivables

Provision for expected credit losses is made when the Group
does not expect to collect all amounts due. The provision is
determined by grouping together trade debtors with similar
risk characteristics and collectively or individually assessing
them for likelihood of recovery. The provision reflects
lifetime expected credit losses i.e. possible default events
over the expected life of the trade receivables, weighted
by the probability of that default occurring. Judgement
has been applied in determining the level of provision for
expected credit losses, taking into account the credit risk
characteristics of customers and the likelihood of recovery
assessed on a combination of collective and individual basis
as relevant. While the provision is considered appropriate,
changes in estimation basis or in economic conditions could
lead to a change in the level of provision recorded and
consequently on the charge or credit to profit or loss.

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
development strategies and operational control. There are two
major operating segments: Retail and Distribution and Wholesales
to Overseas Franchisees. Management manages the Retail and
Distribution operating segment geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating segment in
Mainland China and the Middle East comprise direct-operated
stores (“DOS”) and franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau,
Taiwan and the rest of Asia Pacific do not have material local
franchised stores. Group stores span most of Asia Pacific and the
Middle East.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands.

Adjusted EBITDA is (loss)/profit before finance expense, income
taxes, impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment, depreciation and amortization, share of profit of joint
ventures and unallocated corporate items. Segment results are
before finance expense, share of profit of joint ventures, income
taxes and unallocated corporate items. This is the measurement
basis reported to management and the senior decision-makers for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

5.

HEBEREED (&) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
KEBEBENIEEBRELE (FHER),/F Analysis of sales and operating (loss)/profit of the Group’s
Migtbla 2 DT o operating segment by geographic regions is as follows.
2020
HigoH
Rz
TAEA #%
BER i1 fR Wholesales
R KEE =P The rest The to
Mainland HK and =Y | of Asia Middle Overseas a5t
(UBEEFTAEN) (In HK$ million) China Macau Taiwan Pacific East Franchisees Total
HER Sales 701 362 534 954 387 184 3,122
R REBITDA Adjusted EBITDA 2) 80 127 259 107 9 580
WEREE Depreciation and amortization
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets (57) (142) (60) (196) (87) - (542)
—W%E  BERLENLENE - Property, plant and equipment
and investment property (11) (5) (9) (29) (13) - (67)
EAE) Impairment
~EREEE - Right-of-use assets (6) (51) - (18) (4) = (79)
—ME - BERR - Property, plant and equipment (1) (5) - @ = = )
RER Reversal of impairment
~EREEE - Right-of-use assets 4 4 - 6 = = 14
/ERR IV E - Property, plant and equipment 2 = = 1 - - 3
DEEE Segment results (71) (119) 58 21 3 9 (99)
“Babhae Corporate functions (6)
MEEA Finance expense 1)
ElhEENRER Share of profit of joint ventures 39
RAEHAEE Loss before income taxes (107)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20204F12 A31H
December 31, 2020

HEEREEDH (&) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
2019
EIpEE
MEEZ
TAEAM i
EBR b:if ) HER Wholesales
B RRE P! The rest The to
Mainland HK and =) of Asia Middle Overseas A%
(KBEEETAEL) (In HK$ million) China Macau Taiwan Pacific East Franchisees Total
HER Sales 995 772 587 1,584 662 252 4,852
{QFHEEEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA 72 201 119 465 231 35 1,123
WEREH Depreciation and amortization
—ERREE - Right-of-use assets (71) (179) (59) (208) (94) - (605)
—ME - BERBENREDE - Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties (18) (12) (15) (38) (14) - (97)
—HRE L HBEMAFIE - Leasehold land prepayments ©) - - - - - (1)
RE Impairment
—fERREE - Right-of-use assets {11 ©) - ©6) - - (26)
—W¥ - WEBRRE - Property, plant and equipment @) @ © @) - - {1
DEEE Segment results (33) 5 44 209 123 35 383
= e Corporate functions 14
MEER Finance expense (55)
i =Ny Share of profit of joint ventures 63
BRATEBANER Profit before income taxes 405
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

5. SHEHEREESH(A) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
UmEE D 2 EERDEEE A2 E—F Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating segment by
AT o brand is as follows.
2020 2019
Fd gE
(B8])/ il
Vied| (B#8)
Operating Operating
HE®  (loss))  HEE profit/
(UBEBTAEER) (In HK$ milion) Sales profit Sales (loss)
TERDH Retail and Distribution
Gilordano & Giordano Junior Gioraano and Giordano Junior 2,482 (108) 3,831 307
Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladies 235 4 395 34
BSX BSX 45 @) 101 (3)
i Others 176 - 273 10
2,938 (108) 4,600 348
KARERES  -ERNEBNREM(BREEE The Company has its domicile in HK. Sales to external customers
Rt HE GNP 2 HEF R5.4618 recorded in HK and Macau (including retail and wholesale sales)
BT (20194 1 10.24EE L) + A B ABE are HK$546 million (2019: HK$1,024 million), Mainland China
B7.01EBIT (20194 : 9.95EHB L) » MR HK$701 million (2019: HK$995 million) and external customers
HthmBEIINEF 2 HEEA18.75EE T from other markets HK$1,875 million (2019: HK$2,833 million).
(20194 : 28.3318% L) °
DE 2Bz HERE A6.90E 8 T (20194 ¢ Inter-segment sales of HK$690 million (2019: HK$1,160 million)
11.60BBT)E TAHFEE - have been eliminated upon consolidation.
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. HEBEREEIH(A)

FhE A BE 2 BT S K % A 6008 78 7T (2019
FREHERS0EBTT) BB LRMA
2,0008 T (20194 : A5 B 3008 %
7T) © MR A2008 87T (20194 « FASH &
FAO00&E L) : BB ZATSHE R A9008 %
JC(20194F : 1,000& 8 70) » M ao A E fb i [&
21,0008 7875 (20194 : 6,000887T) °

AEBEZEERWBE D 2T -

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Income tax credit related to Mainland China was HK$6 million
(2019: Income taxes charged of HK$5 million), HK and Macau
HK$20 million (2019: Income taxes charged of HK$3 million) and
the Middle East HK$2 million (2019: Income taxes charged of
HK$9 million). Income taxes charged related to Taiwan was HK$9
million (2019: HK$10 million) and the rest of Asia Pacific HK$10
million (2019: HK$60 million).

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographic region is as follows.

DEEE
Segment assets
(A BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
DESEE Segment assets
DARHE b= The rest of Asia Pacific 1,102 1,159
R The Middle East 918 1,044
BB KR HK and Macau 822 1,174
A [ K fE Mainland China 625 704
=y Taiwan 240 290
3,707 4,371
BE N TR Interest in joint ventures 549 538
REMZRE K SER R ERE Financial asset at fair value through
JERMEE other comprehensive income 3 5
REHRIEAERE Financial asset at fair value through
LERMEE profit or loss 28 228
BELEFIREE Deferred tax assets 96 54
EEHRE Total assets 4,383 5,196
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

5. HEBEREEDE(E) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
BReBmTEAEREEHRBEBEEN  REBNR The total non-current assets other than financial instruments and
BPIZIEMBEERTE R2.44E%5 7T (2019 deferred tax assets located in HK and Macau was HK$244 million
F 4 77EAET) - NP EIKER1.08EHS (2019: HK$477 million); Mainland China, HK$108 million (2019:
TL(2019%F - 1. 76184 T) : RRHEMT S A HK$176 million); and other markets, HK$1,810 million (2019:
18.10{&7% 7T (20194F : 20.90fE/% T) ° HK$2,090 million).
6. HMWAREMWES  FE 6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET
(K E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
BT A Government grants 102 -
FEFREWMA Royalty income 30 31
FEHA Interest income 12 21
P& 5 Uk 5 5 58 Net exchange gain 11 5
HekoBKA Rental and sub-lease rental income 8 12
% B A Dividend income 3 3
REZREARBERECEMEEY Fair value gain/(loss) on financial
ARrERE (BE) asset at fair value through

profit or loss 1 (1)
HEME - MBREBH 2 FEE Net loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 1) (1)
HAftb Others 17 13

183 83
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R (mE) aER
@ (BR)EMENSGEA)

M BEmRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT

Operating (loss)/profit is after charging/(crediting):

(A BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
SHERAK Cost of sales
FEHEEKA Cost of inventories sold 1,377 2,000
BREFERER Provision for obsolete stock and
FEMH stock written off 9 6
1,386 2,006
DHEHR Distribution expense
BT Staff cost 574 763
TELH Depreciation expenses
—(FRAEEE - Right-of-use assets 525 589
—WE - IR NREERE - Property, plant and equipment 61 90
THREFZHEER Rentals in respect of land and
building
—&EREEH — Minimum lease payments 66 183
—AHEEER — Contingent rent 147 189
YIHEERRE - Building management fee,
AT AE % 2 A0 K2 government rent and rates and
NAEXER utilities 106 122
BEEEE - HER Advertising, promotion and
REDIE HE incentives 81 107
B REH Packaging and deliveries 45 58
RITRERRKE Bank and credit card charges 20 33
NI Impairment
—(FREEE - Right-of-use assets 79 26
S/ E R YL — Property, plant and equipment 8 11
BB E Reversal of impairment
—[FREEE - Right-of-use assets (14) -
S/ ER o YNE L - Property, plant and equipment (3) -
T & 4 b 78 (< FRIE 8 Amortization of leasehold land
prepayments - 1
H A, Others 105 128
1,800 2,300
THER Administrative expense
8TIKA Staff cost 118 145
WEZH Depreciation expenses
—(FRAEEE - Right-of-use assets 17 16
—WZ - e B - Property, plant and equipment
"EYE and investment properties 6 7
FRNBEER Legal and professional fee 25 15
IZE BN & Auditor's remuneration 6 6
&K S AT Computer and telecommunication 6 6
ZIRE Travelling 2 4
T REFZHEEER Rentals in respect of land and
building
— RS H — Minimum lease payments 1 3
B RAMTIIE Business and other taxes 1 1
HAh Others 42 29
224 232
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

8. MEERHR 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(U Ea&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
HESEFNE Interest on lease liabilities 39 49
IRITEF B Interest on bank loans 2 6
41 55
9. BEIMKAX 9. STAFF COSTS
(K BEETAEENN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
FekIBZ(BPREEEHE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 622 828
EREER Share option expense 5 1
BIRE — Pension cost —
AT KT E defined contribution plans 65 79
692 908
REEAN - AEEZEERAREER ZMHK During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
(20194 : ) LUR K (5K o 7820204 & to reduce the level of contributions (2019: Nil). As at December 31,
2019F 12 A31H BB AIHERF(FEH 2 KaE 2020 and 2019, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized
GEIGS /4 in future years.

122 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EENFENER

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEEH & (a) Directors’ emoluments
EEHEY Ex
[ BASHT
A
Performance- Employer's
based®  Eftli#*  contribution
re #4  discretionary¢  Other  to pension A3t
EEES Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses  benefits* schemes Total
BEFT BEFL BEFT  BETR BETT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
2020
B LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,216 - 1,859 - 5,075
RE& CHAN Ka Wai® - 2,173 - 246 18 2437
EEyL Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,002 - 253 18 2,273
HERIA CHENG Chi Kong" 200 - - - - 200
Rt S A CHAN Sai Cheong 200 - - - - 200
iR Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BEE KWONG Ki Chi* 360 - - - - 360
B WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
1,940 7,391 - 2,358 3% 11,725
2019
BB LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter’t - 3,676 6,494% 1,820 11,990
R CHAN Ka Wai® - 2,343 860¢-© 160 18 3,381
B Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,153 75090 151 18 3,072
g CHENG Chi Kong? 200 - - - = 200
Rt S A CHAN Sai Cheong? 200 - - - - 200
iR Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BEE KWONG Ki Chi* 360 - - - - 360
BB WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD*' Alison Elizabeth LLOYD™' 308 - - - - 308
1,878 8,172 8,104 2,131 36 20,321
t FRERITHREE t Chairman and Chief Executive
A HITES 2 Executive directors
" IEMITES Non-executive directors
BYIFRITES Independent non-executive directors
# HibWam B REREMHZK  BRE  FEZ # Other benefits include insurance premium, share options, housing

Bh - AR R E D ([ i )

& FBEFTERAIREN D ECLL R PDRTE

oo BEUIEARIAERE RN B REKREK
FORTE
M2019F3A7TREZERBUFFNTES

HE2019F12A31HILFE © B #

WE - WREEBERE2019FM2408 8 T

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind (“Other Benefits”)
© Performance-based bonus is determined based on profit sharing ratio
OO Discretionary bonus is determined based on pre-determined

achievement rate of profit targets

Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on March 7, 2019

During the year ended December 31, 2019, Lau Kwok
Kuen, Peter, waived and has agreed to waive 2019 bonus of
HK$2.4million.
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

10. EEMAZNER (F) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)
(a) EEM < (&)
RAEER  MESEIMN2MEEEN

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to Directors

™ of the Company during the year is as follows:
(LB T BEN) (In HK$'000) 2020 2019
we Fees 1,940 1,878
Hm Other emoluments:
AEXFE R Basic salaries and
HAb iz other Benefits 9,749 10,303
RIRSET BB Contribution to pension
schemes 36 36
RIETE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses - 8,104
11,725 20,321
(b) ENBEHFRHRE (b) Five highest paid individuals

RAFEAR  AEBRUSSFHBESD
BIESAL(2019%F B)EE - HMe 2
HRERLEXWE - XFEAR - #7112
7 (20194 « 20 ) &= ik B 2 FE 1 B

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include 3 (2019: 3) Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2019: 2)

ST individuals during the year are as follows:
(LBBF T mEEr) (In HK$°000) 2020 2019
EXFHe & Basic salaries and
Ha iz other benefits 4,796 4,955
RN ET B Contribution to pension
schemes 61 90
EEHE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 248 4,036
5,105 9,081

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBHRRME(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EENRNZMER (F)

(b) EfUE&ESHBE (&)
BHRITEsFRERMSENREAN

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell

™ within the following bands:

AE
< 48 B Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2020 2019
B
HK$
2,000,001-3,000,000 2 -

3,000,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-6,000,000

(c) MEE - ZSZEEEEZFHM:
AEBEZEESNWHEETRER
HHNER EERNEMLRX S
NARES S FEURRAESE
HHZEE FIEH A A B EZ
EREMEBENTEASTZAZER &
ERNEMRS  BERERBSQFIE
1 55383(1)(d) & M 55622G B =5
EE I FE (20194 « 4) -

11. FrBH

EBFNEMEBRERFEE 2 A EREEF
#16.5% (20194F : 16.5%) 2 X1 E - &
78 LASING B 2 FE SIS B Ty 1R (@ Bl 8 A i (&
BMAZHETE -

11.

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
3 of 622G (2019: Nil).

INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Income
taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong are calculated at
the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(ABEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
TEEREH Current income taxes
B Hong Kong 5 15
BN Outside Hong Kong 16 70
BAFEBERE Over provision in prior years (3) ()
HEHiIR Withholding taxes 21 34
39 118
EAEFT S5 Deferred income taxes
SEMER ZOTHE REE Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (38) (2)
1 116
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

11. B8 (&)
W T EEAEERELHAE DT ZIER

1,2008 870 (20194F : 2,0008#87T) - &
BERERP ZEIEAERAREF TR Z A
EHRIEE 2 FTSEHIR ©

BEBREMAE 2 5% BER TSR
BTSN 2 FEIRIT ©

11.

INCOME TAXES (continued)

This charge excludes the share of joint ventures’ income taxes
of HK$12 million (2019: HK$20 million) for the year. The share
of profit of joint ventures in the consolidated income statement
is after income taxes accrued in the appropriate income tax
jurisdictions.

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at the tax
rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as follows.

(A BEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
BETSRL AT (&8 ), % (Loss)/profit before income taxes
(TEEERGEERA®H) (before share of profit of joint
ventures) (146) 342
LTS %16.5% Calculated at an income tax rate
(2019%F : 16.5%):1& of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (24) 56
HEMERTRABIE 72 Effect of different tax rates in
other regions (6) -
TR 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 34 39
RERIBELETIBEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 9 8
HARBL WA Income not subject to tax (30) @)
FARAMARBRER2HIE Utilization of previously
unrecognized tax losses - (13)
nEiE Withholding tax 21 34
BT FERERE Over provision in prior years (3) ()
FriEdixH Income tax charges 1 116

12. SR (E#E) BF

BRAARE S (EE) BNERFE
NERBEMBIEREEEB112EE T
(2019 : BH2.30BET)51E -

BRAKR(EER) B NDEAFERND %
17 W 3 2 hn#E - 19 A% #801,578,073,660 A%
(2019 : 1,578,500,518/% )zt & -

RRITE M ARTEERETE SN L E
LB EEREEER #E2020F12 A
318 L7 B EERESREREGEES -

HREREEEREEER  &#Z=2019F12
A3B I FENSREERFEGRALRR
FHERE o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

12.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are
based on the loss after income taxes attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year of HK$112 million (2019: profit of
HK$230 million).

The basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the weighted
average of 1,578,073,660 shares (2019: 1,578,500,518 shares) in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2020 is
equal to the basic loss per share as the potential dilutive ordinary
shares arising from exercise of the outstanding share options
would be anti-dilutive.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2019

was the same as the basic earnings per share since the share
options had anti-dilutive effect.
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B %% R M EE (AR )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

13. K E 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) XEEREWT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(A BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
BBk 2P HIRE B AFS. 178 Interim dividend declared and
(20194 : TR10.2l) paid of 3.1 HK cents per
share (2019: 10.2 HK cents
per share) 49 161
REEE BEEZE 2 KRR E AER6.978( Final dividend proposed after
(20194 : TAR4.4510) the balance sheet date of

6.9 HK cents per share
(2019: 4.4 HK cents per

share) 109 69

158 230
HRO021E3A11H  EE RS R On March 11, 2021, the Board recommended a final
B ATR6.OEN  BERERADT dividend of 6.9 HK cents per share and is subject to the
IR EEAS FEVEISEE L E o thIEEE approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
B ELEES AV ERRAAEE - annual general meeting. The proposed dividend has not
FRE B ERRER 2 ARNTE been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date. The
BRSO E B EE o amount of proposed dividend was based on the shares of

the Company in issue as at the reporting date.

(b) BRE—FE  IREKXEFEER (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year,
EHERREBEBEUVKRE : approved and paid during the year:
(KB &EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
B RORE2019F RN B R T R4 4754 2019 final dividend approved
(20184 : FM&16.5%1l) and paid of 4.4 HK cents

per share (2018: 16.5 HK

cents per share) 69 260
2019F REAAR B TR AN A A1 202066 The payment for 2019 final dividend was based on the total
R4B8 2 BBITRMBEIRS - number of issued shares of the Company on June 4, 2020.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 127
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

14. RERBITER 14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(KBEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
RekHeEE Cash and cash equivalents 1,194 970
TR AR={EA A 55 Bank deposits with maturity over
ZBRITIFH three months from date of
deposits 62 289
1,256 1,259
AEENEZRERIRITETRIEEE2.86 Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were cash
BAITL(20194F 2 50BB L) 2 AREIRE and bank balances totaling HK$286 million (2019: HK$250 million)
MIR1TH#TF - denominated in Renminbi.
TEBFEFBHERANERANEAEEF2.2% The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was 2.2%
(2019%F : 2.5%) » ERZEFH 2 FEHH5H (2019: 2.5%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity
AR AZR—EA - of more than 1 month as at year end.
15. RERERLOAEEE 2E€8EE 15. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
BER BHEN
Preference Forward &3t
Shares contract Total
(KBEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2020 2020 2019
M1R1B 2Bz ARE Opening fair value at
January 1 28 200 228 28
0 Additions - - - 200
& Disposal - (200) (200) -
M12A31BZHARARE Closing fair value at
December 31 28 - 28 228
EEE D Current portion - - - (200)
RHIE D Non-current portion 28 - 28 28

128 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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15.

BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REZEZAAEREEZEMEE
(%)

MR2008F 6 H27H  AEEFVEEHE D
& Placita Holdings Limited([ Placita])21.0%
o IRIEZIHZ © 6,055,440 ERAT A K
REEFEHT30.0% 2 3772 BABE W
EH 5 456,055,440 Placitaz 1B % i ([ B
Fef% ) o BbAN  REBER TEER R
HERME o

ZEERERBANEENERRNAARE
HE - AREEREFRMGEE  RERER
ZBFFRABLEXRGHEIRENTGE

o /i

R2019%F - AEBEE—FHEBARIEITRIL
—MERAEY - ©84AE2,6008ETT ° ZA
FIER2020F1 A7H&E

RESREANBEREZSREEZARE
gEHaRaprERCHEARMEA -

BREERORNASERALERE S5
BEAABERBEIRESL  RENHZ
BENSERTABRETS LRG0 ER (T
ATBEEA)  RIBEBUEREENE 135
MARBEHBRAEBE=MR -

BREHANNNBEaRRARNERELZS
MEEZAABERREMSABA ZEXRE
E o REFEMBEREENFISRZAAE
BRNBRE— -
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December 31, 2020

15 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, 6,055,440
ordinary shares representing the Group’s remaining 30.0%
of the total issued share capital of Placita were redesignated
into 6,055,440 preference shares of Placita (the “Preference
Shares”). Furthermore, the Group was granted a put option on the
Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured
at FVPL. The fair value has been and will be re-assessed by an
independent professional valuation firm at year end and the end of
each subsequent period.

In 2019, the Group entered into a forward contract with a principal
banker approximately USD26 million. The contract had been
settled on January 7, 2020.

Changes in the fair values of financial asset at FVPL are recorded
in other income in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of Preference
Shares is determined based on discounted cash flow, using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of forward
contract is determined using its market exchange rate, which is
categorized as Level 1 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

16. FE U AR R I A fth FE WK

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(U Ea&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
FEUBR X Trade receivables 228 239
W B Less: Loss allowance (60) 27)
eI BR FUFE Trade receivables, net 168 212

Hib WK - BiEEI& Rk Other receivables, including
B FRIA deposits and prepayments 227 141
395 353

EWERTERBMBR  RELLEHNA
ERRIZEERA - ARBELEBR T4
FI0E0REEH o & ULRRFR I H fth & UK
ZREERERAERE -

(a) BRER 2D #T
HEEZEAFTENREERE ZRE DT

Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts due from franchisees,
licensees and retail proceeds due from department stores. The
Group normally allows a credit period of 30-90 days. The carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are stated approximately at
their fair values.

(@) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of loss allowance is

mr as follows:

(A B &EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
0&E30H 0 - 30 days 162 165
31%60H 31 - 60 days 6 31
61Z290H 61 - 90 days = 13
#90H Over 90 days - 3

168 212

AAREEZEEDBN RS - A
RN EETEZEERR -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has a large number of internationally
dispersed customers.
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. BURF R E b Uk (&)

(a)

(b)

AR 2 A ()

2020912 A31 8 - #HIB I &R\
Bz EWBR K A5008 % T (20194 :
3,000&887L) - MEaETHEBEFERI
WEIZAR A6 - RIBFEHI R 81D 2 ERER
DT

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2020, trade receivables of HK$5 million
(2019: HK$30 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of customers for whom there has been no
recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the due
date is as follows:

(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
0Z30H 0 - 30 days 5 23
#30H Over 30 days - 7
5 30
EWRRNERRE (b) Loss allowance of trade receivables

FEMRBR SRR B 1B B - TOABBIRF A
R BRIEAEERSREERRAE SR
i LB T - BEREFSERER
o BR SR AP 8 o

AERERBEE 22 (BREEELE
BERTD)WT

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the loss
allowance is written off against trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(A BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
w1 A1R At January 1 27 14
A AN AT U8 [B) fE Receivables written off during

U BR FRER 9 2 T 8 the year as uncollectible - (4)
REFREE Provision for the year 33 17
®12A831R At December 31 60 27

& Bl FE U BR 3k 2 B 1B B 08 e i IR B R
HEMEF @ KELBTETEER AUk
B 555 FEUBR R - E It R AR TR
Bl o NEBBRRZIFE LS008 BT
(20194 : 1. 2188 L) IS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

The individually loss allowance for receivables relate to
customers that are in financial difficulties and management
assesses that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognized. The Group holds a
collateral amounted approximately of HK$8 million (2019:
HK$121 million) over the balances.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

17. 7€ 17. INVENTORIES
(KBEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
BIRK G Finished goods 434 548
GEECERAAERYDEEINERAT S The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in cost
13,7718 7L (20194F : 20.00/83%7T) o of goods sold amounted to HK$1,377 million (2019: HK$2,000
million).
18. HELHBHES AL ZE 18. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL
PREPAYMENTS
HELH
BENRE HeR M
Leasehold MIE
land Rental aF
prepayments  prepayments Total
(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2020 2020 2019
2018512331 H 2 B5MEF{E Net book value at December 31, 2018 - - - 196
HEVEMEBTHHREXEE  Impact on the initial adoption of
F16TMTE HKFRS 16 - - - (181)

R2020% k20191 A1H 2 Net book value at January 1, 2020 and

REFE 2019 5 6 11 15
WA Translation difference - (1) (1) 1
NE Additions - 1 1 4
EhT Transfer out (5) - (5) -
A E Amortization for the year - @) @) 9)

20205 %2019%12 83182 Net book value at December 31, 2020 and

REFE 2019 - 2 2 11
RIS Current portion - 2 (2 (6)
e Non-current portion = - - 5
132 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBHRRME(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. REMGSRBERIANEREZE
BMEE

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(X FEETAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
M1TA1B 2Bz A nE Opening fair value at January 1 5 6

DBz EEHEAN Change in fair value

REMEGERBZRARERE S transferred to financial asset

TREERME at FVOCI reserve 2 (1)
M12A31B 2R ARE Closing fair value at December 31 3 5

72020412 831 H X2019F12A31H * B
HMFEaREZ AT ERECSREERR
AFIRKIER AR AR ([RREERK])3.21%
2R o REBEERUBIILEE - EERERE
ERKEEER  EASENTIEHERC

— o

M2020F12 A31H » REMERE WEIZ AR
BEREZEMEEZ AR ERBIEH AT
B REETE  REBEVMBHRELERNFE1S
WL ARBEERSERE—R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

As at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, financial asset
at FVOCI represented 3.21% interests in Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (“Speedy”) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy
is engaged in garment manufacturing business and is one of the
key suppliers of the Group.

As at December 31, 2020, the fair value of the financial asset
at FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the Stock
Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

20. EELNFES 20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
TX&EINZEERAZRAR BT BRK The joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting solely
o SELEMAERRZERINT ¢ of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint ventures are as

follows:
ERTREBHERE
MY RKE I HEMER
ARNTEIE Place of BERABSLE Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital or FE%
joint ventures and operation equity holding registered capital Principal activities
2020 2019
Giordano Corporation RERE 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,000% E KL&TERE KB M
Limited* Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories
ERCEBRAT (Mita) BH - 49.0 200,000 KLBEMHES
Cheong Yiu Enterprises Hong Kong HK$200,000 Trading of packaging
Limited* (Note (a)) products
BEEEZEE LA * Jjoint ventures held indirectly
Wiit(a) - 7202098 H25H » REBMEEERERMESR Note (a): On August 25, 2020, the Group disposed its entire 49.0% equity interest in
fRAT 2 & E49.0%0% - R4 R EA98,000/4 Cheong Yiu Enterprises Limited for a cash consideration of HK$98,000.
ﬁ °
(K BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
W1A1H At January 1 538 552
BRI Share of profit 39 63
S EEXNEI N Dividends received from joint
ventures (54) (54)
BmE=% Translation difference 26 (23)
®12A31H At December 31 549 538

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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A EK N\
A=

DB ZMBERER

TXHINALERR 2P BEERFHEE -

MBHRRME(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Summarized financial information for joint
ventures

Set out below is the summarized financial information for joint

ventures.
EEEERER Summarized balance sheet
(X EEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
E Current
RERREFEET Cash and cash equivalents 76 648
Bt meh&E Other current assets 864 514
MENVEERLTR Total current assets 940 1,162
HMnsafE Other current liabilities (178) (208)
mENBEREE Total current liabilities (178) (208)
FRE Non-current
BE Assets 492 337
aE Liabilities (122) (183)
BESE Net assets 1,132 1,108
F 38 % 5 4% Summarized income statement
(U GEETHAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
Wz Revenue 1,157 1,385
e R Depreciation and amortization (114) (121)
ZH Expense (937) (1,092)
b TS R AT A Profit before income taxes 106 172
FR1SH Income taxes (26) (42)

BRPTIS TR 1R 5 A S 4 4R

Profit after income taxes and
total comprehensive income 80 130

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

20. AN FHER (K)
BB R 82 B D K
AU R ARTEEZ N B ABHEADE -

20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Reconciliation of summarized financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented
to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint ventures.

(K BEETREL) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
1A1HEEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,108 1,137
REE & F Profit for the year 80 130
&% 2 Dividends (110) (110)
BmEE% Translation difference 54 (49)
12A31HEEFE Closing net assets at December 31 1,132 1,108
[ NETY - Share of interest in joint ventures 549 538
THERE Lease commitments 5 399

AEBERHBZAERB 2 BRI RE LR
THHEARBEREAAE  MZEELERQF
RETEEARARABREAAE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRAERLIA

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’ s interest in the joint ventures,
and the joint ventures have no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments themselves.
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

REWME INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REBFBYEERRUA - The Group had properties which held for long-term rental yields.
(K BEETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
B Cost

M1 A1H At January 1 60 61
MEEE Translation difference 4 ()
»W12A8318 At December 31 64 60
BRBINE Accumulated depreciation

M1 A1H At January 1 37 36
MEEE Translation difference 2 ()
e Depreciation 2 2
»12A8318 At December 31 41 37
A12A831 B ZREFE Net book value at December 31 23 23

ZARBYEN2020F12 A1 HZ AR EH B
VHEZHEQRFE c FENDREBEREE
EFE  BBRMARINHEER S LA
MEIRITIREENF KANBAEME LN EE
BEREEEE - HFFRARBERENTUER
bt - HEMRANBTTSHCE2EHH
PR E M AT R T BRSO -
R2020F 12 A81H » ZWE(BIEEE it
REFHD) 2B ARER3L00EBTT ° £
AHFBERPEREREMEZASRAL
330878 7T °

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

The fair value of the investment properties at December 31, 2020
was assessed by an independent professional valuation firm.
Valuation was based on income capitalization method which is
based on the capitalization of the net income and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalization rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The total fair value of the properties,
including leasehold land and the building portion, was HK$35
million as at December 31, 2020. In the consolidated income
statement, rental income relating to investment properties of
HK$3.3 million was included.
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

21. REWME(E) 21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

138

WEETMEZRARER  WOEZE&ES KR
EREERERKRE

B EMEREREILATERINE

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

HE THEHR Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
BF HEHR KT ZRE0F Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or no
(AR E B%E) more than 50 years

BREMEZREFEINNOT

The net book value of the investment property is analyzed as
follows:

(A BEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2020 2019
EEBUIINER Outside HK, held on lease
10FE E=50F M4 of between 10 and 50 years 23 23

BREMENRAERRBEOBIEER A
BREMS EBRGSHNER(TABERBA) 1R
BESMBEHREERNEIBRNIAENER
DERE=MR -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The fair value of the investment properties was based on inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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M BEmRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HENE
% BRR
WAERE
KAERZ Leasehold
THREF WERRE  improvements, HE
Freehold land gF Plant & furniture & office Motor aar
(WEERTAEN) (In HK$ million) & buildings Buildings  equipment equipment  vehicles Total
RAE Cost
2020F1 A1H At January 1, 2020 56 12 50 1,113 21 1,252
hEEH Translation difference 2 - 1 29 - 32
NE Additions - - - 30 - 30
HE Disposals - - (1) (113) (1) (115
M2020F12 4316 At December 31, 2020 58 12 50 1,059 20 1,199
2RITE Accumulated depreciation and
kRE impairment
R2020F1 A1A At January 1, 2020 16 4 49 996 17 1,081
BEEE Translation difference 1 - 1 30 - 32
RifE Impairment = - - 3 - )
AERE Reversal of impairment - - - @) - @)
TEEHE Depreciation charge for the year 1 1 - 62 1 65
b= Disposals - - (1) (112) (1) (114)
M2020F12 4316 At December 31, 2020 18 4 49 981 17 1,069
1#2020%12831H Net book value at
ZRERE December 31, 2020 40 8 1 78 3 130
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

22, ¥ - HBRRE(E)

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
RENE
2B BR
WAERE
KAFEL Leasehold
TiHRET B&ELRE  improvements, e
Freehold land BF Plant &  furniture & office Motor At
(UBEBTAEN) (In HK$ million) & buildings Buildings  equipment equipment vehicles Total
RAE Cost
201812318 At December 31, 2018 55 23 50 1,115 21 1,264
ERES Change in accounting policy
g ] Adjustment on adoption of
F165AEE HKFRS 16 - (1) - (5) - (16)
20191 A18 At January 1, 2019 55 12 50 1,110 21 1,248
BEZE Translation difference 1 - - 6 - 7
NE Additions - - - 74 2 76
Ehd Transfer out - - - 4 - @)
& Disposals - - - (79) 2) (75)
1201912318 At Decermber 31, 2019 56 12 50 1,113 21 1,082
ZRNE Accumulated depreciation
K& and impairment
2018124318 At December 31, 2018 15 8 49 968 17 1,067
eHAER Change in accounting policy
RNBBIRREER Adjustment on adoption of
165 MAR HKFRS 16 - (5) - (4) - 9
M2019E1 A1H At January 1, 2019 15 3 49 964 17 1,048
BEEE Translation difference - - - 3 . 3
A Impairment - - - 11 - 11
KEENE Depreciation charge for the year 1 - - 92 2 95
Loh Transfer out - - - ) - @)
g Disposals - - - (71) 2) (73)
R2019E12 /4318 At December 31, 2019 16 3 49 996 17 1,081
R2019%12531A Net book value at
LREFE December 31, 2019 40 9 1 17 4 171

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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23. FAREERHEEAE

BERBBEREJINTHHERBENEHE

M BEmRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

LIABILITIES

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

FRAEEE Right-of-use assets
(KB EETAREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
RAE Cost
P20194F K% 201812 A31H At December 31, 2019 and 2018 1,908 -
SHBRER Change in accounting policy
RNEABYBREEE 165 M AR Adjustment on adoption of
HKFRS 16 - 1,374
®1A1H At January 1 1,908 1,374
MEER Translation difference 22 11
A Transfer in 5 -
AN Additions 134 524
HEBENR Lease modifications 5 3
HE Disposals (164) (4)
M®12A31H At December 31 1,910 1,908
2BINE Accumulated depreciation
REE and impairment
W1A1H At January 1 629 -
MEERR Translation difference 16 2
BE Impairment 79 26
VERIEREES Reversal of impairment (14) -
REEHE Depreciation charge for the year 542 605
& Disposals (164) (4)
M12A318 At December 31 1,088 629
M2B31 8 ZREFE Net book value at December 31 822 1,279
2020 2019
HERE: Lease liabilities:
E Current 427 536
IERE Non-current 340 572
767 1,108

HENRS RHAE AT 44EB (20194 ¢

9.421878 L) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

The total cash outflow for leases was HK$744 million (2019:

HK$942 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

23.

EREEEREEEGE (&)

NEFEBESRBRHAE  HELH  BE -
TEFHMNRE HEAR—RETA1ER
50%F -

HEFRERBERNBRHEETH - EF
BETRMGERMGET - BT HEARED
HEEETHERFREZRI - HEBZETIEN
EEMER - HEBEETSBIEEERR

HoMERERSHEPIMAELHEEHEES
Z A B FUER - HRERIFT c &m A B
100% K8 & 1+ F2 250 ] 58 & FUE K
BT BEOoLEEARHEEEMNS0%-30.5%
(2019%F :8.0%-30.5%) ° {# F3 A] & {5 &K
MNERBEZE  SREAETZPITHET
A - IRIBEHERETNAEHENK - &
FEZSENRGEHEREBAALERR T AR

e

HEGRERBEB BN BEETH - EF
BE TRMGEFRMESE - BT HEARED

HEEEROERERIN  HEBHZ MM
EREAMEK - HEEETSAIFEERER -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group leases various properties, including offices, leasehold
land, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are made for
periods of 1 to 50 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are
linked to sales generated from a store. For individual stores, up
to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment
terms with percentages ranging from 8.0% to 30.5% (2019: 8.0%
to 30.5%) of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety
of reasons, including minimizing the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

24. BHE 24. GOODWILL
(A BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
M1A18 At January 1 546 546
RIE Impairment (5) -
M12H318 At December 31 541 546

HMECREBEXRBAMAEMEEEF DA DR
ZK%IZEE&E‘JfEiFEEﬁ [k g

ww

Y

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according
to the location of operation and business segment. The goodwill

DEAWTAT - analyzed by operating segment is as follows:
(XBEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2020 2019
S &ak:s Retail and Distribution
- K E b [E — The rest of Asia Pacific = 5
- R — The Middle East 541 541
541 546
78R E A Impairment test for goodwill

HZE2020F12A31BILFE - AREENE
BEBREIE > BERESC0EBILEEA HT
TERPIER -

FRMEMNEEESRETREEDT - &
TNEEEBAREWERENTSERRAS
MREEREE FHEZAKESENIEE
AARBEREEXRATE  FIEREIRE
BB AT ERIEIET BN Mz EE
(BE=H— RM5E3(c)) - ZBEFEUE
BEMEZSFUBBEENTERANE SR
E-EEERBAGAPEREBELREEME
BRCEHRETES - PP R - £EGH
M- FEmNETFSFHEERER12.0% °
SFHMNBZREERE  BEFTEKER
KGFI0%HE - IR h RS 2R B (]
GE5 )  EARBRAER AT E A
10.3% @ Htbh RIBEFTEFER 2 AR X
HEA11.5%Z12.9% K ERMEELE DT
2R ER R
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, goodwill impairment
of HK$5 million has been recognized in the consolidated income
statement due to the cessation of direct-operated business in
India.

The Middle East goodwill has been allocated to the Middle
East operating segment, which represents the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored internally. The recoverable amount
of goodwill is determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal, using inputs for the fair value estimation that may
include unobservable market data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)).
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determines the financial budgets of Middle
East based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The weighted average annual sales growth rate in
the forecast period is estimated to be 12.0%. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal
growth rate of 3.0% per annum. The pre-tax discount rate used
for United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) as a tax-free zone is 10.3% while
other Middle East Regions use pre-tax discount rates ranging from
11.5% to 12.9% which reflect specific risks relating to the current
market assessment of risks specific to such assets.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

24.

25.

e (&) 24. GOODWILL (continued)
EFRAN2020F K2019F 12 A31BA R The Directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
[ I B R (E o the Middle East goodwill as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
NEEEBTHREEEREBEISNBEEERNE The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
TTHRMED T - AREERENG 2 @R ERE assumptions used for the annual impairment test for the Middle
MEEEES S reFErRRE 2 BEEHET East goodwill. A reasonably possible change in key assumptions
ZHERESEBEE OISR - BRETRDE used in the impairment test for goodwill would not cause any of the
MFEGFHEEEREXBREIOEGT S » siFk carrying amount of the Middle East CGUs to exceed its respective
AIAAIRFIRS16EE DR - U EEEFE recoverable amount. If the Middle East’s forecasted annual sales
H - BRI O S RE S EEEmM S EIEE o growth rate had been lower by 1.0 percentage points, or the pre-
tax discount rate had been higher by 1.6 percentage point with
all changes taken in isolation, the recoverable amount would
approximate its carrying amount.
% 2% 25. SHARE CAPITAL
R EE [} &N
(In HK$ million, except number Number of Share
(AR 2B S A B &EETTAEN) of shares) shares capital
EEBREESBLZEER - Authorized ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each:
M2019F1A1H - At January 1, 2019,
2019412 H31H8 - December 31, 2019,
2020F1 A1H X January 1, 2020,
202012 A31H December 31, 2020 2,000,000,000 100
ERTRE2EBE - Issued and fully paid:
R2019F1 A1H At January 1, 2019 1,5678,500,518 79
F NS B NS 2 B D Shares repurchased and
cancelled during the year (870,000) -
2019412 431 H &2020412 431 H At December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2020 1,577,630,518 79

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. A (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BTG

HZE2020F K2019FE12 A3 B ILEE
WEmBTHLRE - FARETEZ
BIRESRES2HHANAFREI3HE
170B 2R 5 [BEIRERTE R -

ARARBET AR EBRERNARE
BZREROESTEHBZFERESE

N2
ZS o

BREEH
[FERERT 8 | 2 ME RAABBRER
RERRNZ BB FBHNAFRF163
BZE1708 o

AR )

HZE2020F12 A31HILFE © RER
RRABRERNESEREMN —RERE
AAEE RBP4 $£870,000%
AAREBERED  BREAR1008F
T ZEEBERMEZEFEEAA
RIEBITRABEEZER G 2 mEE
oo REEE N REN ZBEEDET AR
RNaElZ B FERF - MRREFHEKRNE
BZFBEEHE L NEREEAER
R -

HZE2019F12A31AILEE » AR A
R 78 TR <X P B [0 B @ IR AR 1 e

—EEERTMEBEENRG
HR2020F12A31H - —RHAL QAT
A 7K A F]1,800,000 % 3@ I IX 1D (2019
£ 1 1,800,000 BAXAZ D) o
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202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Issue of shares

No new ordinary share was issued during the year ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019. Movements in the number
of the outstanding share options during the year is set out
on pages 163 to 170 under the heading “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” of this annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during the
year are set out on pages 163 to 170 of this annual report.

Repurchase of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2020, pursuant to
the general mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company to the Board, the Company repurchased a total
of 870,000 of its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of HK$1 million, these repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled and the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the cancelled shares accordingly. The premium paid and
payable on repurchase was charged against the retained
profits of the Company. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled was transferred from retained
profits to the capital redemption reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
did not repurchase its ordinary shares on the Stock
Exchange.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2020, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2019:
1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint venture.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

26.

EAREEFHMER
HE2020F 12431 IE 2 ETERERRLTE L

1.61{8/8 7T (20194 : 2.07{8/87T) © HHPT.
Giordano Indonesia ([ Giordano Indonesia|)1h
1,458 7L (20194 : 1.858 & L) * MTextile
and Ready Garments Co. Ltd. ( [ Giordano
KSA 1) 151,100& & Jt (20194 : 1,700 & /&
7)o BEfb AR Z IEERIERTERK o

20207 A178H - MEIFE2EFARIER
f9FA FGiordano Indonesia#)3F 12 A% A% 3R 25
5 T Uk - PAEGiordano Indonesia®
HWEBETRMDOI5% - BREAL00EF N
WoT - HER#2,3008H8 T - BKE - A%
B K HEE52.06 %MD - WKEEIERT R
AMEZEIIEZEWNB LR - EMBEERE
BAEMIAEENTHRERF -

ZRWEERIEE R2020F7 A e 5 »

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31, 2020 are
HK$161 million (2019: HK$207 million), of which HK$145 million
(2019: HK$185 million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia (“Giordano
Indonesia”) and HK$11 million (2019: HK$17 million) is for Textile
and Ready Garments Co. Ltd. (“Giordano KSA”). The non-
controlling interests in respect of the rest of the companies are not
material.

On July 17, 2020, the indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary
entered into the acquisition agreement with the non-controlling
shareholder of our subsidiary, Giordano Indonesia to acquire
15% of the entire issued share of Giordano Indonesia, for a
total consideration of SGD4 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$23 million. Upon completion, the Group will be owned as to
52.06% and will remain as an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and its financial results will continue to be
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

The acquisition is deemed to have been completed in July 2020.

EEEEREH Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(X BFEETAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019 2020 2019
E Current
EBE Assets 280 235 100 99
afE Liabilities (46) (86) (72) (51)
MENFEESR Total current net assets 234 149 28 48
FEFRE Non-current
BE Assets 155 222 56 66
BE Liabilities (87) (64) (8) (13)
IEMBNFEEBE Total non-current net assets 68 158 48 53
BEE Net assets 302 307 76 101

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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BB HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. EXFEHMERER (&)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

D ECE K Summarized income statement
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA

(U BH BB T AENT) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019 2020 2019
LON Revenue 380 630 205 342
BRETERALEF, (E18) Profit/(loss) before income taxes 9 102 (8) 46
FTiS®t Income taxes 1 (28) - (8)
MRETBH%ER,(EE) Profit/(loss) after income taxes 10 74 (8) 38
HAmAR & e Other comprehensive income (4) 10 (1) (1)
WA WS Total comprehensive income 6 84 9) 37
FEVE G MR S R AR A W E Total comprehensive income

allocated to non-controlling

interests 6 38 (1) 9
FEEFIMRRENRE Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests - 29 5 9

HERERFE Summarized cash flows
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(B BB TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019 2020 2019
KEREB 2R RAFRE Net cash inflow from
operating activities 78 126 40 82
REFEBZHEeRHFHE Net cash outflow from
investing activities 3 8) (20) (49)
BMEER RS ML T Net cash outflow from
financing activities (38) (101) (15) (29)
ReMREZEZEM Increase/(decrease) in cash and
CR ) cash equivalents 43 17 5 4
M1A1EZRE R Cash and cash equivalents at
REFBEET January 1 91 72 46 43
SN [ BB 2 R Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (1) 2 (1) (1)
R12A31BZERER Cash and cash equivalents
ReEEERE at December 31 133 91 50 46

B ERAARFEERR M HANSHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

eliminations.

The information above is the amount before inter-company
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B m R M (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

7. AR EEEERRESZER

27. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY

UNGIE-9-3=-R-€. Balance sheet of the Company
HZ12A31H
As at 31 December
(L F&EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
BE ASSETS
REBEE Current assets
e &fETT 17 Cash and bank balances 253 136
FEUER 5 &Eﬁﬁfﬂﬁlm Trade and other receivables 5 2
RS fﬂ Income tax receivable 2 -
F’Eﬂﬂﬁ% AIFIA Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,821 1,433
2,081 1,571
ERBEE Non-current assets
REZEREAREREZ Financial asset at fair value through
T REE profit or loss 28 28
HELTHEES Leasehold land and rental
B FRIE prepayments = 3
FREEE Right-of-use assets 99 106
&L Bﬁ |ENGIECEE Amounts due from subsidiaries 184 181
BB A m Interest in subsidiaries 816 816
1,127 1,134
EEHLE Total assets 3,208 2,705
EERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
u.béwﬁf* Current liabilities
R 1T B SR R L A JE ST 3K Trade and other payables 6 4
HESR f Lease liabilities = 2
FERTETS T Income tax payable = 3
JT%THWJ%’AET%KIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,567 1,459
BE%E Total liabilities 1,573 1,468
B EE Capital and reserves
LN Share capital 79 79
1 Reserves 1,447 1,089
FER AR S Proposed dividends 109 69
B Total equity 1,635 1,237
EEkaEHAE Total equity and liabilities 3,208 2,705
BERBEE Net current assets 508 103
EEABRRBEE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,635 1,237
2| E =&
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
E2 E2
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

27. AREEEBREEZEHR(E) 27. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

DPEREBZEER Equity movements of the Company
EX BRE
BERE 1
BA  #ARE Capital ~ RAEE Share  REEA < ER4E
Share Contributed redemption Share options  Retained Total
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve profits equity
72020F1 A1H At January 1, 2020 79 540 3 978 20 (383) 1,237
REEGRH Profit for the year - - - - - 511 511
BErals Total comprehensive income - - - - - 511 511
REREE Transfer among reserves - - = - 1) 1 -
ERETE Share option schemes
~BREER ~ Share option expense - - - - 5 _ 5
2019 RERE (HzF13)) 2019 final dividend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - (69) (69)
2020 R RS (M7F13(2)) 2020 interim dividend (Note 13(a)) - - - - - (49) (49)
- - - - 4 (117) (113)
120205125318 At December 31, 2020 79 540 3 978 24 11 1,635
20195 Z LB F AT - The comparative figures for 2019 are set out as follows:
X falkiE
BEEE FE
BAR  HABR Captal  REEE Share  Efafl  BEzAE
Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Retained Total
(W BEETEEN) (In HK$ million) capital surplus reserve premium reserve profits eouity
12019F1 1R At January 1, 2019 79 540 3 978 20 (224) 1,396
REREMN Profit for the year - - - - - 261 261
anils Total comprehensive income - - - - - 261 261
RERAE Transfer among reserves - - - - 1) 1 -
ERETE Share option schemes
-BREER - Share option expense - - - _ 1 _ ,
2018ERERE (HzF13)) 2018 final dividend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - (260) (260)
2019F MBIk 8 (F31133) 2019 interim dividend (Note 13(a)) - - - - - (161) (161)
- - - - - (420) (420)
12019F 124318 At December 31, 2019 79 540 3 978 20 (383) 1,237

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B m R M (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

28. f#1E 28. RESERVES
M2020F 12 A31H » REBZHEH TN The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2020 are analyzed
N as follows:
(U BF&EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
N HEEE Capital redemption reserve 3 3
& 175 B Share premium 978 978
B Share options reserve 24 20
PEE 3 Exchange reserve 9 (22)
HithfE Other reserves 141 114
REMERAERSRARBREY Financial asset at fair value
SEEERE through other comprehensive

income reserve (6) (4)

BRI Retained profits 859 1,089
2,391 2,561

BURAHAR B (ML 13(3) Proposed final dividends

(Note 13(a)) (109) (69)
B Total reserves 2,282 2,492

REBEvBABKRTDIEREESEEMNEELE S
EIREE  MEBERTIREMN199545 A 29
A5Ek 2 Eat Bl EST o iRIE A R IE1981
FREVE(IBE]) - BABBADIR TR o

HivfEEz T BHBEFBWT ¢

(@ RETERKEABEIEMIEESR  +
BAEHBAROEEREESR A A
RBEEFEBE(NE) RAAEMZE
BB A F 2 EAEE

(b) RIFFEREBRKEERBAG REEREE
R RBERBEZBERRETERE
He LA FER A AR EEHEARRE
BREEEAN - M AERSREIR
%o

() RIRMEEEEARDED] - P 2 fY
BRBIEAEREBES - RBAERE
SN ANAMEDBCZA e

d) BHEROHEZERMEAES 100
BB 7T (20194 : 5,9008 8 7T ) (M5
31)°

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit arising
from a group reorganization pursuant to a scheme of arrangement
which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(a)

According to the relevant laws and financial regulations,
the statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China are used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation
Law and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve
fund and other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic
of Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit or be
transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law, the
statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE is not
available for distribution except as provided in the Federal
Law.

Put option financial liability recognized of HK$81 million
(2019: HK$59 million) (Note 31).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MBHRRME(E)

2020F12H31H

December 31, 2020

29. |ITER 29. BANK LOANS
(A BEEBTRER) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
RITERBIEUATEIE Bank loans comprise the following:
MHIRITER Short-term, unsecured 52 265
REIRITER Long-term, unsecured 100 -
152 265
RITEFAER T HBEE - The bank loans are repayable
as follows:
BHAsk —F K On demand or within one year 52 265
MFEERFAN Between two to five years 100 -
152 265

AEBEZRITEFATIEEE -

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in the following

currencies:
(K E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
—%7T - United States dollar = 199
— AT - Hong Kong dollar 140 40
— ¥ hI3E T — Singapore dollar 12 -
—¥AK — New Taiwan dollar - 26
152 265

R2020F 128318 » AEBEZRTERNE
BRAIE 51.6%(2019%5 :12.4%) < SRITERH
FEF KBRS °

BB RAISHERITERTIUAREE
REMARERSEM -

RITEFNERAEREARERS

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans as at
December 31, 2020 was 1.6% (2019: 2.4%). The bank loans bear
interest at floating rate that are market dependent.

The bank loan obtained by our subsidiaries are secured by the
corporate guarantees provided by the Group.

The carrying amounts of bank loans are stated approximately at

their fair values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

30. FEfT BRI H it FE S =K 30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(U Ea&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019

FEATERSK Trade payables 166 139

Hin s & Other payables and accrued

e & A expense 352 553

518 692

AT ABIENBERZEB ST The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(L F&EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019

0%30H 0-30 days 91 111

31£260H 31-60 days 47 15

61290H 61-90 days 15 1

#90H Over 90 days 13 12
166 139

FERERRAEMENRCEREREARE The carrying amounts of trade payables and other payables are

HBaE - stated approximately at their fair values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

52 b s namaemrmaa ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #



31.

B AR MR ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RURBEHHERE

2012 % -+ 7 £ @ 3t (A Giordano UAE K
Giordano KSAZ FE#5 A% A% 15 i 580l HR % -
NEEHERLERARIZBTEZ TAS
BFfEENYBEEMERAELN1.02E
PETT o FR IR AR B P AN & B ST AN MLEE
Giordano UAE X Giordano KSAZ %1534 &
BERS AT MEEEIMBE - ZxEH%Ka
B IRE B ENAER - BEFTERSE
MIRE - REREHREaEUET(ET])
SHERSBREBEE -

R 20154 + ZAN & & 5k M Giordano Fashions
Co. W.L. L.([ Giordano KW ) % GIO Fashions
W.L.L.([ Giordano QA )z FE#E % AL R % 1
ROnHIE  UIEHEBEREE AR ZHTIE
BT AEBEMEEANYBAEMERBELN
1,900& 87T  ZI% 3200 A A A S B 2R
I B& Giordano KW X Giordano QAZ i& {534
%EERERIITE > MEBEDEAE - ZEYB
BEVSEEBEERARER  BEtEDS
HEHRE - HHRLBAEaEUNETTER
P AREAE

o

2019 & + A & @ # Giordano UAE -
Giordano KW K Giordano QA & 3F 1% A% i% 5
Rl EfTERIEEIE - UREDFIL
2,1008 % 7T ~ 1,1008 % 7T & 5008 % 7T H
£ Giordano UAER20% &8 #E25 ~ Giordano
KW #) 31% HY £ 5 # 75 & Giordano QA #Y
A1 %ML ERE 2R o IR — P U Giordano
UAE - Giordano KW X Giordano QAZS 7 # 25
KRB - EFTIR A ROh BRAE T R AV A 8
RonHIE e EE AR AR -

ZENREEEDSBERENEEREEHE
FRBEUBRERNEZREAABZAR
MET  REREZEENSER R ATER
MHEEREMERCRABREA)  BRIES
BHIERELEREISRZARENEBLE DA
BE=H -
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31.

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
UAE and Giordano KSA to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their amortized
costs, which is measured at the present value of the estimated
redemption amount. The put option liabilities are denominated
in United States dollars (“US$”) and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from
the put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of
Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L. (“Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions
W.L.L. (“Giordano QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their amortized
cost, which is measured at the present value of the estimated
redemption amount. The put option liabilities are denominated in
U.S. dollars and are classified under current liabilities.

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA who exercised the put option to sell 20% economic
interests in Giordano UAE, 31% economic interest in Giordano
KW and 41% economic interest in Giordano QA at considerations
of approximately HK$21 million, HK$11 million and HK$5 million
respectively. The associated put option liabilities recognized
arising from the put option granted had been lapsed accordingly at
the time of further acquisition of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA economic interest.

The redemption amount of the put option liabilities is determined
at higher of fixed amount of cash or fair value of the equity
investment based on discounted cash flows, using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs), which
is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

32. EERRERE

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

BEEHBaEHERAaE i T EER2IRE Deferred tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary
BRERIVAER Z TR RMIED EUERE - differences under the liability method at the rates applicable in the

respective jurisdictions.

NEBRERNZRELERBEELBEZ & The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(FER—#Fi @ 2 e AT - (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)

during the year is as follows:

EEHRE(EE) 86 Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
MEETTITE RATKZ
Accelerated R RF
accounting  Unremitted Hitb &5t

(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation profits Others Total
220201 A1H At January 1, 2020 - 117 (46) 71
BEESE Translation difference - 5 - 5
REERFA(ER),/ I (Credited)/charged to income

(BfsF11) statement (Note 11) (11) 2 (29) (38)
202012 A31H At December 31, 2020 (11) 124 (75) 38
7201941 A1H At January 1, 2019 (6) 121 (39) 76
MEEH Translation difference - 3) - 3)
RAEERF (ER),/ 5% (Credited)/charged to income

(MfaE11) statement (Note 11) 6 1) 7) @)
7201912 A31H At December 31, 2019 - 117 (46) 71
REEBARERREILENIEE E6,2008 8T The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$62
(20194 : 6,2008 % 7T) X ZRNTIE o b5 million (2019: HK$62 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
RERELEFBEEEE H2,2008 %77 (2019 unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$22 million
F :2,7008E7T) 1 2019F12 A31 H L5 (2019: HK$27 million) will expire within 5 years from December
FAER - BT ETERBRMNREREN B 31, 2020. The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of

RAEZ ERABIESIZK -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A WE B AER LA

subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. EEBEAE(HE)

33.

EEBIR(EE) BE(H)

FEOEERNFAT - BREMFHRS RE—
IR EERAEER EELERERE
BRI - TIHSBAESAEBERER 1
EHEERBERANIEK -

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
RIERIA B B Deferred tax assets (96) (54)
BRI A E Deferred tax liabilities 134 125

38 71
HEHE 33. LEASES COMMITMENTS

(a) 20209128318 AEEREE/L
i MAERERZ T RARREHEZ
HENEEMNESERAN —FRNEH
R ¢ %8 /42,2008 8T (20194 : 3,200
BB e

MEANBEETRBRGK  HEEM
W N AR - B TPImcHEREEST
BESKERBHSIAHERFEZHE
E(ABEBERE) o LHAETIZRKE
REHSAE -

E2019F1 A1H#E - BREHHEEN -
AEECEZSHERRAERAESR
B E—TERBL2EMNE23 -

(b) M2020F12A31H » REERTEE
R AE 2 DRI R RBE 2 &8
ENmEEKESKALT

(@)  As at December 31, 2020, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
leases in respect of retail shops, office premises and
warehouses which were due within one year amounted to
HK$22 million (2019: HK$32 million).

The leases contracts have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The lease rentals of certain outlets are
based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

From January 1, 2019, the Group has recognized
right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term
leases, see Note 23 for further information.

(b)  As at December 31, 2020, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops and office
premises as set out below:

(KB BB TREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019

1A Within one year 8 17
1FEESF A After one year but within five

years 13 24

21 41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

34, EAXREIE

M20204F 2019412 A31H » AEE I &
EABERHEEMEEE - %W\&&ﬂmié

2 EARSE -
35. MEEHEL ZREHK

TRAMAKEERERELTHNRER

PERERIFREE mﬂ%ﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁ’ﬂ
Efiﬂﬁfﬁi/mgﬁﬁﬁ j*;}:ﬁﬁx)miﬂ%
AEEGEVMBRETOBERRE BT ME

Emiﬁimui °

34.

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material
capital commitment in respect of leasehold improvement, furniture
and fixtures.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

MEXBKAE
Liabilities from
financing activities

HEAE BITER

Lease Bank
(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) liabilities loans
12018512 A31 A 2 % &% Net debt as at December 31, 2018 - 298
2 quBZﬁ PR E AR T 2R Change in accounting policy adjustment
E165ATE on adoption of HKFRS 16 1,110 -
R2019F1 A1 8 2 R EH Net debt as at January 1, 2019 1,110 208
BRFITER Repayment of bank loans - (332)
BINRITE R Addition of bank loans = 299
TNHEaE(REFE) Payment for lease liabilities
(including interest) (556) -
FERE# Non-cash movements 554 -
R2019F12 A31H 2 /#EH Net debt as at December 31, 2019 1,108 265
BERITER Repayment of bank loans = (266)
EINRITER Addition of bank loans - 153
STHAEaE(RENER) Payment for lease liabilities
(including interest) (528) -
FReE Non-cash movements 187 =
R2020%12 331 H 2 FEH Net debt as at December 31, 2020 767 152

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

36. EEEBALIRS 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Bl A LIS B MRS S —7 - RiE Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
EHBEREEBRRBH S —HITEEAY directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
BhH2 AL HRAZMAZEHSHZMAEKR significant influence over the other party in making financial and
FENZANLTTEEE@EBAL - operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related

if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.
(a) HEBAL2ZXRS (a) Transactions with related parties
RAFEERN  BTHBRARIE—H&AE During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with joint
BEKAREHEAENFEITIEERER ventures in the ordinary and usual course of business
KRG - BAZERSHMAMT - on normal commercial terms. Details relating to these

transactions are as follows:

(A BBEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
HET—HAEEQNR Sales to a joint venture 155 160
REEAEQF Purchases from

joint ventures 1 1
FERFREWA Royalty income from

SRR Fa /NG a joint venture 24 26
(b) EHEAEEA X 248K (b) Balances with related parties

K12 831 B U R A L 30A - Amounts due from these related parties at December 31 are:
(K FEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
WA &R RIFRIE Amounts due from joint

ventures 14 8
2020F12 A31H b it & Ui Bg B As at December 31, 2020, the above amounts due from
+ B2 MR E U BR B & H b E R related parties are reflected in trade and other receivables.
o BURFIBEHAEERR 2B RAER The receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest
BREFER - and are repayable on demand.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

36. EEREBALIRSG (&) 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) TEEEEBHRM (c) Key management compensation
FTERTESHRGATEEEE @ Executive Directors are considered as key management and
ZMMEE NI BRI 10AHKE - their emoluments have been disclosed in Note 10 to the
EMEEEEERNOMEOT - financial statements. The emoluments payable to other key

management are as follows:

(BT TREr) (In HK$°000) 2020 2019
EXFHek Basic salaries and
H U o Other Benefits 9,452 10,595
RIRSET BB Contribution to pension
schemes 111 144
EEAE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 248 4,526
9,811 15,265
37. EEE#H 37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
R20204F 2019412 A31H » AEE I & The Group did not pledge any assets as of December 31, 2020
BHREMEE - and 2019.
38. AREE 38. CONTINGENCY
M2020F 128318 » ATk B BERNRIE At December 31, 2020, contingent liabilities not provided for in the
R PR financial statement were as follows:
(G EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2020 2019
REERYEZRS 2 Bank guarantees given in lieu of
RITHER property rental deposits 13 16
RBEHBELERE  ESUTARABMEM As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider
ZEERMAEAARNQABIREZER - it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
It W 20204 2019412 A31 B it:Z any of the guarantees. No provision was therefore made in this
SRR T RBLE - respect at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HAEHE (&)

AREBRESG —UETIHEHEELETE—
RIERAANEEREFHR  ZFRIDEE
BBMEET ARRBERETIRERRE
BENRGENZNRE XXTLEHE
BER /" RERHES  EXERETRE
KORE - EFRRKREEMER - 2KAF
RNZ=EYE - Wt A REEEBFERZK
BRAT R ARAEM MR BOMNENEER
B o RARFERT AR A BEE R K6 2O fE
HEANGR@RA BEARAHRENR
SRR R REE I KT
REME - BEHARMMEEIRABEEEH
MERLWK  YHEREEEELARTE
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38.

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

CONTINGENCY (continued)

The Company remains engaged in a dispute with one of its
landlords on matters relating to the leasing of one of its shop
premises in HK, which continues to proceed by way of arbitration.
The Company is demanding/claiming from the landlord a refund of
various management fee and service charge overpayments, which
demand/claim is being contested by the landlord and met with a
counter-demand/claims by the landlord for forfeiture of the lease
and a demand for the Company to deliver vacant possession and
to pay mesne profits and damages in respect of the Company’s
continued occupation and use of the premises and a related
structure. The Company envisages that this dispute is likely to
be resolved within the next 6 to 9 calendar months. While the
Company is satisfied with the solidity of its claim and basis for
opposing the landlord’s counter-demands/claims and has taken
into consideration advice from external legal counsel as part of
preparations to defend the Company’s rights, an unlikely arbitral
award against the Company may lead to forfeiture of the lease and
negatively impact a portion of the carrying value included on the
consolidated balances as right-of-use assets.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

39. FEME AT 39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
RATIN2020E12A31A 2 EMB A TN The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
™ as at December 31, 2020:
BERG 2 BRTR2BHERE/
EREDE AMER /GEER
Effective Issued and fully paid FEX¥ REHE
MEBAREHE [pdosit s percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2020 2019
BHRAR A &5 100 100 3,000,00087T KETERSHERER
Bluestar Exchange Limited*  Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 BwAm/ &5
Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong
East Jean Limited* i 100 100 1,000,0008T HETERELEBER/BE
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* w58 49 49 200,000 FERETE LETERELESAR/
State of Qatar QAR200,000 RER
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion #E 60 60 26,000,000,0008%E SETEREREBAR/ WH
Company Limited* Vietnam VND$26,000,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) B 92.8 92.8 70000027 KETERELEERR/ M
Pty. Limited” Australia AUD700,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Australia
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.*  fBtg 49 49 3,000,000/ BN} KETERRKEBAR/
UAE AED3,000,000 Dl
Retail of apparel and
accessories/UAE
Giordano Fashions W.L.L.*  RIE4E 49 49 300,000 BEEME CETERELEERR/
State of Kuwait KWD300,000 R
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Kuwait
ERRAERDA B 100 100 5,000,008 KETERSHERER
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 E@Am/ EH

Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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M BEmRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202012 H31H
December 31, 2020

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BFERBZ BERTRZEHMERE/
G ERES AMER/BEEE
Effective Issued and fully paid FE%£% K&EHE
= PNGIES B AL it B percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2020 2019
Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.* =E 100 100 10,000,000% 4k KETERRLEBAR/ ZE
Thailand Baht10,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Thailand
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd. BRAE 100 100 5000005 RALSE HETEREREBAR/
Malaysia RM500,000  HkAER
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Malaysia
PR AR A A P 100 100 50,0008 % LETEREREERR/ RN
Giordano (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP50,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Macau
Giordano Middle East FZE*  f[B# —H7F 100 100 1,000,000/ B s} CEDBEREREERSR,/
Dubai - UAE AED1,000,000  FBfeE — 3
Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai - UAE
Giordano Originals 703 100 100 1,900,002 MK KETEREHRER
(Singapore) Private Singapore SGD1,900,002  FRHEA&,/Fn%k
Limited Retailing and trading of
apparel and accessories/
Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* &% 60 60 802,000%7T RERR/ BF
Hong Kong USD802,000  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) RHE 80 80 4,000000R BEER LETEREREHEAR/
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000  HIEHE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia* gfe 52 40 2,500,000,000E18 8 HETERE  EBBEmRk
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000  HAMERHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 #
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Retail of apparel,
accessories and related
products/Indonesia
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2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020

39. T EMBE AT (&)

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HERHZ BERTRZEMERE
ERES X aRMER/BEER
Effective Issued and fully paid FEZ#H/KEHE
MEBATRE R 3 percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2020 2019
RNRBHKBERRA P EARANE 100 100 210,100,000t ARHE HREER  RERHEERER
Shenzhen Tiger People’s Republic RMB210,100,000 TG,/ PR AR
Garment Ltd.” # of China Investment holding,
manufacturing and
retailing of apparel and
accessories/Mainland China
RECEERAR Bk 100 100 60,001,00087T HEER  KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$60,001,000  REEERE FEARE
Investment holding, trading
of garment products and
provision of management
services/Mainland China
Textile and Ready PR AT E 75 75 270000000 HEL WETEREREBAR/
Garments Co. Ltd.* Kingdom of SR27,000,000  HEMABIE
Saudi Arabia Retall of apparel and
accessories/Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.* ~ BIE&E 100 100 102%T  BEHEEFE/B5
Cayman Islands USD102  Licensing of trademarks/
Hong Kong
Hiat - Notes:

© AEEALCE
© ERAZHEAT
MBHmRHE

N EIHMEROAR2021E3A 11 HEES &
e

40.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

162 L s mmmae®R AL A

# A foreign owned enterprise
* Subsidiaries held indirectly

40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on March
11, 2021.
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BAELERZ B EABREEE o

(2) EEKSHE

() (@ EEUEFIBRZTEF(THEN
TTEIETT - BREERBILIEHR
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(i)  FHHEAEBEAIKE REMERBRERS
AR BB IE B A RT3 1T 2 (AR
HFZRAN K

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #

BhRERER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company terminated its share option scheme
adopted on January 24, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) and
adopted a new share option scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012) (the
“2011 Share Option Scheme”) on the same date. No options may be
and have been granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme after the
expiry date. The validity and effectiveness of the provisions of the 2002
share option scheme were expired on June 30, 2020. Under the 2011
Share Option Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, grant to
any eligible participants (as defined below) share options to subscribe for
the Company’s shares, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is as
follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible participants.

(2) Eligible participants
(UNCY

any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent
non-executive Director), employee or proposed

employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work
for; any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

163



EBRERER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

(3)

(i) 7N E % B o A R AR AR o 2
RRAR SR S 2 R A A -

(@ EAEBHEERAE - NEE -
AEERE - RERAE

(o) ERALHEEREHEFE  BER
s H M SR AR A - B
A - BREAMARE -

() EMEmKRFEER -
d EEEP %
e FAEIFATR(BEIEAR)

Koo g0t FEEEEIME - $E2EH—
fIe Z AR B A LR A BB 2 EE FTIEHZ
ERIRT] -

BREZFAETTFRTZROLEH

AITERE0M FRREFBRENAARE
PR S KA ETHROBE TSHBBNE
AR EE B ARARREEITRN Z210% °
% 10%PR 58 A A& AR AR AL/ T B # -

RITERBE2011 FBREFERARAH
i B AR AT 813X BV i R TT BE RO PR B B A
- ARAAETHRNEE NMEEEAARAF]
B2 BTN A EHI30% ©

MR2021F3 118 - RIE2011 FHEARESTE
BE A RITER A B EETE A
ZEITH IR AD 48 B 5128,740,000A% (B E A AR
NEBE BTN 2 #18.16%) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

3)

(i)

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder of;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,

(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the 2011 Share Option Scheme, shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEME

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under 2011 Share Option
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the respective dates of approval of each of the schemes. The
10% limit may be refreshed with the approval of the Company’s
shareholders.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time-to-time.

As at March 11, 2021, a number of shares available for issue
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 128,740,000 shares
(representing approximately 8.16% of the shares in issue) may be
issued upon exercise of all options which had been granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.
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BhRERER
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MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANTS

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted or to be granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Company’s shares in issue unless the same is approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder and/or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, and where the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to
be granted to such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the shares on the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval in
general meeting.

TIME OF EXERCISE OF OPTION

An option may be exercised under the terms of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Board may determine in granting the option and expiring at the
close of business on such date as the directors may determine in
granting the option but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFERS

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.
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2002 BB R AT &)
2002 Share Option Scheme

(8) BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when an
option is offered;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered; and

(i)  the nominal amount of a share.

(9) THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SCHEME

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption until June 8, 2021.

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

Movements of share options under the 2002 and 2011 Share Option
Schemes during the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out below:

BREHE

Number of share options

sk

R2020E  REARE  RERTE  REREE  REAZE  R200F (i
1R1H Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A31H Exercise

SERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TEsR

Eligible participants 1/1/2020 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2020 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (A/8/%) (A/8/%)
HKS  (MMDD/YYYY) (MMDD/YYYY)

BEANES 200,000 - - 200,000 - - 3340 07/07/2010  03/22/2012-06/30/2020

Continuous Contract Employees 2,524,000 - - 2,524,000 - - 3340 07/07/2010  03/01/2013-06/30/2020

4if

=1']

Total 2,724,000 - - 2,724,000 - -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BhRERER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

20115 B IR FERT 8
2011 Share Option Scheme
EREsA
Number of share options
8
R20208  REARY  RERTE  REAXN  REREE  R02% i |
1B1A Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A318 Exercise
SERSHE Asat during during during during Asat price BHAY TESR
Eligible participants 111/2020 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2020 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
Er (A/B/F) (R/B/%)
HKS  MuDD/YYYY) (MMDD/YYYY)
£z
Directors
[ 400,000 - - - - 400,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012-09/30/2021
CHAN Ka Wai 600,000 - - - - 600,000 5200  10/07/2011  03/01/2013-09/30/2021
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 5200  10/07/2011  02/268/2014-09/30/2021
100,000 - - - - 100,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/04/2015-03/23/2024
150,000 - - - - 150,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/04/2016-03/23/2024
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000  08/24/2014 03102017 -03/23/2024
250,000 - - - - 250,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/09/2018-03/23/2024
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/08/2019-03/23/2024
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017-12/31/2025
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018-12/31/2025
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 01/06/2017  08A0/2018-12/31/2025
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1390 09/09/2020  03/12/2021 - 06/30/2028
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1390 09/09/2020  [ff31 Note 1-06/30/2028
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1390 09/09/2020 {32 Note 2- 06/30/2028
7,700,000 3,000,000 - - - 10,700,000
BEY 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/04/2015-03/23/2024
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - - - 300,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/04/2016-03/23/2024
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5000  03/24/2014  03110/2017-03/23/2024
500,000 - - - - 500,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/09°2018-03/23/2024
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5000  08/24/2014  03/08/2019-03/23/2024
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3792 04/09/2015 03102017 -03/31/2025
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 01/06/2017 08112017 -12/31/2025
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018-12/31/2025
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4180 01/06/2017 081102018 -12/31/2025
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1390 09/09/2020  03/12/2021 - 06/30/2028
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1390 09/09/2020 {31 Note 1-06/30/2028
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1390 09/09/2020  [ff3E2 Note 2- 06/30/2028
6,064,000 3,000,000 - - - 9,064,000
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

EREHE
Number of share options

gh

R2020F  RERRE  RERTE  REARN  REREE  H02% g

1818 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A31R Exercise
RERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TSR
Eligible participants 1/1/2020 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2020 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
Er (A/B/%) (R/B/%)
HKS  (MMDD/YYYY) MWDD/YYYY)
BEANEE 2,600,000 - - 160,000 - 2,440,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012-09/30/2021
Continuous 4,740,000 - - 240,000 - 4,500,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013-09/30/2021
Contract Employees 11,250,000 - - 550,000 - 10,700,000 5200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014-09/30/2021
392,000 - - - - 392,000 5380 06/12/2012  03/01/2013-12/31/2021
2,240,000 - - - - 2,240,000 7.650  04/10/2013  02/28/2014-03/31/2022
3,926,000 - - 234,000 - 3,692,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2015-03/23/2024
5,860,000 - - 348,000 - 5,512,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2016-03/23/2024
7,876,000 - - 470,000 - 7,406,000 5000  03/24/2014  03A0/2017-03/23/2024
9,892,000 - - 592,000 - 9,300,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/09/2018-03/23/2024
11,826,000 - - 706,000 - 11,120,000 5000 03/24/2014  03/08/2019-03/23/2024
3,484,000 - - 238,000 - 3,246,000 3792 04/09/2015  03/04/2016-03/31/2025
4,026,000 - - 246,000 - 3,780,000 3792 04/09/2015  03110/2017-03/31/2025
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4000 07/10/2015  03/04/2016-06/30/2025
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4000 07/10/2015  03A0/2017-06/30/2025
942,000 - - - - 942,000 4340 09/19/2016  0310/2017-06/30/2026
946,000 - - - - 946,000 4340 09/19/2016  03/09/2018-06/30/2026
10,822,000 - - 154,000 - 10,668,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017-12/31/2025
11,980,000 - - 186,000 - 11,794,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018-12/31/2025
15,014,000 - - 276,000 - 14,738,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/10/2018-12/31/2025
2,758,000 - - - - 2,758,000 4050 06/09/2017  08/11/2017-12/31/2025
2,758,000 - - - - 2,758,000 4050 06/09/2017  03/09/2018-12/31/2025
2,784,000 - - - - 2,784,000 4050 06/09/2017  08/0/2018-12/31/2025
- 21,222,000 - - 188,000 21,034,000 1390 09/09/2020  03/12/2021 - 06/30/2028
- 21,222,000 - - 188,000 21,034,000 1390 09/09/2020  FizH Note 1 -06/30/2028
- 21,756,000 - - 194,000 21,562,000 1390 09/09/2020  FiE2 Note 2-06/30/2028

116,616,000 64,200,000 - 4,400,000 570,000 175,846,000
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

EREHE
Number of share options
gh
R2020F  RERRE  RERTE  REARN  REREE  H02% g
1818 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A31R Exercise
RERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TSR
Eligible participants 1/1/2020 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2020 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
Er (A/B/%) (R/B/%)
HKS  (MMDD/YYYY) (MMDD/YYYY)
£ 340,000 - - - - 340,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012-09/30/2021
Others 720,000 - - - - 720,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013-09/30/2021
3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 5200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014-09/30/2021
510,000 - - 30,000 - 480,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2015-03/23/2024
758,000 - - 44,000 - 714,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2016-03/23/2024
1,020,000 - - 60,000 - 960,000 5000  03/24/2014  03110/2017-03/23/2024
1,282,000 - - 76,000 - 1,206,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/09/2018-03/23/2024
1,530,000 - - 90,000 - 1,440,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/08/2019-03/23/2024
200,000 - - - - 200,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017-12/31/2025
266,000 - - - - 266,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018-12/31/2025
436,000 - - - - 436,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/10/2018-12/31/2025
- 2,358,000 - - - 2,358,000 1390 09/09/2020  03/12/2021-06/30/2028
- 2,358,000 - - - 2,358,000 1390 09/00/2020  HfzE1 Note 1-06/30/2028
- 2,394,000 - - - 2,394,000 1390 09/09/2020 2 Note 2-06/30/2028
10,062,000 7,110,000 - 300,000 - 16,872,000
A
Total 140,442,000 77,310,000 - 4,700,000 570,000 212,482,000
143,166,000 77,310,000 - 7,424,000 570,000 212,482,000
Hiat - Notes:
1. 2021 F R E NMHEH 1. the day after 2021 interim results announcement
2. 2021 F 2 FELE T H 2. the day after 2021 final results announcement

BREEE

HE2020F12A31AIEFERN - EFEH2020F
OAHE FETAE RS EE ([ARA ) BERRE
B AR AR 2 RIATTEE SR .39 TREAR

A)277,310,000 %17 °
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VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board granted options to
certain eligible participants (the “Grantees”) on September 9, 2020 which
entitle the Grantees to subscribe for 77,310,000 shares at an exercise

price of HK$1.39 per share.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

MR2020F9 AORBH v EEREZMEt AR E ALK  The estimated fair values of share options granted on September 9,
1,3008B T - AATIEEAM N 2-8FRATRI{ 2020 was approximately HK$13 million. The Company has used the
EIRE01 1 EBREST 2 VB A -  Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair value of options granted
MAOR-SFREERN A EENERESREMBAIA  under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The Black-Scholes Model is one
FOFEBERE ARBEER—EEAEL « W5t of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option
ERREALEERERAZEZHLEREHENES  which can be exercised before the expiry of the option period. The
TR EME c BREEEREE T IE®RE 2 FEE  variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
M - RAZBEXZ2ERIT : options are based on the Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The
inputs into the model are as follows:

£ B H 202099 A9H
Date of Grant September 9, 2020
BlERR 77,310,000

Number of options

BhEzSRARE 0.163/7T
Fair value per option HK$0.163
|\ b N (A2t (a) 0.424%

Risk free interest rate (Note (a))

1% B IE | =& 6.976%
Dividend yield
TEHRR & (A7 7t b)) 28.927%

Expected volatility (Note (b))

T8 HR B A% 4 F BP 8.32

Expected life of options
izt - Notes:

(a) R FIERIRIE B EBITES Was K2 BELAREFEE  (a) The risk free interest rate is based on linear interpolation of Hong Kong Government

SEETE o Bonds Benchmark Yield Curve.
(b) TEET I ME 2 B R AL B R R F 5 1E e (b) The expected volatility is based on volatility of the stock price of the Company over the
past year.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting May 14, 2021 to May 21, 2021

(both days inclusive)

Final Dividend June 1, 2021 to June 3, 2021

(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

May 21, 2021

Dividends

Interim Dividend : 3.1 HK cents per share
Paid on : September 18, 2020
Proposed Final Dividend 6.9 HK cents per share
Payable on June 18, 2021
STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange : 709

Bloomberg : 709 HK

Reuters : 0709.HK
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

BE BB

ENRBERARAR

EENEE

EDEBTTTIETTOM

K THEKNESE

B : (852) 2746 4668

BE : (852) 2370 8864

BTG investorrelations@giordano.com
48 4t

www.giordano.com

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRAERLIA

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

Email investorrelations@giordano.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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Welcome to the 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance (the "ESG")
Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”), which updates our
latest initiatives and achievements with respect to sustainability. As you
may be aware, 'World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo since
inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity, regardless
of ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends our operations and
management.

Giordano has long been committed towards being a responsible corporate
citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy
statement in 2005. Since then, we have continued to focus on “doing well by
doing good” in order to make a positive impact in the communities where we
do business, paying particular attention to stakeholder relations, community
involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in general,
this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance against ESG
metrics, including the impact that we are making on the environment and
communities, the way we deliver responsible products and exceptional
service to our customers in fairly and transparently, how we invest in our
employees’ development and foster an inclusive and supportive working
environment, as well as our framework to develop strong governance,
effective risk management systems and robust controls.

The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has affected many aspects of
Giordano’s business, from the suspension of planned community activities,
through to our ability to leverage certain economies of scale, and, it follows,
enhance our efficiencies. Certain indicators in this 2020 ESG Report will,
therefore, be somewhat distorted, but our long-term commitment to our
sustainability targets remains unwavering.

Reporting Standard and Scope

Prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange, this Report provides an annual update of Giordano's ESG
performance for the year of 2020, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the “Reporting
Markets”), which contributed towards 56.50% of Giordano’s sales in 2020
excluding shops operated by our franchisees and licensees. There are
no significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from that of
the last one in 2019. This Report complies with the “comply or explain”
provisions, which also reports on selected “recommended disclosures of the
Stock Exchange's ESG Reporting Guide. Detailed References to the 'Stock
Exchange’s ESG. Reporting Guide” has been included at the back of this
Report to aid readers and facilitate greater transparency.

Undoubtedly, stakeholders’ engagement is an integral part of Giordano’s
business development and commitment to global sustainable development.
Thus, in the preparation of this Report, we have continued to proactively
engage our key stakeholders (including our staff representatives, our core
suppliers as well as our customers) who play a critical role in our business
development. Stakeholders’ input, obtained via questionnaires, has provided
us with a comprehensive assessment of the key performance indicators (the
KPIs") with respect to ESG issues and helped us to identify the priorities of
our key stakeholders, which consequently strengthens the coverage of this
Report.
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{£ 711X GIORDANO

i 1 FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT
Wﬁﬁ BZ MR E

REREE A1 : BHERHEELR DR

Environmental Aspect A1 : Minimized Emissions through Green-Minded Operations

(1) EEM BPIBNEREELESRRES (1) At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations are
ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%}ﬁ@ﬂﬂ E’jg—iﬁﬁﬁ Bt ERaAE environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste and
EZRMNEE M2 U8RI ES emissions from every aspect of our business activities, from production
RE) KB - at our suppliers through to our business operations.

2 FEMEE AENEETHMEREERG (2)  We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
HHFEEBRIRERER - overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations on

environmental protection.

RERB@E A2 : HHER

Environmental Aspect A2 : Conserving Resources

(1) REBRZEEFBBUNHEITERRD [HRED] (1) In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of
B - BB s R E B E R D ERE reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to reducing carbon
BEE ~ KER ~ AR REME - DU D i BE emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment through
B RERREERE -1 : efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of electrical power,
water, paper and raw materials by:

N

S o EEBHEH EMATTRERIRREN e incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our

m business principles;

o

m o  MABMEREREIR - Pl ER e using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the volume of

iy

Q R R EE raw materials and packaging consumed;

=

= ° TEEBHEANRLSEYRESE ° reducing waste generation within our operations;

r o HEMHEHEETIBFMESAEELE M e promoting environmental protection, via supply chain management

it fREIRIR + & and smart shop operations; and

E . RABFMESEHNRRES - . promoting environmental awareness among our customers and

G business associates.

%

=
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Saving Energy

HRENEREENRESREREBHNER As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our
BMERBORRAEFEHD IR T ATE greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emissions, various energy saving and

T E KB IRFNIR = BE IR AR Y HE -

efficiency measures have been undertaken in most of our office
premises and shops:

AM#REHEE M Energy-Saving Initiatives

FEGEEN
Lighting

Air-conditioning

B 2008 FFiE - RE(EHRIE T EHE MR
A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to energy-saving lights
commenced since 2008

NEHRBH D EBAEFHRRAKLEF RS
Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient split-type air-
conditioners

BB ZE 38 F AT R AR (R R

Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning

BIRFERTIDREAE 25-26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25 - 26

THIHETT S RARERSNEER

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance

AIRRAEBENRE - RMbWEEEEE (2)  Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned with

RRIRE MIEEIRIR o BEM 5Rs [RAI — B the conservation of ecological resources and driving environmental

RBDER - WEER - MEBAMER protection. Based on the 5Rs principle - to Replace, Reduce, Reuse,

A EAPERENSBHEIT RS Recover and Recycle — Giordano spares no effort to cut down on the

TSR D EIREFE « BURE - DA ROR D R use of resources, recycle materials, as well as to reduce the generation

MEEE - of waste by implementing different practices internally:

o EWMAEMIEHRAE L AKERAEG e  displaying notices and posters of water conservation at offices and
R shops;

o  TEHIME/KEETE - WRIREBEERDFK o inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;
B

o IRE [&E&kez] @ FRAEFE: e  promoting the concept of "paperless meetings” with the use of

electronic copies of documents;

o HBEHRKFEZKXEBDNEEANNH e pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white printing;
R

o [EIREEMAR e recycling used paper;

TERBA R mU R
ERBAEHORE &

e reusing and recycling carton boxes;

o reusing shop furniture; and

R BERERAAANRE - e reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

GIORDANO
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(3) Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behaviour and promote
environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green Team” set
up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a vivid example, which
brings together representatives from different departments to initiate
programs for promoting low carbon living. Moreover, to inspire and
encourage staff's green actions, we have also launched the following
initiatives:

(i) "Tips for greening our workplace” and GREEN news posted at
office and Company’s Intranet

- guiding staff to create a low-carbon working environment.

REBRERESE RPN G.Link & H 2018 £ 12 ABMKRIZRBLEFEM

To strengthen green awareness, our G.Link Club started sharing GREEN news

from December 2018

GIORDANO
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BaAERPERROENHENRE  RET
#&m%EEﬁ MA=MEEREE

Hn BERBEBEME GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS

Green Performance Overview
Graph 1

Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect to our
operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting Markets:

* 2020 tE¥1 2019 B LEEE 2020 vs 2019 % Change

EE 1 (AM-AxrEE)
Scope 1 (tCOe)

-21.9%*
250 /\
200 N B
2 B E Ny o157
50 9 2

100

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BRFRESHBEREHREE (86 2W_StHER)

HlE 2 (RE-ALHES) st (88 1+2) (AB-E{LHREE) @ﬁﬁ; (AW =SLHEE
Scope 2 (tCOLe) Total (Scope 1+2) (tCOze) u%%m )
Intensﬁty (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
+13.9%*
-23.5%* -23.5%* —
15,000 15,000 50 4.324
12000 | /\ 12000 14 /\ 40 :
N
N o LA 2 o lw w
00t = 3 0 7,470 00§ = 3 o 7627 08w ¥
40 @ B = & oo B8 w8 o TR S
’ > &5 R ’ e B B © ]
3,000 3,000 1.0
0 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

# MRRDHRE TR 2020 FREBERBHMMEENE DL

# Percentage contribution of the subject consumption towards our total

TOTAL GHG EMISSIONS BY CATEGORY (Unit : tCO,e) GHG emissions in 2020

RES

Electricity Consumption

7,470 97.9%)

SR $#EKE WATER USE

RAIEEFREEE

Corporate Vehicle Fuel Consumption

157 219

*2020 Lo ¥ 2019 EHHLEF 2020 vs 2019 % Change
@2019 #4552 2019 data amendment

4T Ik

Total (m)
120,000
—_—
-—
100000 5
80,000 > o -
= o ¢
60,000 o 5
40,000 g 32
0 ~N N
20,000

-24.2%*

TN

60,346

0lS9'6L

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BE (K B EEETEER)
Inten5|ty (m?*/HK$1m sales)

+12.7%*
40
" 34.210
35 o0
o
w
30 8 o =
N .
20 0* (8] w
¢ 2 %
15 w
© 3 g
10

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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; iﬁﬁmiﬁﬁi VEHICLE FUEL CONSUMPTION *2020 tE¥ 2019 EALLEE) 2020 vs 2019 % Change

—4
RET (a7 WE (aft/S-aEBTHEER) WE (AM_EREE/ T EEBTHEE)
Total (Litre) Intensity (Litre/HK$1m sales) Intensity (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
*
+18.07% +16.04%*
-20.66%* 7 4
100,000 N\ 400 35.015 0.10 0.0890
o © 350 008
e S & 61,766 %00 B ' 5
60000 5 & N = 200 N & © 2© 0.06 o 2 5
N o o 2K e 2 8 8 B
40000 O 3 50 & £ & 004 & 2 N 9
00 & © % o
20,000 0.02
50
0 0.00
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
5 FEEE ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION 2000 £6¥1 2019 BT 202046 2019 % Change
BEt (FETRH) WE (TEE G- BSBTHER) BWE (A-EHE R S-BEETHEE)
Total (kwh in '000s) Intensity (kWh/HK$1m sales) Intensity (tCO2e/HK$1m sales)
%* %%
.23.3%* +14.1 w23 +13.9
20000 ’-\ 8.0 — 40 ’
= 6.718 » "
15000 ﬁ S M 60 30 8 ® 3
S o & = 11,850 i . o = > l':) 3
p 0 3 [o] p =
0000 IS § § w0 8 § 5 & 20 N
5000 20 €3 10
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 ® 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 ® 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
! i $X5R H¥EE PAPER USE %2000 Eo ¥ 2019 EAELES) 2020 vs 2019 % Change
=t (2m) R (RN B EEETHEE)
Total (Tonne) Ihtensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
-38.9%*
201 4
% /\ 016 0.00535
IN)
c B B 2017 0.00629
15 = © o™
h " 2018 0.00554 *
10 : -14.4%
2019 0.00699 - 4
5
2020 0,00598 L
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ETEEMNE 8% + By + 2898
NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE GENERATION (Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material) *2020 LS 2019 B EEE) 2020 vs 2019 % Change
1At (D) BE (AN F-EEETHER)
Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
2000 ?;9%; 2016 0.514
- 2017 0.507 @
S & @
e NN @ 798 2018 0.474 -10.1%*

6LEL

. 2019 0.503 ~\
2020 0,452

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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BRMHEERE

PACKAGING MATERIAL CONSUMPTION * 2020 £ 2019 EHLEE 2020 vs 2019 % Change

ERIZE® (R8) BEEERE (A1) g (2) HEE (DEE) RIS (RN GIHERRE)

Price Tag (Tonne) Plastic Packaging Bag (Tonne) Carton Box (Tonne) Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/Piece of Finished Product)

- *
20161 50 2016 1 309 2016 1 837 2000 /35§ 2016 0.00004
20 20 20
171 52 17 1319 17 1 898 o E S g 2017  0.00004

2018 | 49 2018 | 302 2018 1 853 g g~° 8 - ﬁSF

2019 | 45 24.4%* 2019 | 254 35.4%* 2019 1 745 36.2%* o a E 673 2018 0.00004 F]
-24.4% -35.4% -36.2%

2020 34 /\ 2020 144 /\ 2020 47 /_\ 500 2019  0.00004 at

MBS HRE

U | SHOPPING BAG CONSUMPTION

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 O. 00004

*2020 tE¥F 2019 B ELEE) 2020 vs 2019 % Change

P

1. A&
.

#ET (2m)

foo

Total (Tonne)
- -55.6%*
w
w8 w /\
B w
o] -
200 € m
N o114
100

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

EREHM

HREFILE - [EHMSNREBIIUA
A B L AR E AR B T Bkt

RERT XERA

CRERBHROEEZR_ALCREENTAZIARBEAE

HRE

() BFRSIRZCEFIZ & ([IPCC])# #2006 IPCC
BZRAEREEEERD)

(i) RARARARERTHSRBRTHEESTRE (RE
REHTE  ERHFRRERA) WERFSER

(i) ERRHTHREBMASE TIZE RERESTHN(ER
REY (AR ATRAHAR) MR ERIB R EIRR A
HAHEIESI(20105F/)) -

(iv) ERERERAE  FEENERARAFTENERAF
MEERE - Rk
v) BREEREHRMNBETE -

RTEE2ERTMAPUREREHROER - RORBEERER
MEMRMRAUFBRFRIAEESHE CRERBRES -
REZERHEEN) WERBEER  E—SHERROARER
RESHEEI D BT M E SRS -

() T#E1DREHERTSEAREENEBERELNARE
RN TRREQRNEROMRERE(TRELIIRE
EMEE) |

(i) THRES2 % 2= R 7 E R 5 OB RERI I B 0 5| B [
ERERE HR(TEEFAEEERAN,/REFEANT
B HERWIFFEBEKIO

2. EREBUE  ERUSARBELTRNEENAEREY -

3. —LTEHERERAMNRESEL - ZENAKMEER A
REEREES] - SRR HARR AT -

4. ERAREERTSOAELES - WESIERKROEE

5 MRHRESZANERTSATEETRENGERE (TREMR
BYRAMBEDH) -

6. BYMRHFEESREERT S EAEHERNEERBHEYS
S -

BE (AW S-EEETHER)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2016 0.127
2017 0.108
2018 0.097

-33.7%*
2019 0.098 ~N
2020 0.065

Notes:

1. GHG Emissions
* Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the GHG
emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

* GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed with
reference to:

(i) the "2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

(ii) the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;
the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)”
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental Protection
Department in Hong Kong;
the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light and Power
Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and
(v) the data published by the International Energy Agency.

(i

(iv)

In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further classified the
GHG emissions of Giordano into 2 scopes (as below), which are defined in accordance with the
international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

(i) “Scope 1" covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the Reporting
Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles (excluding the vehicle fleets
of our contractors);

(i) "Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation of purchased
electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity consumed in some retail
outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls where electricity is not separately charged).

2. Inview of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste.
3. Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply and
discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant data is not

feasible.

4. There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the Reporting
Markets.

5. The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of the
Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material).

6. The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags purchased
for store use in the Reporting Markets.

GIORDANO
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{£ 1% (38 3F ) City Centre Deira &
EREBRRMBERRZ[HE
ZE |4 EBE

e ;R (37 ) City Centre Deira BEE [# B2
B |(Rfeiig AR SEH0E - 2R RIS M
City Centre Deira & [INDOORS ] HAfBR E /G &
1T o

[ 2 IA2RER [ERMERIERAEE S ]
ZH(LEED)EREE A » LEEDRRIED HiE A TR
R - MAT D LRI EBRE - B OMtEE
JET R BEUREBRE o

Giordano’s City Centre Deira Store Awarded 4-Stars
in Green Star Awards for Environmental Efforts and
Sustainability

Giordano's City Centre Deira store has been awarded 4 Stars in the Green Star
Awards ceremony, which was held at the vibrant INDOORS’ pop-up space in
City Centre Deira, Dubai.

Green Star is modelled on the United States
‘Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design’ standards (LEED), the points-based
rating standard that concerns the design,
construction, operation, and maintenance of
green buildings, malls and neighbourhoods.

BRERE A3 - BOHRREABRRTENTE  LIRETHERERE
Environmental Aspect A3 : Minimizing Impact on the Environment and Natural
Resources for Sustainable Development

() EARTABIRERREBABR - M
BHRERMARRE RO ELEEMEERRE
PRI RBETE - R

o EREBFAKE  §FBEIRBMERD
s
e —

o THIBEIRRIEN @ %Y B IRMEER
AHEARERROEEMERE &

o BRMIEHIERERROEAR o

2 ERREERELEBRRETKERRNAFE
BRER  YIERRESHEHEENER
Ez— B+ ORI EERETHRE
HROEREE - ERMOTERE - Bt
EBRERMNEEREE - i ERE
RERHMEENZERZZ— -

@) Wi BMEIAZETERBEMOER
he B — [l FRERNGIEREM
G-Warmer ZF|iBIEXKNEHR—EEE/KS -
NG EREMEIINRF TR LER - @
BAx2EW - BIRERA - BN mED
fE Silvermark by G-Motion 7 2017 & Fi4A
TE 13 BHE A Teflon-EcoElite B /KEl » 51&
BB S MR E KON BERZA - AT
EASHRE  MEBAS Z A THRMEZA
BAER o

@ BHERR - AXFRRR  BROFERBBEK
FEIRASERYR R2016F1 A1 HEE -
BPREHEEERBYREBHBEEER
BITEREERATR) [BREMRBES] A
FIE - BEE HKS0.5 #HnE HKST °

GIORDANO
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Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment and
natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-how to
minimize the negative impact on the environment during production
and operations. We:

e take into account the environmental impact of our activities and decisions;

e continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives and strengthen
target and responsibility assessments, environmental protection supervision
and management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices throughout
its operations, and places environmental protection as one of its top
priorities in the process of supply chain management. We are concerned
with the environmental risk factors in production, such as emissions and
waste discharge. Thus, in the selection of our suppliers, their measure
of protecting the surrounding environment is one of our key selection
criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For example,
we use polypropylene as one of the major components of our G-Warmer
thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene is degradable when
exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also fully recyclable. For our
premium activewear brand, Silvermark by G-Motion, we began using
fabrics treated with Teflon-EcoElite finishing since 2017, which is a non-
fluorinated fabric treatment for durable water repellency with 60% of its
raw materials being renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted to
charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested under
the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags of the
Government of the HKSAR; that is, from HK$0.5 to HK$1, effective from
January 1, 2016, to discourage the use of plastic bags and to encourage
customers to bring their own bags.
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é;bo . FOR OUR EMPLOYEES
Wﬁﬁ BEHMMWA

HEEmEB1 - B
Social Aspect B1 : Employment

M 1ERERUEMNRETER  ENRNEER (1) As an international apparel retailer, Giordano's retail network spans
WM A AN - BZ= 2020 F 12 A 31 8 - five continents operating a total of 2,185 shops as of December 37,
HPIHA 2,185 G - ERMEMEER 2020, which enables us to deliver our "World Without Strangers’ credo
EHEE DRBERAEANTR] BES & globally. For the Reporting Markets, our headcount reached 3,122
£2020%F 12 A 31 B - HMEEFRTEHA talents as of December 31, 2020, with a 26.92% decrease from 2019:
METABEEE 3,122 A » k2019 F Tk
26.92% :

2 ERDEE ZESRERD - 2EEER (2 Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
F—KENER - Bt A ATF R contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As such,
BEMNEEHFET - HMEE - BHEE - Giordano is committed to treating its staff with fairness and respect.
ET—OMEBEBRENRZAREE - We believe in co-operation, teamwork and trust as the foundation of
BMETERBERGERHLENNRE - Giordano. We hire based on ability and merit, reward and promote
Wiz AR 8 TV {E A R38R Bl A2 7 o based on performance.

2 Graph 2

E# 1% R T 5% TALENT DISTRIBUTION BY THE REPORTING MARKETS

N

o

S

1 B Ay #b Mainland China & # Taiwan é
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 g

——————————————————————————— e —————————————————————— vl
2,787 2,535 2,431 2,017 1,515 1,203 1,178 1,116 1,114 893 -

IR

5

B % #EF Hong Kong & Macau \ 4:
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 \ A2 ~‘"“i7 y 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 :ﬁ;

1,001 1,003 907 923 537 \ e 294 300 270 218 177 ?

-
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BEEMERSTTIL
RAFRRLE N G E—ES T TR - TR
RTERMHETEL

5 3

ERER 2
Employment Type Distribution

Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

We believe in diversity and endeavour to safeguard a diverse working
environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as
demonstrated below:

Graph 3
Fiko BzBETIht
Age Distribution Staff Composition by Gender

i 2016 | 3,064 (58.0% /N 30 5%
28 Full-time | ( b) o o

2016 | 3,800 (71.9%)

2017 | 2,588 (51.6%)

2020

2017 | 3,598 (71.8%) 2018 | 2,265 (47.3%)
2019 | 1,878 aaow 1,01 7626%
2018 | 3,391 (70.8%) l |

2019 | 3,011 (70.5%) 2016 | 2,041 (38.6%)  30-50 5% 24 Male %1 Female
30-50 years old
2020 | 2,626(84.11%) 2017 | 2,238 (44.6%) 22.3% 2016 77.7%
oy 2020
R _ 2018 | 2,305 (48.2%) 220% 2017 78.0%
M | &4 Part-time / Contract 2019 | 2176 50.9% 1,9 T1261.2%
21.4% 2018 78.6%
2016 | 1,485 (28.1%)
20.5% 2019 78.0%
2017 | 1,418 (28.3%) 2016 108 (3.4%) j(gg 50 5% u
> 50 years o [
2018 | 1,396 (29.2%) 2017 190 (3.8%) 612(19.6%) 2020 (:65J;)
2019 | 1,261 (29.5%) 2018 217 (4.5%) 2020 e
2020 | 49G15.89%) 2019 218 (5.1%) 193.2%

Q) EARE-FIMEFHRE B ITFMAFA
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B
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BEIHME—RELC - tMINZE - 3
MAMEFAZ MM EE SN &
Ik~ BI%E R REC File - EEUA -
BURBIKSERA NI E - IAEET
BAZWETFMW -

(i) #eEsrRl

EMPRERE  EEMAFTREEZN
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Ao B K2 TR EREAER
TEER PSS AR TR - %
ZRMWPIRTRENEBNEEBER
B ARBEBBHENEPOEME - £
EBEER -

(i)  EEHIRERBUR

REE—ERR - BRAMZE2HTIER
%HoREIRMET  RA—EREE
R R HK - AR E TR B ERE
B XEEREEE RS ERT R
BETHRESE - BRRBBORESEHE
HEHT -

GIORDANO

(3) A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in Giordano
to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly and equally,
with their rights and interests being protected. These include:

(i)  Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws and
regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion, age,
sexual orientation, political faction or marital status. All staff are
required to acknowledge receipt of the staff handbook.

(i) Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness are important
values, and are crucial to our long-term development and success.
Thus, the Code of Conduct has been established to convey our
expected standards of conduct and practices to all staff, who
are required to adhere to the highest standards of business and
professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of our business
partners and customers and grow our business.

(i)  Whistle-Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where staff can speak up, we have a longstanding whistle-blowing
policy in place that allows them to raise concerns and for Giordano
to follow up cases in a systematic yet protective setting. The
Company regularly updates the whistle-blowing policy.
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The following people management arrangements are in place in
Giordano to provide our staff with a better environment to work.

(i)  Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share options
and generous goal-oriented or performance-based bonuses
tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward and retain a
high-calibre leadership team.

(i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of staff
in the Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows them
to have a better work-life balance and work performance, but
also helps retain and recruit talent as well as enhance Giordano's
competitiveness.

(iii)  Family-Friendly Employment Practices
(a)  Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and at
home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high-quality
staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we strive to
create a working environment which that caters for the needs
of our staff and their families, with the introduction of flexi-
time work arrangements for office staff in Hong Kong and
Taiwan from 2016. Concurrently, for our shop operations,
we also adjust the front-line staff’s working hours to attract
certain targeted manpower, e.g. homemakers and retirees.

(b)  Working from home

During the Covid-19 pandemic and for the sake of the health
of our colleagues, the Company has encouraged staff to
arrange more work from home, to reduce the need for going
out and, thereby, to reduce the risk of infection. At the height
of the pandemic, we also introduced other measures to
counteract the risks associated with Covid-19 and to protect
our staff, better described in section 4(vii) below.

(c)  Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk in
the workplace, we have specially designated a private space
in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for breast milk
extraction.

(d)  Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from October 23, 2018, taking care of
the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices and
on the front-line to look after their newborn babies.

(e) Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Meanwhile, effective from November 13, 2018, we also took
an early lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave for
our male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the local
legislation.
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() Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff’s work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour
per working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfill individual employees’ personal and
professional goals, effective from October 2018.

ERIN(EE)5%% [ XTI | Giordano Taiwan Receives Elite Employer Award

ERREAR (A E — RERT [RFE
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28 SR PA2020F 12 A 18 B 877 » B BHE
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GIORDANO

Giordano Taiwan was conferred the Elite Employer Award for a
second time, having first received the honour in 2018.

The ceremony took place on December 18, 2020, and the award
was presented by the honourable Mr Tsai Ping-kun, Deputy Mayor
of the Taipei City authority. Over 150,000 companies sought
recognition, with only 47 ultimately receiving awards. Giordano was
in distinguished company, with fellow recipients including Asus and
Microsoft Taiwan.
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(iv)

Acknowledging Our Staff

(a)

Staff Commendation Award Scheme
e Commended cases:

Not only do we circulate commendations from our customers
who acknowledged our staff's good performance, but our
Hong Kong Headquarters has also additionally implemented a
“Staff Commendation Award Scheme” since September 2016
to encourage and award staff with outstanding performance
and/or significant contributions. Outstanding staff will be
nominated every quarter and the winners will be awarded a Staff
Commendation Certificate and a cash coupon as a token of our
appreciation.

(b)

RERE L

BT REETBEIRAREND
HEENET  RMISFHEMEE

REIRBETFERRREmAF
TER=1THZET-

(b) Long Service Award

In recognition of the loyalty and commitment of our long-
serving staff at Hong Kong Headquarters, we present
Long Service Awards annually to staff who have served the
Company for 5 years, 10 years and 30 years, respectively.
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Bi#H% Taiwan Market

E|L#t7E®) Mountaineering Club activities

iE A 4% Mianyue Line

EERIT-HIMENE
Spring Hiking-Yehliu Geopark

EBEE | MR
Basketball club activities: club practice

GIORDANO

Staff Activities

To reinforce staff's sense of belonging to Giordano with a healthy
work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff activities every
year. This year, we organized various interest group activities for
staff to participate in.

¥ ™ Singapore Market

FE2020%F ¥ iR PR ER 18 FE RS RRIBRE M AR T R
BREFNHAMAT NS NN E TETER1NEES

Promote healthy lifestyle during
2020 Singapore circuit breaker measures
Daily Exercise every 11:00 a.m. for all staff that can

join in (1 hour)



vi) BImEEHAE (vi) Staff Satisfaction

FE ERREeEFTEIREESH Surveys Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys to
& RS ERNEE  EAIETAR collect useful feedback as reference for improving our policies.

BURBFEN2E o

Covid-19 #3Z Covid-19 Surveys

HECovid-19KNRITHERE T » REICBHEBEEE  E1THR
Covid-19 T —FIRBHFERALBFETERRENALRSHE - I
ERRWEBERMRE -

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company has strived to
implement better corresponding measures, and conducted a series of
internal questionnaire surveys on the measures introduced in light of
the Covid-19 as well as the working environment of our offices to collect
everyone's opinions and feedback.

(Vi) BTHERI{EMEME FIIREEIN 0 A8 (vii) In addition to working from home and flexible working hours, the
HEATH) — R P BE & ¥ Covid-19 Rt Company has implemented a series of measures in response to
7 B the Covid-19 pandemic, including:
REEEREELMRED  FEES Providing alcohol sprays and wipes, hand sanitiser and face
RO : masks, etc.:
NEAEMNRAERE K/ NEE The Company distributes a small bottle of disinfectant to each
& RERSEERAACHIERD colleague and reminds them to disinfect their workbench or
FEEEITHEE - WARZIIMRAER surrounding areas frequently. The Company also provides
HOSZEHEMESHA - RERS protective and sanitization equipment, such as masks for
REBRER © frontline store colleagues to protect the health of colleagues
and customers.
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Flexible lunch times:

Department heads can arrange flexi-lunch times for colleagues
to avoid crowds gathering in the pantry and other communal
areas.

Temperature measurement:

All people entering the office
premises must have their
temperature taken at the door.

Strengthened disinfection and
sanitization:

The Company has strengthened the
cleaning of toilets and the pantry,

and regularly sprays and disinfects
carpets.

Opening of meeting rooms:

The Company continues to open meeting rooms to colleagues
to dine in, thereby increasing the space and distancing between
members of staff.

Maintain air circulation in the office building:

Colleagues in the Company who sit near the windows are
required to open the windows every day when they go to work
to maintain indoor air circulation.

General Guidelines for all staff:
e Wear a mask when working

® Bring your own lunch or take out to the Company to eat, try
to minimize eating in restaurants

e Temporarily avoid gatherings with friends or colleagues,
avoid going to crowded places, and try to stay at home in
your spare time

e Continue to maintain proper social distance
¢ Do not travel outside Hong Kong unless necessary
Notification mechanism

If a colleague, their family members or close contact is infected/
or is suspected of being infection/or has indirect contact with a
confirmed case, he or she must immediately report this to the
Company's human resources department.

Resumption of work arrangements

If a colleague lives in a building with a confirmed case, he
or she may resume work after completing 7 days of working
from home and submitting a negative Covid-19 test result.
After returning to work, he or she must follow the following 3
measures:

1. During work, the colleague is required to wear a mask at all
times

2. When resuming work, the colleague is required to enter at
the front door and measure his/her body temperature

3. Lunch alone for two weeks



HEEE B2 : RREFREAR2 (RZR)
Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
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OHS is a crucial component of Giordano’s overall safety framework, and
reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is an important and
constant objective. In addition to a long history of no-smoking policy
at the workplace, we continued to reinforce our strong leadership,
management system and training programs in 2020, so as to strengthen
our safety culture and enhance our overall OHS performance. As of last
year, Giordano is not aware of any non-compliant cases relating to OHS.

To ensure a safe working environment, we:

(i)  provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their
safety awareness;

(i) regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
safely by facilitating necessary tools with safe working environment;
and

(iii)  carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and shops
to reduce workplace hazards.

(a) Office Inspection Report

Conduct regular office working environment inspection to
promote cleanliness, fire safety and work safety.

(b) Hosting the webpage “Tips on Occupational Health &
Safety” on the Company’s Intranet
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Social Aspect B3: Talent Development and Retention Strategy
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Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and fairness,
as well as opportunities for continuous professional and personal
development, are equally important drivers for high achievers. As
such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff training and
development programs in sales and service, but also in management,
planning and leadership programs, to address staff's professional and
personal development needs and to retain a skilled and motivated
workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,
Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years. This remain ongoing.

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talent with an
international perspective, insight into international practices and strong
competitiveness.

(i)  Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the "MT") program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(i) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in the
Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received a
holistic and comprehensive training experience, such that upon
graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly into
mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as Fast-Trackers
(the "FTs"), this reform included a tightening in our admission
requirements in terms of academic results and a restructuring of
the syllabus to include real business tasks in various departments
and functions within Giordano. Successful graduates have
now taken on a number of important roles, including product
development and management as well as brand management.
Some of them have even been stationed to overseas regions.

(iii) In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong-style FT program to our
Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents for our
future growth.
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Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative (“TDRI") is one of our
key strategic programmes in the coming years. Apart from hiring FTs
externally, we have turned to pinpoint and groom our existing talents
within the Group's business across all regions.

Further to the nomination by regional General Managers of between 1
to 3 talents with (i) proven contribution towards their business; and (ii)
potential to become a future member of senior management, bespoke
and role-specific 1-year development program involving overseas events
and short-term postings have been devised and executed.

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain its
competitive edge. We believe that continuous updating of professional
skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the Company to grow with
the times. We, therefore, allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent, professional and
ethical staff force that will contribute to the success of the Company. In
2020, we have provided in-house training to our frontline staff and non-
frontline staff of the Reporting Markets for over 15,534 hours and 4,288
hours, respectively. The total number of training hours delivered this
year is over 19,822 hours.

Giordano has participated in the Manpower Developer Award Scheme
organized by Employees Retraining Board since 2012.

TOTAL IN-HOUSE TRAINING HOURS RECEIVED BY STAFF

@ BIEZABIEIIE SRR
0 Y3
ﬁ 4

Graph 4

*2020 tE¥f 2019 BAELEE) 2020 vs 2019 % Change

\l Hours
\B Hours
\BF Hours

\B Hours

AIARE T ERIRET

Frontline Staff Non-Frontline Staff
2016 29,288 /|\I Hours 2016 4,369
2017 48,774 /)\FE Hours 2017 9,289
2018 35,608 /J\fF Hours 2018 7,909
2019 20,137 /)\iF Hours 2019 2,999
2020 -22.86%* 2020

15,534 15 riows 2

4,288 /N Hours/\

B TERIEI AR 2
Total in-house Training Hours Received

2016 33,657 /|\E; Hours
2017 58,063 /)\EF Hours
2018 43,513 /|\FF Hours
2019 23,136 /"B Hours
-42.98%* 2020 -14.32%*

19,822 ) Hows 2
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(a)

(b)

(i) MRl

BT ABERE
Induction Talk for New Staff

Refresher Training #1455

& TEEE THERFEEI)  #15
1Rt E B T AR a &M
B L EEITRE B E RS

In addition to strengthening the
basic skills, we equip staff with the
latest information and knowledge,
so that they could carry out their
duties to the highest standards.

HAib R EBIZFIERIZ S (BN B T387&

N BREZVRESBANEZMAR

RIg e

GIORDANO

People-Oriented Staff Development

Based on our staff's different needs, we regularly organize internal
training and on-job training for staff in different roles — this not only
improves our staff's work performance, but also helps equip them
with new skills to face new challenges.

Internal Training

Other internal training programs are designed to help staff
develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance their
management and interpersonal skills.



&F#™#\ Hong Kong Market

FEHE
Chairman'’s Lectures

(i) BIFEF E 5 Reading Annual Report

(il) # &8 Heart Sutra

EFEELRIEEE
Putonghua and English Talks

(iii) L& The Analects

17 1L B o1& 1%

AR ERER

Hiking Talk

GIORDANO

14043y ©S3 0202

- il S

[

O Dff 45 S 1 % 1p

ESG



P EEBEHEEIR

Live Sales training

EFHRFIH B T2 BB B BB AV RIETIAR

Staff training on how to operate Giordano Stores as business partners’ self-pick up points
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FImETEEEA HKTV Pay FEF XA AR

Frontline staff learnt to use HKTV Pay as one of the e-payment methods

B REZAZRESDFHRERN
Assisting the elderly customers to install the GIORDANO APP
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hE ™% - China Market

AEIEAREE

Training The Trainer

FE S ARSI

First-aid Knowledge Training

BXFENER

Colour principle and application
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¥k, Singapore Market

2= i A
Product Knowledge

—

a
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B

EIE - PIERRERRE
AR
REBEA R & PR E R
After training, they also need
to send videos how to mix

and match and what to say to

customers about the products

TR BT MAIUE Polo L&A - RFEEHER

Product knowledge carried out for essentials and anti-bacteria polo in

preparation for shop opening
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e-Learning course “Awareness Training on Phishing
- Giordano”

In order to improve the cybersecurity awareness of all our staff, we have
engaged a service provider to launch an e-Learning course “"Awareness
Training on Phishing — Giordano” for our staff in the second half of the year.
Phishing is one of the most popular cybersecurity attacks. According to the
data provided by the International Security Institution, corporate intrusion
is often initiated by phishing emails. Strengthening our defence against
phishing attacks can greatly reduce the likelihood of security incidents. It is
noticed that our staff are more vigilant about the potential phishing email
after the e-Learning period. The percentage of click on phishing emails has
been significantly dropped from 20% (1st round phishing simulation) to 1%
(2nd round phishing simulation), which is far below the average of the retail
industry.

In addition, the IT department has repeatedly reminded colleagues to guard
against hackers that may target the Company's computers. Colleagues
should not open links and files in emails at will. If the Company suffers losses
due to the negligence of a computer user, the colleagues may well be held
liable.

GIORDANO
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(iii)
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(iii)

Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano's core values, corporate culture and accumulated
experience are all part of our success story. Led by our Chairman
and Chief Executive, Dr. Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, together with the
contribution from staff members from various departments, we
have summarized this information into four guide books for staff's
handy reference. It is hoped that, by turning tacit knowledge built
on experiences, aptitudes and know-how into explicit knowledge,
our staff could benefit in the long term.

(iv) [BEXIEENELEEER

(a) [t#£id#==/# ] Giordano Library

BBt
B1990% 12 - BB MRS ERE
el EERMBRAS - 3860

BTEHHEE BRIBE-

GIORDANO

(iv)

Online Learning Resources on the “Knowledge is Golden”
Webpage

(b) [Professor G #497& | Professor G Blog

Self-Learning Scheme

Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in Hong
Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning atmosphere
to promote staff’s individual initiative and responsibility for
development by self-learning.
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(vi)  Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff’s
expectations and needs for training, which aids in designing the
useful and practical training programs for them in the following
year.

(vii) Training Subsidies

To further motivate our staff to continue developing their skills
and enhancing their knowledge, Giordano has different subsidy
schemes in place:

(a) Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge and skills
for personal growth, which benefits their work performance
and future career development, Hong Kong Headquarters
has set up a “Study Allowance Scheme” to subsidize our staff
in taking external work-related training courses.

(b) Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The “Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has been
implemented since September 2016, which is designed to
develop existing and potential management talent at Hong
Kong Headquarters through financial support to successful
applicants who wish to pursue higher education, such as
studying in undergraduate, or postgraduate degrees or
attainment of professional qualifications or accreditation.

(viii) “Career Development Program” for Shop Staff

To provide our shop staff with more opportunities for development
and enhance their job satisfaction, Hong Kong Headquarters
has launched a “Career Development Program”. It is tailored for
those shop staff nominated by their supervisors, aiming to equip
staff with the skills they require to develop their careers through
additional training.

IEEE B4 : FTREMARBE
Social Aspect B4: Policies on Labour Standards and Human Rights

EEEMNREFR  BRERMEERNNEERE Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced or compulsory labour
EFPREFERAET 2B 558548) - £2020 in any of its operations, including at suppliers’ production facilities. In 2020,
F - RMEBERTNEEREIHEREREAE we did not identify any operation or suppliers having significant risks of child
T - BFETARITERIIE  RBskaH5E - labour, workers exposed to hazardous works, or forced or compulsory labour.
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FOR OUR SUPPLIERS
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Social Aspect B5 : Efficient Supply Chain Management

ﬁﬂﬁXEm LESRE IR
EESEENETEIME
®E Eﬁ Bk 5%
FRIREF - FRPIBLAED

HZ=2020F 12 A3

EAREBEREEAKNAE
SEZT oA E - 2
IRE - BEREEBUHES
FIRKA - FREmEAL

TH - EFHRIE 126 RETE

7 DTSRRI

E 5

A [
(BIEEE)
CHINA

(including Hong Kong)

EUROPE

R
SOUTHEAST
ASIA

AR E it [
REST of the
WORLD

GIORDANO

2016 | 87(83.7%)
2017 | 91(83.5%)
2018 | 97(80.8%)
2019 | 93(81.6%)

2016 | 6(5.0%)
2017 | 6(5.5%)
2018 | 5(4.8%)
2019 | 3(2.6%)

2016 9(8.7%)
2017 9(8.3%)
2018  11(9.2%)
2019 11(9.7%)

2016 3(2.8%)
2017 3(2.8%)
2018 6(5.0%)
2019 7(6.1%)

At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise of satisfying‘
customers’ needs, and better coordination among the various functions
of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing, warehousing and
distribution by better planning and through information sharing. With
more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce costs and maximize
efficiency.

As at December 31, 2020, Giordano has a total of 126 suppliers, located in
different parts of the world:

Graph 5

7 (5.6%)

y

HEEHES %
Suppliers by
Geographical Region

2020

B +E(eEES)
CHINA (including Hong Kong)

B
EUROPE

W R
SOUTHEAST ASIA

105 (83.3%)

R A b
REST of the WORLD

. [ R IERE R EmMBEREE o “Supplier” refers to the manufacturers of apparel and

TSR AR FNACHL AR 0 £ RS © accessories which are directly engaged by Giordano.

. HERNLE TRBEEEESEMR . The geographical location of a Supplier is based

LISV B T EEE © on the location of its production facilities and its
headquarters.

. AROERANRR - ERISFHEM . The respective figure may not add up to 100%, due to
HEIRATRE T F R H 45T 100% o rounding.
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We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality inspection
and supervision, strategic supplier development and materials procurement.
Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable development of our
supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate social responsibility with
our partners to provide the public with high-quality products and services. As
such, supply chain management is always one of the key links in Giordano's
quality control system.

m

Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano'’s success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our quality,
performance and not least labour standards. In particular, we expect
them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements”:

. only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum age;
y ploy: 9 9

e does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

. does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
e does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;
e provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers; and

e is compliant with our various standards and committed to following
up corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values and
principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our above
“Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have demonstrated a
commitment to improving their standards on labour, health and safety,
and environmental practices. Thus, prior to engagement, new suppliers
are required to complete and pass our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

Quality Assurance Mechanism

()  Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection of
suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also subject
to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as well as
suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our Quality
Assurance Team. Only those who pass our audits and assessments
will be included in the “Qualified Supplier List” for bulk purchases.
Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry out long-term quality
monitoring and regular audits/reviews on all suppliers. Should
there be any significant change in a supplier’s eligibility or any
serious quality issue, we may suspend its deliveries immediately
and, if necessary, cancel its status as our qualified supplier.
Moreover, our unannounced inspections from time-to-time will
ensure our suppliers comply with our various standards.

(i) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of
our suppliers, a “Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

o "Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
o “Workplace Standards”;

o “Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”;
and

o "Accepting and Offering Policy”

GIORDANO
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3)

Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production process
and raise any issues that may be discovered, with the aim of working
with its suppliers to identify possible areas for further improvement.
By optimizing the process, upgrading the technology and improving
the workmanship, our suppliers not only greatly improve their
production efficiency and product quality, but also help upgrade their
capabilities in response to more challenging markets and enhance
their competitiveness. This close-knit working relationship between
both sides allows the parties to maintain a more stable and mutually
beneficial cooperation.

Inventory Control

(i) Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. “ZERO STORAGE"
is another core value of Giordano's inventory control. We will
continue to cautiously adjust our inventory portfolio and, once the
resultant overstock depletes, our margins and profitability further
recover. As a result of effective inventory control, our inventory
remained healthy, with inventory turnover days on cost for the year
ended December 31, 2020 was 115 days.

(i) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance-sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.
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el Social Aspect B6: Service and Product Liability

ERNRTEE N ATPRESEETENEYE At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the most
o B [LAEEEFERMERETREARN] & enlightening shopping experience. Giordano's straight-forward mission,
fBffan - BEERDRT T RMERE S BARERN "To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT’, fully illustrates our total

SmE R EGE © commitment to superior service and outstanding quality

() TMEFHRBE R RS 1 GE (1) "Giordano Means Service” Campaign
e SO0 IR 4 5 AR TR R EE TR AL 1989 E X Giordano’s commitment to superior service stems from the “Giordano
HES [ENRGE2RE | A% SBEM8 Means Service” campaign which was first launched in 1989, at which time
TERENE [ERRGRRE | HEEHE - every staff wore a yellow badge bearing the words “Giordano Means
WHRSAE - IR B ERERK AR RS Service”. Since then, quality service has become one of the tenets of
Z—o Giordano.
BTHRESMNE TIREEENZERY - & To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we conduct
MMM R R TS RN R UL E performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as well as for
RIFI4R B THRTE/KE - HFIB N AR PIRHE frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide excellent
BERKE FREHE L LERKEESZIESR customer service have been recognized by a long list of service-related
ARFS ARG 5TE o awards we have received over the years.
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"Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that Giordano has
upheld for many years, which we achieve through “thinking one step ahead
for customers’ needs” and "providing tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff
provide professional advice and flexible and rapid response to customers,
helping them choose the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our
customers, we also allow them to return and exchange products after purchases.

RERETE

Awards and Recognition

34

EETEERREREN
[20195F At AR 22

"2019 Service & Courtesy Award”
presented by HKRMA

o SKIE2019 BEHEER P&

MEBKREEERENR FEHEEHFA &
B BERTEREALRBENTERF -
Giordano 5820194 HBE i P 22 (A X S BL &
4RI EREE o AN - ENWEEEISFRSES
IREEEE R B [BEEREEAR 5T EIHRE -

o EFHRAUARET RNE TR ML AR

EFRERHLRET N T EEEEIER2018
FERTAEFHBRALZ — - ETREFABKH
WAR(ARBNRFRTETEYER 28
EBEROBEFHBAL) - RA T ESRERE
BUBNHSRREHEEETEHEKE  REE
REEFNBEDEY - BATETEYER

o Powerlist £ fF A BB W ERBE KLY GC

Powerlist

B R - RPIERAER - EFREBET
B S5 2 B B & 51 & 7B GC Powerlist &9 [ Team
Powerlist | %8 Bll = & & GC Powerlist /1 The
Legal 500 iz * The Legal 50075 & &% &
RN ER - HEHEGC PowerlistZR 2 B A
HNEEEE R

1. BERARIKFEITHEMER

e 2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff Awards

Hosted by Hong Kong Tourism Board, to award the retailers for their
outstanding services and Giordano won a silver award. Also, Giordano has
continuously recognized as a Quality Merchant by the Hong Kong Tourism
Board for 15 years.

Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano’s eCommerce website as one
of the "Top 10 eCommerce websites” for 2018. This “Top 10 eCommerce
Website Award”, which recognized and awarded websites that have raised
the bar for user experience and achieved outstanding operation growth,
has acknowledged Giordano’s eCommerce website for fostering and
delivering continuous and exemplary e-commerce standards as well as
enhancing user experience with an outstanding shopping platform.

Giordano's Legal Team at Hong Kong Headquarters named in the GC
Powerlist

Meanwhile, we are also delighted to announce that Giordano's Legal Team
at Hong Kong Headquarters has been named in the “Team Powerlist”
category of the GC Powerlist Hong Kong, published by The Legal 500 -
which carried out the research to corroborate and validate our inclusion, in
recognition of our in-house legal team:

1. being instrumental in changing or forming opinions within the
company or industry;

N

§ 2. BERMEAEHIREERIERMRR R 2. developing technical solutions to complex issues;

Q 3. RERIRAIEARE RN ER 3. creating innovative structures to ensure that the in-house function is
m BR R driving the business forward; and

iy

@) . N e L . .

2 4. gERAEMAGEZERNEE  BEE 4. providing a business working model that other corporate counsel
= BREOEETEER - should follow.
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Giordano is a global fashion brand and clothing retailer with locations across 30
countries and 2,400 stores across Asia, Australasia and the Middle East. It operates
the brands Giordano, Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior, BSX and Beau Monde
and is moving to expand into Europe and the Americas. Leading the legal team at
the company is Mark Loynd, who in his role of general counsel, company secretary
and director of human resources, has been responsible for the company’s legal,
compliance and regulatory affairs globally since 2013. The legal team under Loynd's

direction has facilitated the company’s recent rapid expansion and development ; Q ,

which resulted in some of its highest growth since thanks to work
managed and completed by the legal team in the last five years.

RS

The team manages all of the legal affairs of the company including
its regulatory affairs relating to import and export tariffs, supply
chain regulations, privacy and IP, as well as employment matters. A
truly multijurisdictional team, the Giordano legal department has
recently overseen the opening of another flagship store in Hong
Kong, as well as the company’s completion of a business acquisition
in Vietnam and the opening of the first location in Mongolia.

e Giordano Junior 2% [2018 REHEZ LK EE
mhg R |

£ 2018 4 » Giordano Junior 88 J& [2018 R
BEGFELOREMBRE] B ZREER - ZA
BAEBHNEEHNI TF & Baby Kingdom 8% -
#238 Baby Kingdom @ B AR BEFENHRE -
Giordano Junior FEVO A A& @ HEF R E M
75 BH Giordano Junior — B LA 3R 78 i &l B A 3R
i SEENREEMOBERAMKERBEET
FEHRR -

2 ZT:EEFE

() BTEENBEZTRSIN  —EAFELRET
2HBEYIRROEMREDERITNE
B o AL HMIBS () BETHER
REZEMEREMIRE LWk b)EE
5 T BERR AT i 2 M BN B B R Y
B

(i) wARTRAt & EmE B5Q)i) - HFIAHER
Rft— [REFM] F2E - SHAY
EmmE ML 2MRERER -

(i) HPBREEHETAERERLZNE
AR WERENERRERNEE
WEMANEEEBE - flmn [ED
M ITERIEE] -

(iv) HMBCEBFEBIMBAINE="TERE
AP HER - RS H

R iEE .

e Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family Brand”

Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family Brand”
under the “Children Clothing” category in 2018. This Award was presented
by Baby Kingdom, a popular online parent-child platform in Hong Kong.
Further to the assessment by the members of Baby Kingdom and a panel
of professional judges, Giordano Junior stood out from the other 3 finalists,
being in recognition of its creative designs and high-quality products.

(2) Safety and Health

@

(iii)

(iv)

In addition to the professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and
(b) eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

As mentioned in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations on product safety, and regularly update them of
the hazardous substance and inhumane production processes
banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and the
“live-plucking” goose down process.

We also engage independent and accredited third party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with the international safety standards.

GIORDANO
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3)

“We care because you care”

Much effort has been spent on product safety, which is one of
our core values. For instance, we make sure that all drawstrings in
our Giordano Junior clothing are fixed to the waistband to avoid
pulling out by children accidentally. We also will not use metal
zippers, which are however commonly used by our counterparts.

Protecting intellectual property rights

0]

(i)

"IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP”) is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by the
Intellectual Property Department of Hong Kong in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Program” by our staff, we
were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.

Intellectual Property (IP) Fundamentals Seminar

The Legal Manager of our global Legal and Company Secretarial
Department based in Hong Kong held three rounds of Intellectual
Property (IP) Fundamentals seminars in English, Cantonese
and Putonghua via online lecture in November and December
2020, striving to train up our staff in each market with updated
knowledge regarding IP rights and protection to avoid possible
infringements.

HEBEEBERHRIE ML R
EFALENZE-—ERWTRE 182
1 o RESFAMER R E BB R ERRE
D1 (201845 H25 B 42K » [GDPR]) » K {F
EEFTAEES [BRBER IS EABRZ
A R ALBR R BR (R B CHRAR) - X E#E TP
BB R R, S EE(ER) - HARK
BEP2E - Rtz BFBEFET —ME
BREMITRABILE=T  ELAWRKKRERE
FMEEFACDPRIER « HPIHTEFIEEER
TETHRRER

GIORDANO

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from May 25, 2018, “GDPR"), we
have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal Information
Collection Statement” and “Privacy Notice” (both in English and
Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/or e-shops, where
appropriate) for the public and customers’ reference. We invited an
independent third party global law firm to audit our practices and
confirmed our compliance with the GDPR. Furthermore, staff are kept
reminded to fully observe the policy from time to time.



(5 F£ COVID-19 7 ' E W —H Z5 0 (5) During the COVID-19, Giordano has launched a series of antimicrobial

RERHBEFPIE - products to help customers fight the virus.
(i) giordano ladies x Gimans Care NHEAIEAOE - =#5£GEER)
—RXME O E Disposable Masks Reusable Mask — 3 in 1 pack (Not for Medical Use)

ASTM 28 3 #RPHERZZE ASTM Level 3
BFE/PFE/VFE > 99%

DET30™ A& MmO E(EER)
Reusable Mask (Not for Medical Use)

(i) BEIE POLO ¥
Men'’s Anti-bacteria Polo Shirt
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Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, customers have spent more time at
home. Giordano produced a total of eight episodes of home sports
specials and uploaded those videos to video-sharing channels for
customers and members of public to watch and enjoy.

GIORDANO G-Motion R/EE& % (HN\E)
GIORDANO G-Motion Home Sports Special (eight episodes)

fECOVID-19 KimfT I~ AR REATRE
EBEBEIENBIRIT  AZERGIBZER
IMTILIEETR &0 » EFHEIE T —H &
WiTILEE W ESREFRA D ZHEEHBER
MHREE -

7)

Under the Covid-19 pandemic, customers and the public at large
citizens have not been able to leave Hong Kong for non-essential travel.
Most residents choose to go hiking in the suburbs for relaxing activities.
Giordano has produced a total of six episodes of hiking special and
uploaded them to video sharing channels for customers and members
of the public to watch and enjoy.

GIORDANO G-Motion 775 (F£75%)
GIORDANO G-Motion Hiking Special (six episodes)

GIORDANO
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m

We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,
and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano'’s strict
standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of interest,
gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as our policies on
dealings and investment in Giordano’s shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and
uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a “Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are any
cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to update
their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our
staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. These types
of seminars is compulsory to be attended at least once by each Hong
Kong Headquarters staff.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full compliance
with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage Solicitation and
Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii). In addition,
we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff, business associates
and suppliers reminding them of our Group Policy on Accepting and
Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year, before Mid-Autumn Festival
and Chinese Lunar New Year). We are not aware of any incidents of
noncompliance in relation to anti-corruption in 2020.

GIORDANO
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5 Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement
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20144 » F{FIEERoom to ReadBt & #EH T
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3R (11/9/2014)

Hp— AU EREREER - BEN
& BhRoom to Read i hfk ©

20184 » EFHR (B 2P ) 83 [We Love
Orangutans ] #1 [ Amazing Ocean | /M 1 [E 4%
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Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano'’s
ethos. Acting on our belief in a "World Without Strangers’, Giordano actively
supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially those
associated with education, children and the underprivileged.

Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

m

In 2014, we launched the “Do Not Read This” campaign in conjunction
with Room to Read, which raised funds for the non-profit organization
through selling limited-edition T-shirts in Giordano's shops. With
Giordano's donations, Room to Read published 15,000 copies of two
children’s books in two Indian languages for underprivileged children.

This focus on education for underprivileged children is also evident
in another Giordano's ongoing project, Project Hope, a public service
project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation.
Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the project’s work in
providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China
with access to primary school education by funding the construction of
a number of Giordano Hope primary schools. As of the end of 2020, 22
Giordano primary schools of Hope have been completed.

We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of
children’s welfare in Mainland China.

Hong Kong Daily News

One of the children books, in Hindi, published by Room to Read with
Giordano’s donation.

In 2018, Giordano Malaysia launched the “We Love Orangutans” and
“Amazing Ocean” campaigns revolving around wildlife conservation.

In 2019, Giordano Taiwan had several community activities, including
second-hand clothing donations and beach cleaning activities.

In 2020, Giordano Thailand Volunteer Team participated in Prasingh
Temple Grounds Cleaning Day.

A team of volunteers from Giordano Thailand converged in the northern
city of Chiangmai to take part in a cleaning day for the local Prasingh
temple.

The 25-strong team comprising the entire Chiangmai frontline staff
and the area supervisor of the Northern Region of Thailand cleaned
lavatories and the temple grounds of Prasingh Temple, keeping them
safe for both tourists and the resident monks.

GIORDANO
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BREARER

Aspects, General
Disclosures & KPIs

—RIRE

General Disclosure

AR EMIEIZA
KPI A1.1

BASRAE TUEIRA1.2
KPI A1.2

BB IEIZA1.3
KPI A1.3
hepectes
A1.4KPI A1.4
R ERIEIE
A1.5KPIA15

BRBE IR IR
A1.6KPIATS

—RRIE

General Disclosure

R EMIEIZA
KPI A1.1
BRENIEIZA2.2
KPI A2.2
FBERIEIZA2.3
KPI A2.3
AR ETUEIZA2.4
KPI A2.4

BRI MUIEIRA2.S
KPI A2.5

£
Description

BREEMEA : BEB Environmental Aspect A1: Emission

BHABRREREHN  MUKRTHBEES - B ERBEEBREVMNELTSH -

(a) B R

(b) BTHBRITABEATENRBEZROINER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

PR TR AR KA B B B R

Types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERBANER(NEREE

Greenhouse gas emission in total and, where appropriate, intensity.
FMEEAEEEYHRER(MER)EE

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.
ELEEERENBERER

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

R E B R b R AT ISR

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
FMERAEREEERYNTTE  REELENEBRAFRR

Descrlpt\on of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and

results achieved.
RIEEEA2 : ERMEM Environmental Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BRERER(BIFER - KREMERME) BER
General Disclosure  Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and other
raw materials.
REREI SN ERERSEEEREERE REE
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
BREKEBREE
Water consumption in total and intensity.
HLBEIR{E A AT &I R TS BUR
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
M SKEGE KR LR B EARERE - A RRFA KT 2 RS R
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
HRRAAREMBNAER (WER)BEEEMGE
Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

2020 BI% - &8

RERHE) 2020
ESG Report

Al

A2 [E1 Graph 1
A2 [E1 Graph 1
A2 EFEE2
Note 2 of Graph 1
A2 [B1 Graph 1

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2 [El1 Graph 1

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2 Bl1 K54
Graph 1 &
its Note 4

A2 [E1 Graph 1
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BRENRER
Aspects, General
Disclosures & KPIs

— MR
General Disclosure

BRI MUIEIRA3A
KPI A3.1

—RRIFR

General Disclosure

BRRAE RSB
KPI B1.1

BRI MIEIRB1.2
KPI B1.2

—R IR
General Disclosure

BRI MIEIEB2.1
KPI B2.1
RARAE R IE1IRB2.2
KPI B2.2
BRI MIEIEB2.3
KPI B2.3

i
Description

BRIEEMAS : BERXAER Environmental Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

REEITABIRRERRABEREKERTENBR
General Disclosure  Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

L EBEDERERRABERNEAVERERNEEERTENTTY

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and

actions taken to manage them.
#EE@EB1 : {EE Social Aspect B1: Employment

BRGNS EE - MIEREA - TESE - RY - TSRS St RIGAREMTIERET

Hy

(a) B M

(b) BIFHBEITABERVENBREERAGNE R

Information on:

(a) the policies, and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ZER - BIEEE - FRERIREE D HEB B

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

RIER - FRRAERIREE S HESRKALL X

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
HEEMEB2 : FEHZ 2 Social Aspect B2: Health and Safety

FRARHZE2IERERRERSBEHELBEN

(a) B R

(b) BTFHBETAEBEATZENHEEEEZ LRI ER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

B ITEREMETE A B R

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

EITSHEEATIEAS

Lost days due to work injury.

HULPTER AN R R R 25506 - ARMEBERIT RERE

Description of occupation health and safety measures adopted, how they are implemented and

monitored.

2020F]RI% -

HERERHE)
2020 ESG Report

A3

A3

B1

[E2%3
Graph 2 & 3

B2

B2
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BRENRER
Aspects, General
Disclosures & KPIs

—MRIREE
General Disclosure

R A RIEIZB3.1
KPI B3.1
BASRAE TIEIEB3.2
KPI B3.2

—RIE

General Disclosure

BASRAE BUEIEBA.1
KPI B4.1
R EEINIEIZB4.2
KPI B4.2

— R

General Disclosure
BB A W IEIZEB5.1
KPI B5.1

B A NIEIEB5.2
KPI B5.2

i
Description

HEEMB3 : ERKIE Social Aspect B3: Development and Training

BRAIETHE S BT TR E A A R BB OB - LB INES)

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

RIERIREEENESNZIEEB AL

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
RURREBRRE S BREBETKIIINFHRH

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
#EEMEB4 : 8 T %8| Social Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BRI E T ko hls TH) -

(a) B K

(b) BFHBTABERTZENBREERAMNER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour

AR R E A E AR R ET KRS T

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.
SET R A 4 B T3 6% TSR R e 88

Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices when discovered.
HEEMEBS5 - HEHEER Social Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

BIRH R AR AL g AR B SR Policies on managing environment and social risks of the
supply chain.

Iz m & S M IER A

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RN BRI AHEERNIED - MENTERENNEERHE - URERENNITERTA
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices

are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

2020F]RI% -

HERERHE)
2020 ESG Report

B3

B4
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B5 &5 Graph 5
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Aspects, General Description
Disclosures & KPIs

2020F ]RI% -

HEREAKRE)
2020 ESG Report

HEEEB6 : EMEFE Social Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
gz

— AR ER BFREERTRBNERELZSE - BES  BHEELBEEURBRIEN - B6
General Disclosure (a) B R

(b) T BT AAEANVENBRER IR ER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

R A NIEIEB6.1 EEREEXEREBTARBEREAMARKNE DL

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

BRENIEIREB6.2 BN Em LR IR A A R EH T7E

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.

R ENIEIEB6.3 it B A o o AR R N E R R A 1B 1) B6(3)

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.

BRENIEEB64 e 2R E AR K E B R e

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

R ENIEIEB6.S HMUE B & ERHMRIE RILBBOR - ARARBERIT RERFA B6(4)

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

HEE@EB7 : HEIRE Social Aspect B7: Community Investment

—RIE ERATRLERTREEMELRFTENRREEBEDEEBLRFZABER B7
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the community where the issuer

operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the community’s interests.

A SR 4E BHEIEBT 1 HTrEE#E B7
KPI B7.1 Focus areas of contribution.

BREIEIEBRT .2 EETHBABHAER

KPI B7.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas.
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Giordano International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited Jiability)

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
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